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TECH MAHINDRA (AMERICAS), INC.
DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Your Directors present their Report together with the audited accounts of your Corporation for the year ended March 31,

2021.

Financial Results:

For the year ended March 31 2021 2021 2020 2020

usbD INR uUsD INR
Income 992,012,421 | 72,526,028,385 | 1,100,243,365 | 83,200,403,261
Profit/(Loss) before tax 83,608,349 | 6,112,606,419 67,229,708 | 5,083,910,519
Profit/(Loss)after tax 63,278,329 | 4,626,278,651 54,278,222 | 4,104,519,148

Review of operations:

During the fiscal year under review, the Corporation achieved an income of US$ 992.01 Million (equivalent to INR 7,252
Crores). The Corporation continues to invest in strengthening its business in the USA which is the largest IT market in the
World. The increase in business and the focus on right sizing the USA operations while preparing for the next level of growth
has helped the Corporation to earn healthy level of profits in the last few years.

Acquisitions / Mergers / Incorporations / Investments:

During year, Corporation has acquired 100% stake in Zen3 Infosolutions (America) Inc. for the total purchase consideration
of USD 64 Million with an upfront consideration of USD 35 Million. The balance amount shall be paid as a deferred
consideration in terms of Share Purchase Agreement and Amendments there too.

Incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary under the laws of State of Delaware, United States of America in the name of “Tech
Mahindra Credit Solutions, Inc” on August 17, 2020.

On October 21, 2020, the Corporation acquired a 6% stake in Vitaltech Holdings (“Vitaltech”) to the value of $3 million.
Changes in Director:

During the year under review, Mr. Arvind Malhotra resigned as Director of the Corporation. The Board placed on record
its appreciation for the assistance and guidance provided by Mr Arvind Malhotra during his tenure as Director of the
Corporation. Mr. Manish Vyas, Mr. Lakshmanan Chidambaram, Mr. T N Manoharan, Mr. Guru Prasad R lyengar are the
other members of the Board of Directors.

Outlook for the current year:

The Corporation believes that the investments made over the last few years in cultivating long term relationships with
existing & prospective customers will result in further increase in business.

Acknowledgements:

Your Directors gratefully acknowledge the contributions made by the employees towards the success of the Corporation. Your
Directors also thank the customers, suppliers, bankers, State and Federal Government Authorities and the shareholder(s)
for the co-operation and assistance received from them.

Manish Vyas
Director

Place: Texas
Date: May 29, 2021



TECH MAHINDRA (AMERICAS), INC.
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors

Tech Mahindra (Americas), Inc. a New Jersey Corporation,

a wholly owned subsidiary of Tech Mahindra Limited, an India Corporation
Plano, Texas

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tech Mahindra (Americas), Inc., (a New Jersey Corporation),
which comprise the balance sheets as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of operations and
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in stockholders’ equity, for the years then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Tech
Mahindra (Americas), Inc. as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (“US
GAAP”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Tech Mahindra (Americas), Inc. and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

The group’s accounting policies require the Corporation to consolidate its subsidiaries with controlling interest. For the
purposes of these US GAAP Financial Statements, the Balance Sheet and Statement of Operations and Comprehensive
Income of its subsidiaries, Lightbridge Communications Corporation, Tech Talenta, Inc., Objectwise Consulting Group,
Zen3 Infosolutions (America) Inc. Tech Mahindra Healthcare Systems Holdings, LLC and Mad*Pow Media Solutions, have
not been consolidated. The non-consolidation of the above-mentioned controlling interest subsidiaries is not in accordance
with the group’s accounting policies. The effects of this departure from the group’s accounting policies on the Balance Sheet
and Statement of Profit and Loss, have not been determined.

The accounting treatment for the Corporation’s investment in the CJS Solutions Group through Tech Mahindra Healthcare
Systems Holdings LLC and its investment in Zen3 Infosolutions (America) Inc. was provided by group management and
therefore out of scope for the purpose of this report. The potential effect of this departure from accounting standards on the
Balance Sheet and Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income, have not been determined.

Other matters

As discussed in various notes to the financial statements, the Corporation has had numerous transactions with the parent
and affiliated companies.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The Supplemental
Schedules of Revenue and Expenses on page 26 to 27 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Tech Mahindra (Americas), Inc.’s ability to continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements, including
omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.In performing an audit in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards, we:



TECH MAHINDRA (AMERICAS), INC.

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tech Mahindra (Americas),
Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about Tech Mahindra (Americas), Inc.’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the
audit.

CKH CPA’s and Advisors, LLC
Atlanta, Georgia
May 7, 2021



BALANCE SHEETS AS OF MARCH 31,

(All amounts are in USD)

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net

Employee advances

Due from parent company

Due from affiliated companies

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Income tax receivable

Notes receivable from affiliated companies
Equity securities

Total current assets

Non - current assets

Goodwill, net

Property and equipment, net

Intangible assets, net

Operating lease right-of-use assets
Investment in subsidiaries

Equity securities

Deferred tax asset

Security deposits

Other assets

Total non - current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other current financial liabilities
Deferred revenue

Due to parent company

Due to affiliated companies

Note payable to affiliated company
Short-term debt

Operating lease liabilities - short-term
Total current liabilities

Non - current liabilities

Operating lease liabilities - long-term
Other non — current financial liabilities
Total non - current liabilities

Total liabilities

Stockholder’s equity

Equity attributable to stockholder of the Corporation
Total liabilities and stockholder's equity
Commitments and contingencies (Note 20)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

TECH MAHINDRA (AMERICAS), INC.

Notes

12

16

23
15
14
13
19

19
16

2021 2020
6,671,655 67,586,269
5,349,112 8,085,250

59,098 941,297
111,497,948 80,948,922
1,307,128 6,494,626
17,267,036 10,378,780
8,360,203 7,026,736
7,000,000 3,000,000
10,000,000 -
167,512,180 184,461,880
65,596 65,596
13,052,380 14,107,219
8,637,100 11,149,217
9,656,097 11,104,937
345,253,494 286,580,906
3,000,001 25,000,000
20,247,564 27,607,664
456,481 495,161
123,399,773 153,125,298
532,668,486 529,235,998
700,180,666 713,697,878
11,670,311 29,367,922
139,665,861 136,545,162
427,200 -
27,669,486 30,538,169
5,308,900 35,905,656
5,000,000 37,500,000
132,000,000 106,750,000
4,256,480 4,218,394
325,998,238 380,825,303
5,695,523 7,488,766
89,418,390 109,968,789
95,113,913 117,457,555
421,112,151 498,282,858
279,068,515 215,415,020
700,180,666 713,697,878




TECH MAHINDRA (AMERICAS), INC.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2020

(All amounts are in USD) Notes/ 2021 2020
Schedules
Revenues | 992,012,421 1,100,243,365
Operating expenses:
- Personnel Il (581,813,739) (601,554,167)
- Subcontracting expenses Il (221,010,117) (304,904,563)
- Software, hardware and project specific expenses (77,163,276) (34,036,624)
- General and administrative and other expenses v (39,798,368) (71,251,731)
- Movement in doubtful provision 65,621 922,844
- Allowance for accounts receivables due from affiliated companies 4,669,999 (4,456,395)
- Amortization 8 (2,512,117) (2,512,117)
- Depreciation 7 (10,801,326) (13,223,340)
Total operating expenses (928,363,323) (1,031,016,093)
Operating income 63,649,098 69,227,272
Non-operating income/(expenses):
Other income 698,198 272,893
Impairment of notes issued to affiliated companies 5 (4,078,808) (15,684,699)
Interest income 1,055,803 1,047,002
Interest expenses (2,067,440) (2,430,517)
Finance costs (1,490,072) (595,219)
Change in fair value of contingent consideration (4,158,429) 6,093,282
Dilution gain from equity method investment 1(a) - 10,441,958
Equity in income of equity method investees 1(a) 29,999,999 (1,142,264)
Income before income tax expense 83,608,349 67,229,708
Income tax expense 6 (20,330,020) (12,951,486)
Net income 63,278,329 54,278,222
Other comprehensive loss:
- Profit (loss) on hedge activity 375,166 (1,611,969)
Comprehensive income 63,653,495 52,666,253

All revenue and profit for the year are generated from continuing operations

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



TECH MAHINDRA (AMERICAS), INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS; EQUITY FOR
THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED

MARCH 31, 2020

(All amounts are in USD) 2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income 63,278,329 54,278,222
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
- Amortization 2,512,117 2,512,117
- Depreciation 10,801,326 13,223,340
- Deferred income tax expense (1,639,900) (1,832,637)
- Provision for losses on accounts receivables (65,621) (922,844)
- Provision for losses on accounts receivables due from affiliated company (4,669,999) 4,456,395
- Impairment of notes issued to affiliated companies 4,078,808 15,684,699
- Equity in losses of equity method investee (29,999,999) 1,142,264
- Change in fair value of contingent consideration 4,158,429 (6,093,282)
- Dilution gain from equity method investment - (10,441,958)
- Finance cost 1,490,072 595,221
- Deferred contract costs - amortization of other asset 29,725,525 12,533,594
- Gain in non-cash settlement with customer on revenue contract - (8,756,787)
- Amortization of deferred employees costs 1,361,445 2,083,333
- Lease expense 4,549,751 4,599,340
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
- Accounts receivable, net 2,801,759 31,760,919
- Employee advances 882,199 569,575
- Due from parent company (30,549,026) 75,847,971
- Due from affiliated companies 9,857,497 (3,545,638)
- Prepaid expenses and other current assets (8,139,602) (3,910,429)
- Income tax receivable (1,333,467) 1,513,919
- Security deposits and other assets 38,680 15,649
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
- Accounts payable (17,697,611) 19,047,732
- Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (1,025,007) (21,960,203)
- Unearned revenue 427,200 (103,716)
- Due to parent company (2,868,683) (61,371,468)
- Due to affiliated companies (30,596,756) (510,238)
- Operating lease payments (4,756,068) (3,997,117)
- Other non — current financial liabilities (21,665,305) 3,867,180
Net cash provided by operating activities (19,043,907) 120,285,153




TECH MAHINDRA (AMERICAS), INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS; EQUITY FOR
THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED

MARCH 31, 2020

(All amounts are in USD) 2021 2020
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditures (9,759,210) (10,906,601)
Investment in subsidiaries, associates and financial asset (16,672,590) (23,203,504)
Payments received on notes receivable from affiliated companies (8,188,907) 4,356,093
Net cash used in investing activities (34,620,707) (29,754,012)
Cash flows from financing activities
Net borrowings under line-of-credit agreements 25,250,000 31,750,000
(Repayment)/Proceeds from note payable to affiliated company (32,500,000) 37,500,000

Dividends paid
Net cash used in financing activities

(95,900,019)

(7,250,000)

(26,650,019)

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (60,914,614) 63,881,122
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 67,586,269 3,705,147
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6,671,655 67,586,269
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest (344,891) (1,773,458)

Cash paid for income taxes

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

(23,303,435)

(17,594,307)
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TECH MAHINDRA (AMERICAS), INC.
NOTES TO, AND FORMING PART OF, THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020
(All amounts are in USD)

1

10

Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Nature of operations

Tech Mahindra (Americas) Inc. (“TMA” or “the Corporation”), is a wholly owned subsidiary of Tech Mahindra
Limited (“TML”), which is incorporated in the Republic of India. TMA was incorporated in the State of New Jersey
on November 29, 1993, and provides computer consulting and programming support services.

On March 6, 2012, TMA formed Tech Talenta, Inc. (TechT). TechT is a Texas corporation, which is 100% owned (500
shares of $1.00 par value) by TMA and is accounted for on the cost method. The cost of investment was reported
at $500,000 at March 31, 2021 and 2020. The subsidiary’s stockholder’s equity at March 31, 2021 and 2020 was
$4.8 million and $4.7 million, respectively. TechT is engaged in the business of recruitment, fulfillment and ongoing
management of local temporary contractor resources in the areas of IT Development, Product Engineering, IT
System Support and Operations for clients across North America. On May 7, 2014, TechT registered a branch
in Canada and on February 9, 2016 a branch was registered in the United Kingdom. The Canadian branch and
United Kingdom branches had insignificant activity since inception. The Canadian branch was dissolved, effective
March 20, 2018. The branch in the United Kingdom was closed on December 31, 2019.

The Corporation acquired a 100% investment in Lightbridge Communications Corporation (LCC), a Delaware
Corporation on February 6, 2015, which is accounted for on the cost method. The purchase price was $170
million. During the period ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, the Corporation received a refund of $3.2 million and
$6.2 million, respectively, from the investment escrow account. During the period ended March 31, 2019, the
Corporation received a refund of $1.5 million, from the investment escrow account. The balance of the investment
was reported at $159 million and $159 million at March 31,2021 and 2020, respectively. LCC provides integrated
end-to-end solutions for wireless voice and data communications networks with offerings ranging from high level
technical consulting to system design and optimization services, ongoing operations and maintenance services,
and deployment services.

On March 3, 2015, TMA purchased 600,000 shares of Series A preferred stock of $0.001 par value per share
of Avion Networks, Inc. (“Avion”), a Delaware corporation. Avion is in the business of providing engineering and
technology services to customers in the telecommunication industry. TMA owns 30% of Avion and accounts for
this investment under the equity method. The carrying value of investment was $ nil for both March 31, 2020 and
2019 after management carried out an impairment test which resulted in the impairment of the carrying value in
Avion amounting to $3 million. Consequently, the Corporation recognized $ nil and $ nil of after-tax income from
Avion during both years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020.

On May 4, 2017 the Corporation acquired CJS through Tech Mahindra Healthcare Systems Holding LLC., a
Delaware Limited Liability Company. An amount of $84.7 million was paid upfront in cash, for the acquisition of
84.74% membership units in CJS. An additional amount of $4.7 million was paid to the minority shareholder as
goodwill. Total amount paid including the goodwill was $89.5 million out of which $7.5 million was considered
as a prepaid compensation to the minority shareholder. TMA also had a put option at fair value of $6.9 million
resulting in a net investment of $88.9 million at acquisition date. On October 13, 2017 the Board of Directors of
TMA approved to extend a corporate guarantee, for the working capital facility of CJS. On March 1, 2019, TMA
signed an amended agreement with an effective date of December 31, 2018, resulting in a change in vesting and
exercise date starting from April 30, 2019. The amended agreement presented the call option to purchase the
remaining 15.26% of shares from the minority shareholder over a period of 3 years — December 2019, 2020 and
2021 at values which will be derived based on EBITDA and revenue achievement. The minority shareholder had a
put option on the remaining 15.26% of shares over a period of 3 years — December 2019, 2020 and 2021 at values
which will be derived based on EBITDA and revenue achievement. As at March 31, 2019 the first option was
exercised, resulting in a change in holding of 4.07%, TMA's shareholding subsequent to exercising its first option
was 88.81%. As at March 31, 2020 the second option with a fair value of $7.4 million was exercised, resulting in
a change in holding of 4.07%.TMA’s shareholding as a result of exercising option two is 92.88%. As at March 31,
2020, $4.7 million was paid as part payment for the second option. As at March 31, 2021 the third and final option
with a fair value of $7.1 million was exercised, increasing the holding by 7.12% bringing the holding to 100%.

On January 18, 2018, TMA invested $15 million in Altiostar Networks Inc’s (“Altiostar”) series C1 Preferred shares
entitling 23.5% of the fully diluted stake in the Altiostar. As per the share purchase agreement, TMA is entitled,
subject to certain terms and conditions, to purchase from Altiostar, 7.9 million shares of Common stock, at a
purchase price of $0.05 per share.
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Prior to June 2019, the Corporation owned 23.5% of fully diluted stake amounting to $15 million in Altiostar
Networks Inc.’s (“Altiostar”). TMA accounted for the investment on the equity basis due to its significant influence
and recognized $9.3 million losses from Altiostar during the year ended March 31, 2019.

During June 2019, Altiostar issued additional shares to another investor, resulting into dilution of the investment
held of TMA from 23.5% to 9.5% and accordingly it was determined that significant influence over this investee
was lost. During the year ended March 31, 2020, prior to this dilution, TMA recorded additional loss from equity in
losses of Altiostar of $1.1 million. TMA elected to measure the retained equity interest at fair value under Topic 321
and adjusted the carrying amount of the investment in Altiostar to fair value. Accordingly, the investment in Altiostar
was transferred from equity method investments to equity securities. TMA recognized the difference between the
carrying value of investment in Altiostar and fair value when it was determined that significant influence was lost
and recognized the difference between fair value and carrying amount and accordingly a dilution gain of $10.4
million was recognized in the statement of operations.

During September 2020, the Corporation sold it's stake in Altiostar for $45 million.

On May 19, 2019 the Board of Directors approved the transfer of the entire issued and outstanding capital of
Mahindra Technologies Services Inc. (“MTSI”). The separate existence of MTSI ceased on July 1, 2019, which
management considered as the effective date of the merger.

On July 31, 2019, TMA acquired 65% membership interests of Mad*Pow Media Solutions, LLC. (“Mad*Pow”), at a
cost of $16.7 million. TMA is bound to obtain the remaining interest over a period of three years subsequent to the
initial acquisition date. The fair value of the embedded forward contract at the date of purchase was determined to
be $11.6 million which represents the mandatorily obligation of TMA to acquire the remaining shareholding. During
November 2020, the Corporation acquired an additional 11.66%, increasing the holding to 76.7%

In October 2019 TMA's newly formed Canadian subsidiary, Tech Mahindra Canada, Inc. acquired 100% interest
in Objectwise Consulting Group Inc.(“Objectwise”). Subsequent to the acquisition Tech Mahindra Canada, Inc.
amalgamated with Objectwise as the surviving entity.

On April 8, 2020 an amended purchase agreement was executed between the Corporation and the sellers of
Zen3 Infosolutions America Inc. (incl. subsidiaries)(“Zen 3”). The board of directors approved a total purchase
consideration of $64 million. This agreement stipulated that ZenIndia shares would be acquired by Tech Mahindra
Limited and a minority holder (holding 1 ZeniIndia share). The transaction costs linked to the purchase agreement
represents a prepayment towards contingent liabilities resulting from the acquisition. A total of $34.6 million has
been paid to the seller. An additional amount of $4 million will be paid out equally over the next 2 years (at the
end of each fiscal year). The remaining balance will be available as an earn-out payment potential and is currently
totaling and estimated $ 16.7 million.

On October 21, 2020, the Corporation acquired a 6% stake in Vitaltech Holdings (“Vitaltech”) to the value of $3
million. The Corporation has not exercised the option to acquire an additional 8% shareholding in Vitaltech. The
Warrants issued to the Corporation at the time of the initial investment is contingent on performance measures and
the 36 month vesting period. See note 11 for additional disclosure.

During December 2020, TMA contributed capital of $100,000 towards a newely formed subsidiary, Tech Mahindra
Credit Solutions (“TMCS”).

Basis of presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) with the exception as stated below.

TMA have investments in subsidiaries which are listed in Note 9. U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) require that all subsidiaries should be consolidated, and consolidated financial statements should be
presented. Consolidated financial statements are the general-purpose financial statements of a parent company
that has one or more subsidiaries. In certain circumstances, parent company-only financial statements may
be required in addition to consolidated financial statements. ASC 810-10-45-11 permits presentation of parent
company financial statements as a supplement to the consolidated financial statements when such a presentation
is the most effective means of presenting pertinent information. The parent company-only financial statements are
being presented without accompanying consolidated financial statements which is not accordance with US GAAP.
Accordingly, these financial statements are not the general-purpose financial statements of the reporting entity,
TMA.

The Corporation did not present the parent company only financial statements according to the proportionate
share of the subsidiaries’ net assets as required in the rare instances in which parent company financials are
presented without accompanying consolidated financial statements.

11
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(9)

Use of estimates in preparation of financial statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during
the reporting period. Significant estimates and assumptions made by management include the determination of
recognition of revenue, valuations of privately held equity securities and amortization of assets recognized. The
Corporation bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to
be reasonable, the result of which forms the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and
liabilities. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash represents current accounts and demand deposits held at financial institutions. The Corporation considers
all highly liquid investments with a maturity, when purchased, of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Cash equivalents include short-term highly liquid investments of sufficient credit quality that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and have original maturities of three months or less. Cash equivalents are carried
at cost, plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value. Cash equivalents are held to meet short-term
liquidity requirements, rather than for investment purposes. Cash and cash equivalents are held at major financial
institutions and are subject to credit risk to the extent those balances exceed applicable Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) limitations.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable consist of amounts due from customers on revenue contracts contracted directly by TMA and
is recorded on the balance sheet as “Accounts receivables, net”. As of March 31, 2021 and 2020 the allowance
for doubtful accounts was $1,738,076 and $1,777,309, respectively. Accounts receivables for services rendered
to the parent company under the service contract are recorded separately on balance sheet as “Due from parent
company”. TML assumes the business and entrepreneurial risks relating to all customer transactions.

Equity method investments

The Corporation accounts for investments in which it has significant influence but not a controlling financial interest
using the equity method of accounting. Equity method investments are classified as “Equity Method Investments”
in the balance sheet.

Equity securities

The Corporation holds strategic investments in privately held equity securities in which the Corporation does not
have a controlling interest or significant influence. Privately held equity securities without a readily determinable
fair value are recorded at fair value as described. If, based on the terms of these privately held securities, the
Corporation determines that the Corporation exercises significant influence on the entity to which these securities
relate, the Corporation will apply the equity method of accounting for such investments.

Privately held equity securities are valued using significant unobservable inputs or data in an inactive market and
the valuation requires the Corporation’s judgment due to the absence of market prices and inherent lack of liquidity.
The carrying value is not adjusted for the Corporation’s privately held equity securities if there are no observable
price changes in a same or similar security from the same issuer or if there are no identified events or changes
in circumstances that may indicate impairment, as discussed below. In determining the estimated fair value of its
strategic investments in privately held companies, the Corporation utilizes the most recent data available to the
Corporation. Valuations of privately held companies are inherently complex due to the lack of readily available
market data. In addition, the determination of whether an orderly transaction is for a same or similar investment
requires significant management judgment including the nature of rights and obligations of the investments, the
extent to which differences in those rights and obligations would affect the fair values of those investments, and
the impact of any differences based on the stage of operational development of the investee.

The Corporation regularly assesses its privately held equity securities strategic investment portfolio for impairment.
The Corporation’s impairment analysis encompasses an assessment of the severity and duration of the
impairment and qualitative and quantitative analysis of other key factors including the investee’s financial metrics,
the investee’s products and technologies meeting or exceeding predefined milestones, market acceptance of
the product or technology, other competitive products or technology in the market, general market conditions,
management and governance structure of the investee, the investee’s liquidity, debt ratios and the rate at which
the investee is using its cash.
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(h) Property and equipment
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Property and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over an estimated
useful life of three to five years.

Deferred contract cost

Deferred contract cost is amortized at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over an estimated
useful life of three to five years.

Revenue and expenses

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which requires a corporation
to recognize revenue when the corporation transfers control of promised goods and services to the customer.
Revenue is recognized in an amount that reflects the consideration a company expects to receive in exchange for
those goods or services. A corporation also is required to disclose sufficient quantitative and qualitative information
to enable users of financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows arising from contracts with customers.

The Corporation adopted the provisions described in ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, also
referred to as Topic 606. The Corporation adopted the standard using the full retrospective method. The impact of
Topic 606 on reported revenue results was not material.

The Corporation determines the amount of revenue to be recognized through application of the following steps:-
Identification of the contract, or contracts with a customer;

- Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;

- Determination of the transaction price

- Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and

- Recognition of revenue when or as the Corporation satisfies the performance obligations.

TMA have entered in agreement with TML according to which TML have appointed TMA as a contract service
provider for providing onsite software development services (“contract service provider agreement” or “agreement”).
According to the terms of the agreement.

- TML will be securing contracts from customers for software development/modification of software and other
related services to customers based in the USA.

- TMA in certain cases may enter into contracts with customers based in the USA in its own name and will
render the agreed onsite services to TML.

- In respect of all contracts entered with customers, the entire underlying risk and rewards of such contracts
shall be with TML alone.

- Costs which are not in relation to provision of service but emanate out of or due to the contracts, will also be
reimbursed by TML.

TML pays remuneration to TMA for its services as contract service provider, on a cost-plus basis. This remuneration
represents revenue for TMA.

In those cases when TMA may enter into contracts with customers in its own name, TMA recognizes respective
revenue and accounts receivables from contract with customers in its books, however since according to the
contract service provider agreement the entire underlying risk and rewards of such contracts is with TML alone
and this revenue is fully repaid to TML, this revenue is fully netted and presented on net basis in these financial
statements.

Amounts of remuneration for provision of services in accordance with the contract service provider agreement are
recorded as revenue in the statement of operations. Accounts receivables due from TML in accordance with this
agreement are recorded as “Due from parent company”.

TMA fully repays revenue contracted directly by TMA to TML. Accounts payable due to TML for revenue contracted
directly by TMA are recorded in “Due to parent company” on the balance sheet. Expenses are recorded when
incurred.

13
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(k) Unbilled revenue
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Unbilled revenue include revenue recognized in relation to efforts incurred on time and material contracts not billed
as of the end of the reporting period and where services have been performed in accordance with the terms of
respective contracts with customers.

Income taxes

TMA accounts for income taxes using Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) 740, Income Taxes. Under FASB ASC 740, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. Under SB ASC 740 the effect on the deferred tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. TMA records valuation
allowances against deferred tax assets as deemed necessary.

Per FASB ASC 740-10-20, the Corporation follows the recognition requirements for uncertain tax positions as
required by generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. Income tax benefits are
recognized for income tax positions taken on expected to be taken in a tax return, only when it is determined
that the income tax position will more-likely-than-not be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. The
Corporation has analyzed tax positions taken for filing with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and all state
jurisdictions where it operates. “

In accordance with guidance in ASC 740-10-30-27, the Corporation uses a “separate return” method to allocate
current and deferred taxes or benefits to members of the consolidated return group (“TMA and subsidiaries”) by
applying ASC 740 to each member as if they were separate tax payers. Under the “separate return” method, the
subsidiary is assumed to file a separate return with the taxing authority, thereby reporting its taxable income or
loss and paying the applicable tax to or receiving the appropriate refund from the parent. Management concluded
that no provision for income tax is required in the Corporation’s financial statements as a result of uncertain tax
positions.

Related parties

Related parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control or jointly control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operational decisions. Key management
personnel are also regarded as related parties. Key management personnel are those persons having authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including
any director (whether executive or otherwise).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Corporation becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately
in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Corporation, when deemed appropriate, uses derivatives as a risk management tool to mitigate the potential
impact of certain market risks. The primary market risks managed by the Corporation through the use of derivative
instruments is interest rate risk. All derivatives are carried at fair value in our balance sheet in the following line
items, derivative financial liabilities as applicable. The cash flow impact of the Corporation’s derivative instruments
is primarily included in the statement of cash flows in net cash provided by operating activities

Fair value - definition and hierarchy

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

In determining fair value, the Corporation uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The valuation techniques used by the Corporation to determine fair
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value are consistent with the income approaches. The Corporation determines fair value based on assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability in the principal or most advantageous market.
When considering market participant assumptions in fair value measurements, the following fair value hierarchy
distinguishes between observable and unobservable inputs, which are categorized in one of the following levels:

- Level 1 —Valuations based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the Fund has the ability to access

- Level 2 —Valuations based on inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable either
directly or indirectly

- Level 3 — Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value
measurement.”

Fair value is a market-based measure, based on assumptions of prices and inputs considered from the perspective
of a market participant that are current as of the measurement date, rather than an entity-specific measure.
Therefore, even when observable inputs are not readily available, the Corporation’s own assumptions are set to
reflect those that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

The availability of valuation techniques and observable inputs can vary from investment to investment and are
affected by a wide variety of factors, including the type of investment, whether the investment is new and not yet
established in the marketplace, the liquidity of markets, and other characteristics particular to the transaction. To
the extent that valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or unobservable in the market,
the determination of fair value requires more judgment. Because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, those
estimated values may be materially higher or lower than the values that would have been used had a ready market
for the investments existed. Accordingly, the degree of judgment exercised by the Corporation in determining fair
value is greatest for investments categorized in Level 3. In some cases, the inputs used to measure fair value
might be categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, the fair value measurement
is generally categorized in its entirety in the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement.

Leases (policy applicable beginning April 1, 2019)

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02, “Leases (Topic 842)” (“ASU 2016-
02"), which requires lessees to record most leases on their balance sheets but recognize the expenses on their
statements of operations in a manner similar to current accounting rules. ASU 2016-02 states that a lessee would
recognize a lease liability for the obligation to make lease payments and a right-to-use asset for the right to use the
underlying asset for the lease term. The new standard is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2020 (i.e. calendar periods beginning on January 1, 2021) on a modified retrospective basis. The
Corporation performed early adoption of the ASU 2016-02 on a modified retrospective basis as of April 1, 2019.

The Corporation is a lessee in several non-cancellable operating leases, primarily for office space. The Corporation
accounts for leases in accordance with ASC Topic 842, Leases. The Corporation determines if an arrangement
is or contains a lease at contract inception. The Corporation recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a lease
liability at the lease commencement date.

For operating leases, the lease liability is initially and subsequently measured at the present value of the unpaid
lease payments at the lease commencement date. For finance leases, the lease liability is initially measured in
the same manner and date as for operating leases and is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective-interest method. Key estimates and judgments include how the Corporation determines the discount rate
it uses to discount the unpaid lease payments to present value, lease term and lease payments.

ASC 842 requires a lessee to discount its unpaid lease payments using the interest rate implicit in the lease
or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, its incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Corporation cannot
determine the interest rate implicit in the lease because it does not have access to the lessor’s estimated residual
value or the amount of the lessor’s deferred initial direct costs. Therefore, the Corporation generally uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for the lease. The Corporation’s incremental borrowing rate for a
lease is the rate of interest it would have to pay on a collateralized basis to borrow an amount equal to the lease
payments under similar terms. Because the Corporation does not generally borrow on a collateralized basis, it
uses the interest rate it pays on its non-collateralized borrowings as an input to deriving an appropriate incremental
borrowing rate, adjusted for the amount of the lease payments, the lease term and the effect on that rate of
designating specific collateral with a value equal to the unpaid lease payments for that lease. The lease term for all
of the Corporation’s leases includes the non - cancellable period of the lease plus any additional periods covered
by either a Corporation option to extend (or not to terminate) the lease that the Corporation is reasonably certain
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to exercise, or an option to extend (or not to terminate) the lease controlled by the lessor.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

- Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments, owed over the lease term (which includes termination
penalties the Corporation would owe if the lease term assumes Corporation exercise of a termination option);

- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
lease commencement date;

- Amounts expected to be payable under a Corporation-provided residual value guarantee; and

- The exercise price of a Corporation option to purchase the underlying asset if the Corporation is reasonably
certain to exercise the option.

The ROU asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred less any
lease incentives received.

For operating leases, the ROU asset is subsequently measured throughout the lease term at the carrying amount of
the lease liability, plus initial direct costs, plus (minus) any prepaid (accrued) lease payments, less the unamortized
balance of lease incentives received.

Lease expense for lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

ROU assets for operating and finance leases are periodically reduced by impairment losses. The Corporation uses
the long-lived assets impairment guidance in ASC Subtopic 360-10, Property, Plant, and Equipment — Overall, to
determine whether a ROU asset is impaired, and if so, the amount of the impairment loss to recognize.

The Corporation monitors for events or changes in circumstances that require a reassessment of one of its leases.
When a reassessment results in the remeasurement of a lease liability, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the corresponding ROU asset unless doing so would reduce the carrying amount of the ROU
asset to an amount less than zero. In that case, the amount of the adjustment that would result in a negative ROU
asset balance is recorded in profit or loss.

Operating lease ROU assets are presented as operating lease right of use assets on the balance sheet. The
current and the long-term portion of operating lease liabilities are presented separately as operating lease liabilities
on the balance sheet.

(g) Commitments and contingencies

Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims, assessments, litigation, fines, and penalties and other sources
are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated.
Legal costs incurred in connection with loss contingencies are expensed as incurred.

(r) Reclassifications

The Corporation has reclassified certain amounts relating to its prior period results to conform to its current period
presentation. These changes were mainly made from general and administrative expenses and is presented
separately on the statement of operations. Derivative financial liabilities was reclassified between current and non-
current. These changes have not impacted the results of operations of prior periods.

Significant Risks and Uncertainties Including Business and Credit Concentrations

The Corporation is subject to credit risk to the extent any financial institution or customer with which it conducts
business is unable to fulfil contracted obligations on its behalf. Management monitors the financial condition of those
financial institutions and counterparties.

The Corporation’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and
cash equivalents, amounts due from the parent company and equity securities.

As described in Note 1 (j), TMA entered in agreement with TML according to which TML have appointed TMA as a
contract service provider for providing onsite software development services. Accordingly, all revenue of TMA comes
from TML, the parent company of TMA. For the summary of all transactions of TMA with TML, refer to Note 23.

Total amount of revenue recorded for the year ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 was $992,012,421 and $1,100,243,365,
respectively. Total amount due from the parent company as of March 31, 2021 and 2020 was $111,497,948 and
$80,948,922, respectively. Total amount of revenue, which was directly contracted by TMA and remitted to the Parent
company for the year ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to $22,211,946 and $72,227,427, respectively.

For information about revenue and accounts receivables concentration, on revenue contracted directly by TMA, refer
to Note 4.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

As of March 31, cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following: 2021 2020
Current accounts with banks 6,671,655 1,586,269
Money market mutual funds - 66,000,000
Total $ 6,671,655 $ 67,586,269

The Corporation places its cash on deposit with financial institution in the United States of America. Cash and cash
equivalents are subject to credit risk to the extent those balances exceed applicable Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation limitations. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation covers $250,000 for substantially all depository
accounts.

Accounts Receivable, net

TMA in certain cases may enter into contracts with customers based in the USA in its own name and will render the
agreed onsite services to TML. Revenue contracted directly by TMA and subsequently transferred back to TML has
been treated as agency transactions for the purpose of these financial statements and accordingly presented on net
basis.

As of March 31, accounts receivable consisted of the following: 2021 2020
Amounts due for services rendered and billed 5,488,320 7,723,362
Allowance for doubtful accounts (660,076) (1,777,309)
Amounts due for services rendered and billed, net 4,828,244 5,946,053
Amounts due for services rendered, not billed 520,868 2,139,197
Total $ 5,349,112 $ 8,085,250

Bad debt write-off was $321,352 and $986,510 for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020, respectively..
(a) Trade receivables: credit risk

The credit periods offered to customers vary according to the credit risk profiles of, and the invoicing conventions
established in, the entity’s markets. The contractual terms on invoices issued to customers vary and are payable
upon receipt or immediate to within 120 days.

Aging analysis of trade receivables, is as follows:

Less than 30 Between 30to  More than 60 Total
days 60 days days
Accounts receivable, gross as of 3,963,590 544,112 980,618 $ 5,488,320
March 31, 2021
Accounts receivable, gross as of 4,568,610 590,680 2,564,072 $ 7,723,362

March 31, 2020
(b) Revenue contracted directly by TMA and accounts receivables concentration

The Corporation provides services to customers in diversified customer base and geographic regions and,
therefore, has low concentration of credit risk. The Corporation continuously evaluates the credit worthiness of its
customers and generally does not require collateral.

Billed accounts receivable concentrations:

Three customers had accounts receivables balances that accounted for more than 10% of gross accounts
receivables balance as of March 31, 2021. Total amount of accounts receivables balances of these customers
amounted to $2,866,397, or 52% of gross accounts receivables balance as of March 31, 2021.

Accounts receivable concentration as of March 31, 2021

Amount Concentration, %

Customer 1 $1,784,852 31%
Customer 2 $679,993 12%
Customer 3 $401,552 7%
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Three customers had accounts receivables balances that each individually accounted for more than 10% of gross
accounts receivables balance as of March 31, 2020. Total amount of accounts receivables balances of these
customers amounted to $2,632,019, or 34% of gross accounts receivables balance as of March 31, 2020.

Accounts receivable concentration as of March 31, 2020

Amount Concentration, %

Customer 1 $894,654
Customer 2 $881,756
Customer 3 $855,609

12%
1%
1%

Revenue from 3 customers, which individually accounted for 10% or more of total revenue contracted directly by
TMA amounted to $8,451,282 for the year ended March 31, 2021, or 38% from total revenue contracted directly

by TMA.

Concentration of revenue contracted directly by TMA for the year ended March 31, 2021

Amount Concentration, %

Customer 1 $3,737,070
Customer 2 $2,443,734
Customer 3 $2,270,478

17%
1%
10%

Revenue from 3 customers, which individually accounted for 10% or more of total revenue contracted directly by
TMA amounted to $24,723,372 for the year ended March 31, 2020, or 39% from total revenue contracted directly

by TMA.

Concentration of revenue contracted directly by TMA for the year ended March 31, 2020

Amount Concentration, %

Customer 1 $9,218,080 15%
Customer 2 $7,768,066 12%
Customer 3 $7,737,226 12%
5 Notes Receivable/ Due from Affiliated Companies
(a) Notes Receivable from Affiliated Companies
Notes receivable from affiliated companies consist of the following as of March 31, 2021:
Note amount Accrued % rate Maturity Carrying %
interest amount payments
Note receivable from Tech Mahindra Servicos de Informatica LTDA, Brazil, current
3,000,000 328,810 USD - Quarterly
Libor+1%
Note amount Accrued % rate Maturity Carrying %
interest amount payments
Note receivable from Lightbridge Communication, Current
3,000,000 150,105 USD September, 5,150,105 Quarterly
Libor+1% 2021
Note amount Accrued % rate Maturity Carrying %
interest amount payments
Note receivable from Lightbridge Communication, Current
2,000,000 651 uUsD September, 2,000,651 Quarterly
Libor+1% 2021
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Notes receivable from affiliated companies consist of the following as of March 31, 2020:

Note amount Accrued % rate Maturity Carrying %

interest amount payments

Note receivable from Tech Mahindra Servicos de Informatica LTDA, Brazil, Current*

3,000,000 218,709 uUsD September, 3,218,709 Quarterly
Libor+1% 2020

2021 2020
Notes receivable from Affiliated Companies - current portion 7,000,000 3,000,000
Accrued interest 698,275 218,709
Total $ 7,698,275 $ 3,218,709

All notes receivable from affiliated companies are unsecured. Accrued interest income from notes receivable from
affiliated companies is included in prepaid expenses and other current assets.

* The note is overdue and an impairment provision was raised in the current year for the carrying amount of
$3,328,810.

(b) Due from affiliated companies
The balance due from affiliates includes a balance of $0.3 million (2020: $10.6 million) with an offsetting provision.
Income Taxes

TMA accounts for income taxes under the provisions of the FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes, as described in Note 1
above.:

Current income tax expense consists of the following: 2021 2020
Federal 13,449,565 12,408,735
State 4,586,178 4,472,086
Total $ 18,035,743 $ 16,880,821

Deferred income tax expense benefit consists of the following:

2021 2020
Other - (2,096,698)
Federal (4,640,009) (1,052,024)
State (1,765,714) (780,613)
Total (6,405,723) (3,929,335)
Total current and deferred income tax expense $ 11,630,020 $ 12,951,486
Deferred tax asset consists of the following: 2021 2020
Federal 24,393,072 23,485,687
State 4,854,492 4,121,977
Total $ 29,247,564 $ 27,607,664

As of March 31, 2021, and 2020, TMA had utilized all federal net operating losses (NOLs) available to be utilized for the
respective years which were carried forward from prior years. TMA had utilized all state net operating losses (NOLs)
available to be utilized for the respective years which were carried forward from prior years. TMA expects to be able to
utilize the entire deferred tax benefit, therefore, no valuation allowance has been recorded to reduce the asset.

In accordance with the tax sharing arrangement between the Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiary, LCC, the
Corporation recorded an amount payable to LCC as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, of $2.7 million and $32.8 million for
LCC’s NOL that the Corporation is able to utilize as part of filing a consolidated Federal income tax return. The amount
payable to LCC was during the 2021 financial year. The closing amount of the deferred tax asset consists primarily of
LCC’s NOL.

In the ordinary course of business there are many transactions with affiliated companies that affect the calculation and
estimation of the Corporation’s tax liability. Although management believes that the Corporation’s tax estimates are
reasonable, there is no assurance that the final determination of tax liability will not be different from what is reflected
in the Corporation’s historical income tax provisions and accruals. As of March 31, 2021, the Corporation’s tax years
from 2016 to 2021 are open for examination by Federal and state tax authorities
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7 Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, net, consisted of the following as of March 31,

20

2021 2020
Plant and machinery 26,764,034 26,805,903
Computer and software 55,391,707 46,848,077
Furniture and equipment 1,747,039 2,134,439
Leasehold improvements 1,404,822 1,606,419
Office equipment 1,359,252 1,687,449
Accumulated depreciation (73,614,474) (64,975,068)
Total $ 13,052,380 $ 14,107,219

Reconciliation of carrying value of property and equipment for the year ended March 31, was as follows:

Refer to footnote 1(a) for a description of the listed investments.

2021 2020
Carrying value at the beginning of the year 14,107,219 16,436,681
Additions 9,802,392 10,906,601
Disposals (2,217,826) (10,474,438)
Accumulated depreciation on disposals 2,161,921 10,461,716
Depreciation (10,801,326) (13,223,341)
Carrying value at the end of the year $ 13,052,380 $ 14,107,219
8 Intangible Assets Acquired through Business Combinations
At March 31, intangible assets are summarized as follows:
2021 2020
Customer lists 23,424,422 23,424,422
Accumulated amortization (14,787,322) (12,275,205)
Carrying value at the end of the year $ 8,637,100 $ 11,149,217
9 Investments in Subsidiaries
2021 2020
Tech Talenta, Inc. 500,000 500,000
Lightbridge Communication Corporation 159,021,946 159,021,946
Tech Mahindra Healthcare Systems Holdings LLC 104,162,140 97,040,520
Madpow Media Solutions 28,324,430 28,324,430
Objectwise Consulting Group 1,805,691 1,694,010
Zen3 Infosolutions (America) Inc. 51,339,287 -
Tech Mahindra Credit Solutions Inc. 100,000 -
Total $ 345,253,494 $ 252,492,208
Refer to footnote 1(a) for a description of the listed investments.
10 Equity Method Investments
Avion Systems, Inc. 2021 2020
Investment cost 3,000,000 3,000,000
Profit receivable from associate 33,676 33,676
Provision (3,033,676) (3,033,676)
Carrying value $ - $-
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Equity Securities

As of March 31, 2021, equity securities consisted of the following:

2021 2020
Altiostar Networks, Inc. - 15,000,000
Sierra Private Investments LP - 10,000,000
VitalTech Holdings Inc. 3,000,001 -
Total $ 3,000,001 $ 25,000,000

As of March 31, 2021, current equity securities consisted of the following:

2021 2020
Sierra Private Investments LP (**) 10,000,000 -
Total $ 10,000,000 $-

** The Corporation has the right to sell its T units at the original value plus compounded interest subject to terms and
conditions tied to certain rights of the counterparty. See note 24 for additional disclosure.

Other Assets

As of March 31, other assets consisted of the following:

2021 2020
Deferred contract cost, net 123,399,773 153,125,298
Total $ 123,399,773 $ 153,125,298

Deferred contract cost comprises of technology license agreements and capitalized as other assets.
Short-Term Debt

Short-term debt comprises of unsecured revolving credit facilities of $100 million and $80 million attracting interest at
variable rates. The revolving credit facilities are renewed on a 90 and 180 day basis, respectively. Accrued interest
payable on borrowing facilities as of March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 was included within accrued expenses and
other current financial liabilities.

Note Payable to Affiliated Company

On March 31, 2020, the Corporation signed short-term borrowing agreement with affiliated company, the CJS Solutions
Group LLC, with total credit limit of $40 million at an % rate of USD LIBOR + 1%. On March 31, 2020 TMA obtained
$37.5 million from the CJS Solutions Group LLC under this borrowing facility. The loan was received for a period
of 30 days, and matured on April 30, 2020. On March 31, 2021 the Corporation entered into an intercompany loan
agreement with Tech Mahindra Technologies Inc. with a total credit limit of $5 million at an % rate of USD 1.0068% with
an expiration date of September 30, 2021.

Due to Affiliated Companies

Due to affiliated companies consisted of the following at March 31:

2021 2020
Payable to Lightbridge Communication Corporation under tax sharing 2,696,671 32,800,262
arrangement
Other accrued expenses due to other affiliated companies 2,612,229 3,105,394
Total $ 5,308,900 $ 35,905,656

(*) In accordance with the tax sharing arrangement between the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary, LCC, the
Company recorded an amount payable to LCC as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, of $32,800,262 and $32,409,683 for
LCC's NOL that the Company is able to utilize as part of filing a consolidated Federal income tax return.
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16 Accrued Expenses and Other Current Financial Liabilities and Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current financial liabilities consisted of the following at March 31:

2021 2020
Accrued expenses 23,058,762 37,672,882
Financial liability under license agreements - current portion 34,578,750 34,631,933
Accrued expenses - subcontracted associates 22,224,578 22,016,356
Accrued payroll compensation 13,223,388 14,038,300
Other payroll related liabilities 21,727,666 14,886,864
Contingent consideration - current portion 11,286,371 8,532,723
Accrued payroll related taxes (*) 11,429,614 1,087,938
Accrued interest expenses on notes payable 228,196 723,192
Derivative financial liabilities 598,335 1,504,191
Other current liabilities 1,310,201 1,450,783
Total $ 139,665,861 $ 136,545,162

Other non-current financial liabilities consisted of the following at March 31:

2021 2020
Financial liability under license agreements — long-term portion 60,310,635 100,425,362
Contingent consideration — long-term portion 14,729,305 5,568,469
Other payroll related liabilities — long-term portion 3,973,390 3,823,001
Accrued payroll related taxes - long-term portion (*) 10,405,060 -
Derivative financial liabilities - long-term portion - 151,957
Total $ 89,418,390 $ 109,968,789

* Due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic the Corporation was allowed a deferral of the employer portion of social
security tax deposits for the period between April and December 2020, TMA entered into a tax credit and deferral
agreement.

The following table shows the remaining undiscounted cash flows for the financial liability under the license agreements:

2021

Future obligation commitment
Year one 34,578,750
Years two to four 62,395,926
Total undiscounted liability 96,974,676
Imputed interest 2,085,291
Total amortized cost under contractual obligation $ 94,889,385

17 Common Stock

2021 2020
Ordinary shares of $1 each Number of Number of
shares shares
Issued and fully paid 170,521,745 170,521,745

The Corporation is authorized to issue 220,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $1 per share, of which
170,521,745 shares were issued and outstanding on March 31, 2021 and 2020.

The sole shareholder, TML; being the sole owner of common stock is entitled to one vote per share, and to receive
dividends and, upon liquidation or dissolution, is entitled to receive all assets available for distribution to stockholders.
There are no preemptive or other subscription rights and there are no redemption or sinking fund provisions with
respect to such shares.
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Employee Benefits

TMA’s medical benefits are provided under a partially self-insured plan and a contract with an insurance company for
major stop-loss coverage. Under the insurance contract, TMA is liable for all expenses under an aggregate annual
maximum based on the number of persons covered. Management has included in accrued expenses claims payable
and an estimate of incurred but not paid claims as of the year end.

Employees of TMA may be allotted/granted shares in TML in terms of several Employee Stock Option plans. The
allotment of options to eligible employees is decided by the Compensation Committee which is comprised of certain
directors of TML. However, it is the opinion of management that the options granted to the employees relate to the
services rendered to the parent company and therefore need not be accounted for by TMA under FASB ASC 718,
Compensation - Stock Compensation as these options relate to shares of TML.

Leases
Information as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021:

The Corporation has several non-cancellable operating leases, primarily for office space that expire over the next
five years. These leases generally contain renewal options for periods ranging from two to five years. Because the
Corporation is not reasonably certain to exercise these renewal options, the options are not considered in determining
the lease term and associated potential option payments are excluded from lease payments. The Corporation’s leases
generally do not include termination options for either party to the lease or restrictive financial or other covenants.
Payments due under the lease contracts include mainly fixed payments.

Total lease cost for the year ended March 31, 2021 amounted to $4,549,751.

Amounts reported in the balance sheet as of March 31, 2020 were as follows:

Operating leases: 2021 2020
Operating lease ROU assets 10,409,733 11,104,937
Operating lease liabilities — short-term 4,256,480 4,218,394
Operating lease liabilities — long-term 5,695,523 7,488,766
Total operating lease liabilities $ 9,952,003 $ 11,707,160

Maturities of operating lease liabilities under non-cancellable leases as of March 31, 2021 are as follows:

Operating
leases
In 1 year 4,255,810
In 2 to 5 years 5,821,897
Thereafter 212,270
Total undiscounted lease payments 10,289,977
Less: imputed interest (337,974)
Total lease liabilities $9,952,003

Other information related to leases as of March 31, 2021 was as follows:
2021 2020

Supplemental cash flow information

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities: (4,507,056) (3,997,117)
ROU assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations 1,796,674 15,415,856
Reductions to ROU assets resulting from reductions to lease obligations (1,672,332) (4,310,919)
Weighted average remaining lease term 2 years 2 years
Weighted-average discount rate 2% 2%
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20 Commitments and Contingencies

21

The Corporation is involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion
of management, the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s
financial position, results of operations, or liquidity.

Mergers with Companies under Common Control
Mahindra Technologies Services Inc.

On May 19, 2019 the Board of Directors approved the transfer of the entire issued and outstanding capital of Mahindra
Technologies Services Inc. (“MTSI”) to TMA, for consideration to be paid in the amount of $1,169,651. The separate
existence of MTSI ceased on July 1, 2019, which management considered as the effective date of the merger. The
results of operations for April 1, 2019 to June 30, 2019 in the amount of $103 was included in TMA’s results as though
the transfer of net assets had occurred at the beginning of the period. From that date to the end of the period and all
future periods the results of MTSI will be those of the combined operations. The substance of the MTSI transaction did
not result in a change of reporting entity for TMA and was prospectively accounted for as described above.

Net value
acquired
Assets
Cash 1,088,403
Accounts receivable, net 7,174
Tax receivable 20,057
Deferred taxes 68,040
1,183,674
Liabilities
Accrued expenses (9,954)
(9,954)
Net value acquired 1,173,720
Prior periods retained earnings included on April 1, 2019 (123,616)
Consideration paid over net asset value acquired 119,547
Consideration paid 1,169,651

22 Financial Instruments

24

Interest rate swap - designated as a hedge

Derivative financial instruments are used by the Corporation principally in the management of its interest rate exposures.
The Corporation does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. For derivative instruments
that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges, the gain or loss on the effective portion of the derivative is
reported as a component of other comprehensive income and reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods
during which the hedged transaction affects earnings.

Interest Rate Swaps. The Corporation uses interest rate swaps to manage its interest rate risk. The swaps are
designated as cash flow hedges with the changes in fair value recorded in AOCI and as a derivative asset or liability, as
applicable. The swaps settle periodically in arrears with the related amounts for the current settlement period payable
to, or receivable from, the counter-parties included in accrued liabilities or receivables, respectively, and recognized in
earnings as an adjustment to Interest Expense from the underlying debt to which the swap is designated. As of March
31,2021 and 2020, the Corporation had a series of U.S. dollar denominated interest rate swaps outstanding with
effectively fixing the interest on variable rate debt, exclusive of lender spreads, on a floating leg for a specified notional
principal amount.
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The Corporation’s interest rate swap derivative financial instruments at March 31, 2021 are as follows:

Average Contracted Notional Principal Value Fair Value assets
Fixed Interest Rate (liabilities)
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
% %

Cash Flow Hedges
Outstanding receive floating pay
fixed contracts
Less than 1 year 1.83% 1.76% 43,000,000 75,000,000 (598,336) 1,504,191
1to 2 years 0.79% - 22,000,000 - 118,185 -
2 to 5 years - 0.79% - 22,000,000 - 151,957

The fair values of derivative instruments as of March 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows.

2021 2020

Fair value Fair value

Derivative Assets 118,184 -
Derivative Liabilities (598,335) (1,656,148)

$ (480,151) $ (1,656,148)

Transaction with Parent Company

As stated in Note | and Note 2 above, TMA has entered into revenue sharing agreement with TML, its parent company.
The transactions with TML are summarized below:

Year ended March 31,

2021 2020
Beginning balance, due from parent company 50,410,753 105,404,633
External contract revenue recharge to parent company (22,211,946) (72,227,428)
Cost of services - -
Income from parent company 995,133,265 1,100,243,365
Payments to parent company 30,638,218 144,228,948
Collections from parent company (979,249,908)
(1,221,593,739)
Expense reimbursement - debit/credit notes 9,108,080 (5,645,026)
Ending balance, due from parent company $ 83,828,462 $ 50,410,753
Due (to) from parent consists of: 2021 2020
Amounts due to parent company (27,669,486) (30,538,169)
Amounts due from parent company 111,497,948 80,948,922

$ 83,828,462 $ 50,410,753

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables summarize those assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

The fair values of the Corporation’s financial assets and liabilities by category as at March 31, 2021 were as follows.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Equity securities 13,000,001 - - 13,000,001
Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities (481,151) - - (481,151)
Total $ 12,518,850 $- $- $12,518,850
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The fair values of the Corporation’s financial assets and liabilities by category as at March 31, 2020 were as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Equity securities 25,000,000 - - 25,000,000
Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities (1,656,148) - - (1,656,148)
Total $ 23,343,852 $- $- $23,343,852

Liabilities related to contingent consideration that are measured at fair value in connection with certain acquisitions
have not been categorized in the fair value hierarchy but are included in Note 16.

Subsequent Events

The Corporation has evaluated subsequent events through May 7, 2021, the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.

Tech Mahindra (Americas), Inc. has entered into a purchase agreement with Eventus Solutions Group, LLC on April
26, 2021 with a purchase price of $44 million.

During April of 2021, the Corporation liquidated its holdings of T units in Maviner, indirectly through Sierra, in exchange
for the original value assigned of $10 million plus interest.

The Corporation has committed to acquiring 100% of DigitalOnUs Inc. along with its subsidiaries, other than the Indian
entity. The Indian subsidiary of the target will be acquired directly through Tech Mahindra Ltd, India (TML). The total
purchase consideration for the deal is $120 million.

The Corporation incorporated a 100% subsidiary, Healthnxt Inc. on April 27, 2021.

Except as discussed above, no significant events occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to May 7,
2021, that would have a material impact on the financial statements.

Supplemental schedules of revenue and expenses for the year ended March 31, 2021 and for the year ended March
31, 2020

(All amounts are in USD) 2021 2020

Schedule |

Revenue

- External contracted revenue 22,111,946 72,227,428

- Transfers to parent and affiliated companies (22,111,946) (72,227,428)

Total - -

- Revenue from parent 992,012,421 1,100,243,365

Total $992,012,421 $1,100,243,365
2021 2020

Schedule I

Personnel expenses

- Payroll expenses (475,871,900) (505,298,592)

- Other employee compensation (39,470,140) (27,044,036)

- Payroll taxes (37,377,036) (40,874,711)

- Employee benefits - health insurance (29,094,663) (28,336,828)

Total $ (581,813,739) $ (601,554,167)
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Schedule llI
Subcontracting expenses

Subcontracting expenses - associates
Subcontracting expenses - project specific expenses
Subcontracting expenses - intercompany

Total

Schedule IV
General administrative and other expenses

Communications

Visa fees

Lease expense

Office expenses

Legal expenses

Professional fees

Travel

Miscellaneous

Amortization of prepaid employee costs related to business combinations
Sales and other indirect taxes refund / (expense)
Insurance

Sales and marketing

Entertainment

Short tenure office leases

Total

2021

2020

(157,911,088)
(60,279,414)
(2,819,615)

(182,951,184)
(111,908,533)
(10,044,846)

$ (221,010,117)

$ (304,904,563)

2021 2020
(7,810,624) (8,035,488)
(7,410,089) (14,793,990)
(4,549,791) (4,599,340)
(4,078,046) (5,873,626)
(3,878,825) (10,288,706)
(3,669,664) (3,443,298)
(2,579,408) (15,416,750)
(2,487,752) (1,059,295)
(1,361,445) (2,083,333)

(608,065) (1,468,578)
(602,658) (444,319)
(601,380) (1,916,633)
(160,621) (1,192,610)

- (635,765)

$ (39,798,368)

$ (71,251,731)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Your Directors present their Report together with the audited accounts of your Corporation for the year ended March 31,
2021.

Financial Results:

For the year ended March 31 2021 2020

usb usb
Income 10,940,885 20,763,983
Profit/(Loss) before tax 47,742 1,082,312
Profit/(Loss)after tax 38,804 802,658

Review of operations:

During the fiscal year under review the Corporation achieved an income of US$ 10.94 Mn. The Corporation is engaged in
the business of recruitment, fulfilment and on-going management of local temporary contractor resources in the areas of IT
Development, Product Engineering and IT Systems Support Operations. Tech Talenta Inc is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Tech Mahindra (Americas), Inc.

Board:

During the year under review, there is no change in the constitution of Board Mr. Manish M Vyas and Mr. Guru Prasad R
lyengar are the members of the Board of Directors.

Outlook for the current year:

The Corporation will continue to focus on vendor development and fulfilling staff augmentation need for Tech Mahindra
operation.

Acknowledgements:

Your Directors gratefully acknowledge the contributions made by the employees towards the success of the Corporation.
Your Directors also thank the customers, suppliers, bankers, State and Federal Government Authorities and the shareholder
for the co-operation and assistance received from them.

Manish M Vyas
Director

Place: Texas
Date: April 30, 2021
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TECH TALENTA INC
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To:Board of Directors

Tech Talenta Inc.

a Texas Corporation,

a wholly owned subsidiary of Tech Mahindra (Americas), Inc.
Plano, Texas

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tech Talenta Inc. a Texas Corporation, which comprise the
balance sheets as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of operations and retained earnings and cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Tech
Talenta Inc as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Tech Talenta Inc and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Other matters

As discussed in notes 35 and 36 to the financial statements, the Company has had numerous transactions with the parent
company.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The Supplemental
Schedules of Revenue and Expenses on page 40 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Tech Talenta Inc’s ability to continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements, including
omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
»  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Tech Talenta Inc.
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internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

»  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about Tech Talenta Inc’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the
audit.

CKH CPAs and Advisors, LLC
Atlanta, Georgia
April 30, 2021
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BALANCE SHEETS

Notes

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net 3
Employee advances

Prepaid expenses

Due from parent company 6
Due from affiliated companies 7

Non-current assets
Property and equipment, net 4

Deferred tax asset 5

Total Assets

Current liabilities
Accrued expenses
Accounts payable

Due to parent company
Due to affiliate companies
Income tax payable

Total liabilities

Stockholder's Equity

Common stock - $1 par value, 500,000 shares

authorized, issued and outstanding 8
Retained earnings

Equity attributable to stockholder's of the Company

Total Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity
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2021 2020

$ $

711,756 122,514
53,541 3,020,215

- 12,793

2,424 30,597
2,435,086 1,166,994
2,935,245 2,695,000
6,138,052 7,048,113
157,201 65,591
6,295,253 7,113,704
1,088,911 2,139,662
210,719 30,863
49,553 6,819
132,228 161,321
1,481,411 2,338,665
500,000 500,000
4,313,842 4,275,039
4,813,842 4,775,039
6,295,253 7,113,704




TECH TALENTA INC
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS YEARS ENDED MARCH 31,

Schedules 2021 2020
$ $
Revenue | 10,940,885 20,763,983
Operating expenses
Depreciation - 899
Personnel cost 1] 5,498,409 10,309,131
Subcontracting expenses Il 5,162,810 9,057,535
General and administrative \Y] 243,726 316,191
10,904,945 19,683,756
Operating income 35,940 1,080,227
Non-operating income:
Other income 11,802 2,027
Foreign currency exchange - 58
Income before income tax expense 47,742 1,082,312
Income tax expense Note 5 8,938 279,654
Net Income 38,804 802,658
Retained earnings, beginning of period 4,275,038 3,472,380
Retained earnings, end of period 4,313,842 4,275,038

All revenue and profit for the year is generated from continuing operations
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TECH TALENTA INC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS YEARS ENDED MARCH 31,

2021 2020
$ $

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income 38,804 802,658
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation - 899
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense (91,610) (13,857)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable, net 2,966,674 (857,332)
Employee advances 12,793 7,412
Income tax payable (29,093) 71,325
Prepaid expenses 28,170 (30,597)
Due from parent company (1,268,092) 882,919
Due from affiliate companies (240,245) (1,976,790)
Accounts payable 179,856 (174,566)
Accrued expenses (1,050,751) 1,047,114
Balance due to parent company 42,734 (22,784)
Afiliated companies - (35,917)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 589,242 (299,516)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 589,242 (299,516)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 122,514 422,030
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 711,756 122,514

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for income taxes 129,641 214,387
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TECH TALENTA INC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Tech Talenta Inc. (the “Company” or “TechT”) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Tech Mahindra (Americas), Inc. (“TMA”).
The Company was incorporated in the State of Texas on March 6, 2012. The Company is engaged in the business
of recruitment, fulfilment and ongoing management of local temporary contractor resources in the areas of IT
Development, Product Engineering, IT Systems Support and Operations for clients across North America.

On May 7, 2014, the Company registered a branch office in Canada. This branch was dissolved with the effective date
March 20, 2018.

On February 9, 2016, the Company registered a branch office in the United Kingdom. This branch was closed on
December 31, 2019.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of presentation of the financial statements

The Company has adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Codification (Codification or ASC). The
Codification is the single official source of authoritative accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America (U.S. GAAP) recognized by the FASB to be applied by non-governmental entities. All of the Codification’s
content carries the same level of authority.

Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalent.

The Company places its cash on deposit with financial institution in the United States of America. The Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation covers $250,000 for substantially all depository accounts. As of March 31, 2021, the Company
had a balance with the financial institution that exceeded the Federal insured limit by $461,756.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due from parent and affiliated companies’ customers for services
provided by the Company. Management’s estimates of uncollectible accounts is based upon an analysis of past due
accounts. Accounts are written off when all methods of collection have been exhausted.

Revenue Recognition

Effective October 1, 2013, the Company has entered into a contract with Tech Mahindra Limited (“TechM”), an affiliated
company. Under the contract TechM has agreed to reimburse TechT all direct project expenses and all indirect costs
plus 3% of these expenses.

Effective October 1, 2013, the Company has entered into a contract with Tech Mahindra (Americas) Inc.(“TMA”), the
parent company. Under the contract TMA, has agreed to reimburse TechT all direct project expenses and all indirect
costs plus 3% of these expenses.

Revenue is derived from services that are provided under time and material contracts. Revenue on fixed fee contracts
is recognized based on the percentage of completion method, which is calculated based on total hours incurred to total
estimated hours. Revenue on time and material contracts is recognized as the services are performed.

Unbilled revenue comprises of revenue recognized in relation to efforts incurred on time and material contracts not
billed as of the period end where services are performed in accordance with agreed terms.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes. Under FASB ASC 740, deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Under FASB ASC 740, the effect on the deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.
The Company records valuation allowances against deferred tax assets as deemed necessary.
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In terms of FASB ASC 740-10-20, the Company follows the recognition requirements for uncertain income tax positions
as required by generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. Income tax benefits are
recognized for income tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, only when it is determined that
the income tax position will more-likely-than-not be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. The Company
has analyzed tax positions taken for filing with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and all state jurisdictions where it
operates.

In accordance with guidance in ASC 740-10-30-27, the Company uses a “separate return” method to allocate current
and deferred taxes or benefits to members of the consolidated return group by applying ASC 740 to each member as if
they were separate tax payers. Under the “separate return” method, the subsidiary is assumed to file a separate return
with the taxing authority, thereby reporting its taxable income or loss and paying the applicable tax to or receiving the
appropriate refund from the parent.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the three
years estimated useful lives of the assets.

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to income as incurred. Additions and betterments are capitalized.
The cost of properties sold or otherwise disposed of, and the accumulated depreciated thereon, is eliminated from the
property and reserve accounts, and gains and losses are reflected in the statement of income.

Related parties

Related parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control or jointly control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operational decisions. Key management personnel
are also regarded as related parties. Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether
executive or otherwise).
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3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

The following table summarizes, our accounts receivable and other, that approximate fair value due to the immediate
to short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

2021 2020

$ $

Amounts due for services rendered, billed 371,016 2,639,453
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (369,913) (160,425)
1,103 2,479,028

Amounts due for services rendered, not billed 52,438 541,187
53,541 3,020,216

a) Trade receivables: credit risk

The entity’s exposure to the credit risk inherent in its trade receivables and the associated risk management
techniques that the entity deploys in order to mitigate this risk are discussed in c) below. The credit periods offered
to customers vary according to the credit risk profiles of, and the invoicing conventions established in, the entity’s
markets. The contractual terms on invoices issued to customers vary and are payable immediately or within 10
to 60 days. The allowance for bad and doubtful receivables is calculated based on prior experience reflecting the
level of uncollected receivables over the last year within each business.

On this basis, the billed aging analysis of trade receivables, is as follows:

Less than 30 Between 30 to More than 60 Total
days 60 days days $
$ $ $
The carrying amounts reported as at 108,404 21,202 241,410 371,016
March 31, 2021
The carrying amounts reported as at 1,392,439 149,322 1,097,692 2,639,453

March 31, 2020
b) Movement in the allowance account for bad and doubtful receivables
Bad debt movement was $209,488 (2020: $128,369) from the year ended March 31, 2021.
c) Revenue and accounts receivable concentrations

The Company provides services to customers in diversified customer base and geographic regions and, therefore,
has low concentrations of credit risk. The Company continuously evaluates the creditworthiness of its customers
and generally does not require collateral.

Revenue and Accounts receivable concentration:

Billed accounts receivable March 31,
2021 2020

Amount Concentration Amount Concentration
Customer 1 104,707 28% 1,823,750 22%
Customer 2 80,850 22% 199,455 22%
Customer 3 76,319 21% 115,402 16%
Revenue from third parties
Customer 1 522,351 39% 6,999,053 87%
Customer 2 232,477 18% 2,268,285 28%
Customer 4 197,211 15% 1,479,525 18%
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4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

2021 2020
$ $
Property and equipment are summarized as follows at March 31, 2021 and
2020:
Furniture and fixtures 88,701 88,701
Office equipment 9,848 9,848
Computers 25,817 25,817
Software 6,693 6,693
Less: accumulated depreciation (131,059) (131,059)

Depreciation expense was $0 and $899 for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Reconciliation of carrying value

2021 2020

$ $

Carrying value at the beginning of the year - -
Additions - -
Depreciation - (899)
Carrying value at the end of the year - (899)

5. INCOME TAXES

The Company accounts for income taxes under the provisions of the FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes, as discussed in
Note 2 above.

The components of the provisions for the income taxes for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 2020
$ $
Current
Federal 78,809 221,882
State 21,739 71,629
100,548 293,511
Deferred
Federal & State (91,610) (13,857)
(91,610) (13,857)
Total current and deferred income tax expense 8,938 279,654
Deferred tax asset consists of the following:
Federal 117,534 49,041
State 39,667 16,550
Total deferred tax asset 157,201 65,591

As of March 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had no federal or state net operating losses (NOLs) available to be
carried forward.

In the ordinary course of business, there are many intercompany transactions that affect the calculation and estimation
of the Company’s tax liability. Although the Company’s management believes that their tax estimates are reasonable,
there is no assurance that the final determination of tax liability will not be different from what is reflected in the
Company’s income tax provisions and accruals.
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6. TRANSACTIONS WITH PARENT COMPANY

In the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, TechT had inter-company transactions with Tech Mahindra (Americas),
Inc. the parent company. Transactions with parent company are summarized below:

2021 2020
$ $
Beginning balance, due from / (to) parent company 1,160,175 2,020,310
Revenue from parent company 1,880,576 4,575,650
Expense reimbursement - debit / credit notes (221,386) (424,200)
Payments to parent company 181,302 450,505
Collections from parent company (615,134) (5,462,090)
Ending balance, due from / (to) parent company 2,385,533 1,160,175
Due (to) / from parent consists of:
Amounts due to parent company (49,553) (6,819)
Amounts due from parent company 2,435,086 1,166,994
2,385,533 1,160,175

All transactions with related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis.
7. TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATED COMPANIES

In the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, TechT had inter-company transactions with Tech Mahindra Limited
(“TechM”), an affiliated company. Transactions with TechM are summarized below:

2021 2020
$ $
Beginning balance, due (to) / from TechM 2,695,000 685,944
Revenue from TechM 7,734,769 8,184,011
Expense reimbursement - debit/ credit notes 1,934,193 1,443,212
Payments to affiliated company 12,564 32,266
Collections from affiliated company (9,441,281) (7,650,433)
Ending balance, due (to) from TechM 2,935,245 2,695,000

Due (to) from affiliated companies consists of:
Amounts due to affiliated companies - -
Amounts due from affiliated companies 2,935,245 2,695,000
2,935,245 2,695,000

All transactions with related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis.
8. COMMON STOCK

Ordinary shares of $1 each Number 2021 2020
$ $
Issued and fully paid 500,000 500,000 500,000

The Company is authorized to issue 500,000 shares of common stock at a par value of $1 per share, of which 500,000
shares were issued and outstanding at March 31, 2021 and 2020. No dividends were issued during the years ended
March 31, 2021 and 2020

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through April 30, 2021, the date the financial statements were
available to be issued. No significant events occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to April 30, 2021,
that would have a material impact on the financial statements.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES YEARS
ENDED MARCH 31,

2021 2020
$ $
Schedule |
REVENUE
Revenue from affiliated company 7,734,769 4,575,650
Revenue from parent company 1,880,576 8,184,011
Revenue from third parties 1,325,540 8,004,322
10,940,885 20,763,983
Schedule I
PERSONNEL COST
Personnel expense 5,109,655 9,521,645
Payroll tax 388,754 787,486
5,498,409 10,309,131
Schedule Il
SUBCONTRACTING EXPENSES
Contracted services 5,162,810 9,057,535
5,162,810 9,057,535
Schedule IV
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Bad debt provision 209,488 128,369
Communication 85 -
Insurance 2,642 -
Miscellaneous expense 11 881
Other taxes 16,433 31,861
Professional fees 14,834 36,900
Sales and Marketing (1,845) 72,000
Travel 2,078 46,180
243,726 316,191
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TECH MAHINDRA TECHNOLOGIES INC.
DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Your Directors present their Report together with the audited accounts of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2021.

For the year ended March 31, 2021 US$ 2020 US$
Income 29,624,656 30,742,228
Profit/(Loss) before tax 6,628,284 5,582,735
Profit/(Loss) after tax 4,482,871 3,511,130

Review of Operations:

During the year under review, your company recorded an income of US$ 29,624,656, decrease by 4% over the previous
year income of 30,742,228. Profit after tax for the current year was increased to US$ 4,482,871 compared with previous
year US$ 3,511,130.

On January11, 2017 the Company has established an international branch in India at Hyderabad and transactions for this
branch are included in these consolidated financial statements.

Board

During the year under review, Mr. Arvind Malhotra Director & President & CEO has resigned w.e.f 9th December,2020 and
Mr. Krishna Bala has been appointed as Director & President & CEO w.e.f 10th December,2020. Other than this there is
no change in the constitution of Board. The Board of Directors are Mr. Krishna Bala, Mr. Manish Vyas and Mr. Lakshmanan
Chidambaram. The Board placed on record its appreciation for the valuable guidance provided by Mr Arvind Malhotra
during his tenure as a Director of the corporation.

Dividend

During the year under review, Board has approved a final dividend at the rate of US$ 50 per share amounting to US$
5,000,000 for the financial year 2020-21 and for the financial year 2019-20 it was US$ 2.5 million.

Outlook for the current year and Impact of Covid-19

During the year the incidence of Covid-19 developed into a global pandemic. The directors have assessed the impact of
Covid-19 on the business at the balance sheet date and consider that the company’s assets are expected to realise their
carrying value in the ordinary course of business and that all known liabilities have been included. The company has not
experienced any adverse impact on the demand for its services which continue to be provided to its customers with minimal
disruption. Despite the worldwide uncertainty caused by Covid-19, and its potential to impact the company, the directors are
confident that due to the nature of the company’s customer base and its current financial strength, any potential detrimental
effect on its business is not expected to be significant.

Acknowledgements:

Your Directors gratefully acknowledge the contributions made by the employees towards the success of the Company. Your
Directors also thank the customers, suppliers, bankers, State and Federal Government Authorities and the shareholder/s
for the co-operation and assistance received from them.

The Board placed on record its appreciation for the valuable guidance provided by Mr Arvind Malhotra during his tenure as
a Director of the corporation

Krishna Bala
Director, President and CEO

Place: Texas
Date: May 25, 2021

42



TECH MAHINDRA TECHNOLOGIES INC.
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholder of Tech Mahindra Technologies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tech Mahindra Technologies, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2021 and 2020 and the related consolidated
statements of income, stockholder’sequity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Managementis responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We did not
audit the financial statements of India branch of Tech Mahindra Technologies, Inc, which statements reflect total assets of
approximately $5,987,000 and $3,904,000 as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and revenues of approximately
$3,908,000 and $4,153,000, respectively, for the years then ended. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose
report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for India Branch of Tech
Mahindra Technologies Inc, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audits in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the consolidated financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Tech Mahindra Technologies, Inc. as of March 31,
2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Chugh CPAs, LLP
Cerritos, California

May 25, 2021
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TECH MAHINDRA TECHNOLOGIES INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 31, 2021 2020
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,208,492 3,599,042
Accounts receivable 3,123,147 5,072,530
Loan receivable - related party 5,000,000 -
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 42,011 116,430
Prepaid taxes 144,723 355,446
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 14,518,373 9,143,448
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment, net 89,327 200,106
Software 299,991 -
Work in progress - 449,987
Other assets 5,873 5,873
Deferred tax assets 344,843 163,916
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 740,034 819,881
TOTAL ASSETS $15,258,407 $9,963,329
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $152,443 $607,823
Unearned revenue 210,003 -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,176,295 1,485,143
Provision for income tax 263,110 358,978
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,801,851 2,451,944
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Grants repayable 269,201 161,820
Other non-current liabilities 308,390 75,112
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 577,591 236,932
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,379,442 2,688,876
Commitment and contingencies
STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY
Common stock, $0.01 par value (1,000,000 shares authorized; 100,000 1,000 1,000
shares issued and outstanding)
Additional paid- in-capital 999,000 999,000
Accumulated earnings 10,935,358 6,452,487
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (56,393) (178,035)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY 11,878,965 7,274,452
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY $15,258,407 $9,963,329
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TECH MAHINDRA TECHNOLOGIES INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the years ended March 31,

REVENUE
LESS: COST OF REVENUE
GROSS PROFIT
LESS: OPERATING EXPENSES
Selling, general and administrative expenses
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
OTHER INCOME
Other income
Interest income

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES
LESS: PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES
Income tax - current
Income tax - deferred
Foreign tax

NET INCOME

2021 2020

$ 29,624,656 $ 30,742,228

(20,793,381) (22,613,308)
8,831,275 8,128,920
(2,324,169) (2,646,463)
6,507,106 5,482,457
6,835 15
114,343 100,263
121,178 100,278
6,628,284 5,582,735
1,923,197 1,487,417
(179,622) (56,115)
401,838 640,302
2,145,413 2,071,605

$ 4,482,871 $ 3,511,130

see accompanying notes to consolidated financial statement

45



TECH MAHINDRA TECHNOLOGIES INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY

Balance at April 1, 2019
Dividend
Net income

Foreign currency translation
adjustments

Remeasurement of defined
benefit plan

Balance at March 31, 2020

Net income

Foreign currency translation
adjustments

Remeasurement of defined
benefit plan, net of tax

Balance at March 31, 2021
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Common Stock Additional Accumulated Other Total

Paid In Accumulated Comprehensive  Stockholder's

Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income Equity
100,000 $1,000 $999,000 $5,441,357 $(9,148) $6,432,209
$(2,500,000) $-  $(2,500,000)
- - - 3,511,130 - 3,511,130
- - - (158,534) (158,534)
- - - - (10,352) (10,352)
100,000 $1,000 $999,000 $6,452,487 $(178,035) $7,274,452
- - - 4,482,871 - 4,482,871
- - - 105,835 105,835
- - - - 15,807 15,807
100,000 $1,000 $999,000 $10,935,358 $(56,393) $11,878,965

see accompanying notes to consolidated financial statement



TECH MAHINDRA TECHNOLOGIES INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended March 31, 2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $4,482,871 $3,511,130

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Amortization and depreciation
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Deferred tax

(Increase) decrease in assets:

Account receivable

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Prepaid income taxes

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable

Unearned revenue

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Provision for income taxes

Grants repayable

Other non-current liabilities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVIES

Acquisition of property & equipment
Work in progress
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVIES

Loan to related party
Dividend
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Supplementary disclosures:
Income taxes paid

262,101 65,886
15,807 (10,352)
105,835 (158,534)
(180,927) (62,947)
1,949,383 (1,756,116)
74,418 (53,939)
210,723 148,608
(455,380) (89,214)
210,003 -
691,150 606,388
(95,868) 3,532
107,381 -
233,278 75,112
7,610,776 2,279,554
(1,326) (239,916)

- (15,336)

(1,326) (255,251)
(5,000,000) -
- (2,500,000)
(5,000,000) (2,500,000)
2,609,450 (475,697)
3,599,042 4,074,739
$6,208,492 $3,599,042
$1,825,341 $1,433,435

see accompanying notes to consolidated financial statement
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Nature of operations

Tech Mahindra Technologies Inc. the “Company” was incorporated as a Delaware corporation on September 28,
2000. The Company was formed to provide software development, professional engineering and information services.
The Company is now a wholly owned subsidiary of Tech Mahindra Limited (the parent company). During 2014, the
Company changed its name from Satyam Technologies Inc. to Tech Mahindra Technologies Inc. On January 11,
2017, the Company has established an international branch in India, the transactions for this are included in these
consolidated financial statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies

This summary of significant accounting policies of Tech Mahindra Technologies Inc. is presented to assist in
understanding the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Basis of presentation and consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are presented on the accrual method of accounting as prescribed by the generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States of America. The consolidated financial statements include
the foreign branch in India. All inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined as highly liquid investments
with maturity dates of three months or less. Included in the cash equivalents is the certificate of deposits with original
maturities greater than three months and remaining maturities less than one year.

Accounts receivable

The Company carries its accounts receivable at cost less an allowance for doubtful accounts. Allowance for doubtful
accounts is maintained with respect to accounts determined to be uncollectible in the current period. Management
determines the allowance for doubtful accounts based upon historical experience and assessment of the collectability
of existing specific accounts. Accounts are written off against the allowance when they are deemed uncollectible. At
March 31, 2021, the Company considers accounts receivable to be fully collectible; accordingly, no allowance for
doubtful accounts is required.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less depreciation. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the
straight-line method over useful lives, which range from 3 to 5 years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the
shorter of the useful life of the related assets or remaining lease term.

Depreciation expenses were $262,101 and $65,886 during the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs which are not for the permanent improvement, betterment or restoring
property are charged directly to appropriate operating accounts at the time the expense is incurred.

Impairment of long-lived assets

The Company is required, under current accounting standards to review the carrying value of its long-lived assets,
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future
net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future
cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the
fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs
to sell. As of March 31, 2021, management has determined that no impairment exists. Accordingly, no adjustments
have been made to the carrying values of long-lived assets.

Income taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with the FASB ASC 740 (formerly SFAS No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes”), which requires an asset and liability approach to financial accounting and reporting of income
taxes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are computed annually for differences between the financial



TECH MAHINDRA TECHNOLOGIES INC.

statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in the future based
on the enacted tax laws and rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable
income. Valuation allowance is established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to
be realized.

Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FIN 48 now known as ASC No. 740-10 “Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes”, the Company adopted FIN 48, thereafter, recognizes the tax benefits from uncertain tax positions
only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based
on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the consolidated financial statements from such
positions are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon
ultimate settlement.

In evaluating the Company’s tax provisions and accruals, future taxable income, and the reversal of temporary
differences, interpretations and tax planning strategies are considered. The Company believes their estimates are
appropriate based on current facts and circumstances.

Revenue recognition

The Company earns revenue from software development and consulting services. Revenue is recognized upon
transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive
in exchange for those products or services.

Arrangements with customers for services are either on a time bound fixed price or on a time-and-material basis.

Revenue on time-and-material contracts are recognized as the related services are performed and revenue from
the end of the last invoicing to the reporting date is recognized as unbilled revenue. Revenue from fixed-price,
where the performance obligations are satisfied over time and where there is no uncertainty as to measurement or
collectability of consideration, is recognized as per the percentage-of-completion method. When there is uncertainty as
to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. Efforts
or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between
input and productivity.

In arrangements for engineering services with customers, the Company has the revenue recognition criteria for
each distinct performance obligation. The arrangements with customers generally meet the criteria for considering
engineering services and other related services as distinct performance obligations. For allocating the transaction
price, the Company has measured the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its relative
standalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is the best evidence of its
standalone selling price. In cases where the company is unable to determine the standalone selling price, the company
uses the expected cost plus margin approach in estimating the standalone selling price. For time and material related
services, the performance obligations are satisfied as and when the services are rendered since the customer generally
obtains control of the work as it progresses.

The Company accounts for volume discounts and pricing incentives to customers as a reduction of revenue based
on the ratable allocation of the discounts/ incentives amount to each of the underlying performance obligation that
corresponds to the progress by the customer towards earning the discount/ incentive. Also, when the level of discount
varies with increases in levels of revenue transactions, the Company recognizes the liability based on its estimate
of the customer’s future purchases. If it is probable that the criteria for the discount will not be met, or if the amount
thereof cannot be estimated reliably, then discount is not recognized until the payment is probable and the amount can
be estimated reliably. The Company recognizes changes in the estimated amount of obligations for discounts in the
period in which the change occurs. For the year ended March 31, 2021, volume discounts which reduced the revenue
amounted to $236,250.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract
scope or contract price. The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added
to an existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price. Services added that are not
distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively,
either as a separate contract, if the additional services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of
the existing contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities

A contract asset results when goods or services have been transferred to the customer, but payment is contingent
upon a future event, other than the passage of time. The Company does not have any material unbilled receivables,
therefore, does not have any contract assets. The Company only has accounts receivable as disclosed on the face of
the balance sheet. Included in the accounts receivable as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, total unbilled of $675,723 and
$1,202,592, respectively, which refers to the revenue that was earned but not billed as of the end of the year.

49



TECH MAHINDRA TECHNOLOGIES INC.

50

The Company records contract liabilities to unearned revenue when the Company receives customer payments in
advance of the performance obligations being satisfied on the Company’s contracts. As of March 31, 2021, unearned
revenue amounted to $210,003.

Employee benefits
401(k) savings plan

The Company has established a defined contribution savings plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code,
which covers substantially all employees who meet minimum age and services requirements and allows participants
to defer a portion of their annual compensation on a pre-tax basis. Company contributions to the plan may be made
at the discretion of the Board of Directors. For the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company did not make
any contribution to the plan.

Gratuity

The Company accounts for its gratuity liability, a defined retirement benefit plan covering eligible employees. The
gratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment to employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of the
employment based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of the employment. Liabilities with regard to a
Gratuity plan are determined based on the actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary as at the Balance
Sheet date using the Projected Unit Credit method for the Company. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity in the period in which they occur.

Provident fund

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive the benefits of Provident fund, a defined contribution
plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered
employees’ salary (currently at 12% of the basic salary) which are charged to the statement of income. The provident
fund contributions are paid to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner by the Company. The Company has no
further obligations for future provident fund and superannuation fund benefits other than its annual contributions.

Foreign currency
Foreign translation adjustments

The Company’s other comprehensive income consists of foreign currency translation adjustments from the branch not
using the U.S. dollar as its functional currency.

All assets and liabilities are translated using the exchange rate on the date of the balance sheet. Revenues, expenses,
and net income are translated using prevailing on the date of the transaction. The foreign exchange adjustment that
results from these translations appears in other comprehensive income.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at exchange rates.
Foreign exchange gain and loss

Transaction gain and losses are included in net income which results from transactions denominated in a currency
other than an its functional currency.

Reclassification

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. These changes have no
impact on previously reported consolidated net income or consolidated stockholder’s equity.

New accounting pronouncements

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued a new accounting pronouncement that requires
lessees to record assets and liabilities on the balance sheet for lease-related rights and obligations and disclose key
information about certain leasing arrangements. This new standard establishes a right-of-use (“ROU”) model that
requires a lessee to recognize a ROU assets and lease liability on the balance sheet for all leases with a term longer
than 12 months. Leases will be classified as financing or operating, with classification affecting the pattern of expense
recognition in the statement of operations. ASU 2019-10 delayed this one year to years beginning after December 15,
2020, however, as a result of COVID 19 this is now move to another year beginning after December 15, 2021 or the
2022 calendar year. The Company will the adopt the standard, including the related amendments, using the modified
retrospective approach, applying the provisions of the new standard on its effective date. Management is currently
evaluating the potential impact that the adoption of this standard will have on the Company’s financial position, results
of operations, and related disclosures.

Risks and uncertainties

In the normal course of business, the Company maintains its cash balances in a financial institution, which at times
may exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such account and believes it
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is not subject to any significant credit risk as all its deposits are maintained in a high-quality financial institution. The
balance in excess of the FDIC limits at March 31, 2021 and 2020 was approximately $3,682,000 and $3,374,000,
respectively.

The Company operates in the computer industry. The fluctuations in information technology spending caused by
market conditions or availability of qualified personnel to complete the projects may have significant effect on the
profitability of the Company.

The Company may be exposed to currency risk which is the potential risk of loss from fluctuating foreign exchange
rates related to its foreign transactions and foreign operations.

COVID-19 has spread across most of the world including the United States of America where the Company has its
operations. However, the Company’s operations had not affected significantly for the current year. The impact of
COVID 19 may be different from that estimated by the Company and the Company will continue to closely monitor any
material changes in future economic conditions.

Major customers and subcontractors
Major customers

Accounts receivable balances are typically unsecured and are derived from revenues earned from customers. For
the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company had three major customers, one of which is the Company’s parent
company (See Note 5. Related party transactions). These three customers accounted for approximately 90% and 72%
of revenue and accounts receivable, respectively. For the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company had one major
customer (the Company’s parent company) which accounted for 42% and 23% of revenue and accounts receivable,
respectively.

Major subcontractors

For the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company had one major service provider which represents approximately
46% of the total subcontracting and 45% of accounts payable. For the year ended March 31, 2020, one supplier
accounted for 28% of subcontracting expense, which is a related party described in Note 5. Related party transactions,
of approximately $1.4 million and 78% of accounts payable.

Related party transactions
The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Tech Mahindra Limited, an India based company (parent company).

The Company has entered into professional service agreements with its parent company, including with Tech Mahindra
Network Services International, Inc., Tech Mahindra Americas, Inc. and Tech Mahindra Growth Factories Limited,
which are subsidiaries of the parent company.

In addition, the Company through its Branch made contribution to Tech Mahindra Foundation (a non-profit organization)
the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) arm of Tech Mahindra.

2021 2020
uUsD uUsbD
Services Received / Operating Expense from:
Tech Mahindra Limited (for subcontracting services) - 1,484,980
Tech Mahindra Limited (for rent of the foreign branch) 670,994 664,822
Tech Mahindra (Americas), Inc. (for other operating and reimbursable expenses) 1,532,206 1,233,099
2,203,200 3,382,901
Services Provided To:
Tech Mahindra Limited 7,499,043 12,850,704
Tech Mahindra (Americas) Inc. 74,785 94,956
7,573,828 12,945,660
Interest Income on Inter Company Loan given:
Tech Mahindra (Americas), Inc. 276 -
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Related party accounts receivable and payable as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 as follows:

2021 2020
Accounts receivable:
Tech Mahindra Limited 558,142 859,122
Tech Mahindra (Americas), Inc. - 7,269
558,142 866,391
Unbilled revenue:
Tech Mahindra Limited 198,620 291,430
Inter Company Loan receivable:
Tech Mahindra (Americas), Inc. 5,000,000 -
Interest Accrued on Inter Company Loan receivable:
Tech Mahindra (Americas), Inc. 276 -
Accounts payable:
Tech Mahindra Limited 52,623 347,155
Tech Mahindra (Americas), Inc. 98,536 127,543
Tech Mahindra Growth Factories Limited - 150
151,158 474,848
Contribution made towards CSR Expenditure of India Branch
Tech Mahindra Foundation 41,376 -

Loan receivable from Tech Mahindra (Americas) Inc.

On March 30, 2021, the Company entered into loan agreement with Tech Mahindra (Americas) Inc., the borrower, a related

party, for an unsecured loan of $5 million. The loan is subject to interest of LIBOR plus eighty basis points (~

1% p.a.) per

annum on the amount borrowed and the interest is calculated from the date of disbursement. The interest is payable at the
end of the tenure of the loan. The borrower agrees to repay the loan amount on or before September 30, 2021, with the

borrower’s option to repay the loan either in full or in installments. Accrued interest receivable as of March 31, 2021 is $276.

6. Property and equipment, net

Property and equipment consisted of the following: 2021 2020
$ $

Furniture and Fixtures $49,521 $49,521
Office Equipment 4,438 4,438
Computers and equipment 155,586 154,281
Leasehold improvements 68,236 68,236

277,781 276,476
Less: Accumulated depreciation/amortization (188,454) (76,370)
Net $89,327 $200,106

7. Software

The software pertains to the total costs of $449,987 incurred when the Company obtained a contract for the development
of a commercial product beginning February 2017. Costs incurred by the Company were capitalized and reported as
work in progress on the balance sheet as of March 31, 2020. During the year March 31, 2021, the Company began
amortization when the product first became available for general release to customers. The annual amortization is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated economic life of the product of 3 years, as this amount is
greater than amount based on the ratio of current revenue and total expected revenue. The accumulated amortization

as of March 31, 2021 is $149,996.
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8. Income taxes

Deferred tax assets and liability consist of the following as of March 31, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020
$ $

Deferred tax assets

Accrued liabilities $152,074 $54,790
Provision for employee benefits 56,705 -
Depreciation & amortization 54,706 -
State deferred tax -

Vacation accrual 98,650 119,282
Total $362,134 $174,072

Income tax (benefit)/expense consisted of the following as of March 31, 2021 and 2020:
Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation & amortization - 3782
State deferred tax 17291 6374
Total 17291 10156
Net 344843 163916
Less : valuation allowance - -
Deferred tax assets, net $344,843 $163,916
2021 2020
$ $
Current income tax
Federal $1,436,940 $1,147,330
State 486,257 340,088
Foreign 401,838 640,302
$2,325,035 $2,127,720
2021 2020
Deferred income tax (benefit)
Federal $(132,147) $(28,303)
State (48,635) (8,877)
Foreign 1,159 (18,935)
$(179,622) $(56,115)
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Employee benefit

A. Current and Non-current breakup:

Current liability $ 6,702
Non-current liability 50,609
Total Liability $ 57,311

B. Changes in defined benefit obligation:

Defined Benefit Obligation(DBO) at the end of prior period $ 67,022
Service cost 10,806
Interest cost on the DBO 3,967
Past Service cost-plan amendment -
Actuarial(gain)/loss (15,867)
Benefits paid (8,617)
DBO at the end of current period $ 57,311

C. Expected benefit payments for the year ending March 31:

2022 $ 6,839
2023 6,839
2024 8,754
2025 9,985
2026 11,900
2027 59,773
Total $ 104,090

D. Amounts recognized in statement of Profit & Loss:

Service Cost $10,806
Actuarial (gains)/losses (15,867)
Net interest on net defined benefit liability/(asset) 3,967
Cost recognized in P&L $ (1,094)

E. Amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive income (OCI):

Net Gain/(Loss) $ (15,867)
Cumulative (Gain)/Loss Recognized via OCI at Prior Period End -
Cumulative (Gain)/Loss Recognized via OCI at Current Period End $ (15,867)

F. The Principal Assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuation as follows

Discount Rate(s) 6.20%
Expected Rate(s) of salary increase
Top Management 4.00%
Middle Management 4.00%
Other Staff 8.00%

Grants repayable

In connection with the development of commercial product described in Note 6. Property and equipment, net, the
Company has obtained a conditional funding contract. As per the contract, the Company will periodically receive funds
up to a maximum of $270,000 and has to return the same with time value based on 5% of the gross sale value realized
from marketing this product expected to be refunded over a period of 5 years after completion of development of
product. As of March 31, 2021, the outstanding grant repayable was $269,201.
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Accrued compensated absences

Employees of the Company are entitled to paid vacation and sick days depending on length of service and other
factors. As at March 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company accrued a total of $349,090 and $399,209, respectively, of
unused vacation and sick leave. This accrued compensated absence account is included in the accrued expenses and
other liabilities account.

Deferred payroll tax

The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act Section 2302 permits the deferral of payment of the
employer portion of social security taxes between March 27, 2020 and December 31, 2020, with 50% of the deferred
amount due December 31, 2021 and the remaining 50% due December 31, 2022.

Starting April 2020, the Company began deferral of the employer portion of social security taxes. As of March 31, 2021,
the deferred payroll tax amounted to $539,761, of which $231,326 is classified as noncurrent included in the Other
non-current liabilities account.

Commitments
Leases

The Company entered into a three-year non-cancelable operating lease agreement for its branch office in Hyderabad,
India with its parent company. The lease agreement expired on March 1, 2020 and renewed for another three years
expiring 2023. In addition, the Company also entered into lease agreements for its US offices with an unrelated party
from earliest date effective April 1, 2019 and latest lease ends January 2023.

Future lease payments are as follows:

Year ended March 31, Amount
2022 $ 886,838
2023 752,250

$1,639,088

The Company did not record the effect of deferred rent since the amount is not material.

For the year ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, the total rent expense associated with this lease is $870,048 and
$837,603, respectively, which is included in selling, general and administrative expenses.

Common stock

Each share of common stock is entitled to one vote. The holders of common stock are also entitled to receive dividends
whenever funds are legally available and when declared by the Board of Directors, subject to the prior rights of holders
of all classes of stock outstanding.

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company’s board of directors declared and paid dividend at the rate of $25
per share on the outstanding number of shares of 100,000 for the total of $2.5 million. During the year ended March
31, 2021, the Company’s Board of Directors has not declared any dividend.

Subsequent events

The Company evaluated its consolidated financial statements for subsequent events through May 25, 2021, the date
of the consolidated financial statements were issued.
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BOARD OF MANAGERS’ REPORT

The Board of Managers present their Report together with the audited accounts of your Company for the year ended March
31, 2021.

Financial Results:

For the year ended March 31 2021 2020

usbD usbD
Income 93,478 26,982
Profit/(Loss) before tax 0 0
Profit/(Loss)after tax 0 0

Review of operations:
During the fiscal year under review, the Company achieved an income of US$ 93.4 Thousand.
Board:

During the year under review, Mr. Arvind Malhotra resigned as Board Manager of the LLC. Mr. Manish Viyas, Mr. Lakshmanan
Chidambaram are the Board of Managers. The Board placed on record its appreciation for the valuable guidance provided
by Mr Arvind Malhotra during his tenure as a Board Manager of the LLC.

COVID-19

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from COVID-19, a global pandemic, on the carrying
amount of receivables, unbilled revenue, intangible assets and goodwill. In developing the assumptions relating to the
possible future uncertainties in global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of
approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information including economic forecasts.
The Company based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of the above assets will be recovered, net of
provisions established.

Acknowledgements:

Your Board of Managers gratefully acknowledge the contributions made by the employees towards the success of the
Company. Your Board of Managers also thank the customers, suppliers, bankers, State and Federal Government Authorities
and the shareholder(s) for the co-operation and assistance received from them.

Manish Vyas
Board of Manager

Place: Texas
Date: April 30, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors

Tech Mahindra LLC

A Delaware Limited Liability Company

a wholly owned subsidiary of Tech Mahindra Limited an India Corporation
Plano, Texas

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tech Mahindra LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company,
which comprise the balance sheets as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of operations, changes in
member’s equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Tech
Mahindra LLC as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Tech Mahindra LLC and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Other matters
As discussed in Note 4 to the financial statements, the Company has had numerous transactions with the parent company.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The Supplemental
Schedules of Revenue and Expenses on page 67 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Tech Mahindra LLC’s ability to continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements, including
omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
»  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tech Mahindra LLC’s
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
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«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

+  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about Tech Mahindra LLC’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the

audit.

CKH CPAs and Advisors, LLC
Atlanta, Georgia
April 30, 2021
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TECH MAHINDRALLC
BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Due from parent company
Total current assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER’S EQUITY :
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Due to parent company
Total current liabilities

Member’s equity
Total Liabilities and Member’s Equity
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Note

March 31, March 31,
2021 2020
159,261 $774,329
11,971,519 6,647,532
4,008,365 12,863
16,139,145 7,434,724
16,139,145 7,434,724
3,027,790 110,365
13,101,355 7,314,359
16,129,145 7,424,724
10,000 10,000
16,139,145 7,434,724




TECH MAHINDRALLC
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Schedule For the year For the year

ended ended

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

REVENUES | 93,478 26,982

COST OF REVENUES - -

GROSS PROFIT 93,478 26,982
OPERATING EXPENSES:

General and administrative Il 12,872 14,119

Interest expenses 80,606 12,863

Total operating expenses 93,478 26,982

Operating profit - -
INCOME TAX EXPENSE - -
NET INCOME - -
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBER'S EQUITY

Balance at March 31, 2019
Net income for the year
Balance at March 31, 2020
Net income for the year
Balance at March 31, 2021
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Total
Member's Retained Member's
Equity Earnings Equity
$ 10,000 $ $ 10,000
$ 10,000 $ $ 10,000
$ 10,000 $ $ 10,000




TECH MAHINDRALLC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Income - -
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable, net (5,323,987) (3,070,409)
Due to parent company (3,995,502) (8,448)
Due to parent company 5,786,996 3,279,004
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 2,917,425 106,340
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities (615,068) 306,487

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Changes in equity:
Member's contribution - 10,000
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities - 10,000
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities - -

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (615,068) 316,487
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 774,329 457,842
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 159,261 774,329

Supplemental disclosure:
Cash paid for interest - -
Cash paid for income taxes - -
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TECH MAHINDRALLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MARCH 31, 2021

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

1.
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Tech Mahindra LLC (the “Company” or “TMLLC”) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Tech Mahindra Ltd. (“TML”). The
Company was incorporated in the State of Delaware on June 14, 2018. The Company is engaged in the business
of providing sofware development services onsite for clients across the United States of America.

In terms of an signed agreement between the company and Tech Mahindra Limited (“TML”), the company will
enter into contracts with customers based in the United States of America for the development or modification of
software and other related services. The company will then outsource all of these services to TML, who will accept
the responsibility of fulfilling the terms of these agreements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company has adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Codification (Codification or ASC).
The Codification is the single official source of authoritative accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (U.S. GAAP) recognized by the FASB to be applied by non-governmental entities. All of the
Codification’s content carries the same level of authority.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

These financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

REVENUE AND EXPENSES

Effective December 17,2018, the Company has entered into a contract with Tech Mahindra Ltd.(“TML") to outsource
all services to TML. Under the contract with TML, the Company has agreed to outsource all of the services to
TML at the price agreed between the Company and it's customers. Revenue derived from the outsource of these
services is recognized on time and material basis, provided that no uncertainties regarding customer acceptance
exist and collection of the related receivable is probable.

Management determined, by virtue of the rights and obligations resulting from its master services agreement
with TML, that it does not meet the control indicators as defined in ASC 606. The Company conducts services
as agent of TML and recognizes revenue as the net amount of consideration that it retains after paying TML the
consideration received in exchange for the goods or services to be provided by TML.

INCOME TAXES

As a single member LLC, the Company’s income and deductions are reported on the LLC member’s corporate
income tax return as a “disregarded entity” for income tax purposes. Accordingly, the member of the Company will
be responsible for income taxes; therefore, no provision for income taxes is included in these financial statements.
Due to various timing differences, income is recognised in different periods for tax reporting purposes than for
financial statements purposes.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company considers all highly-liquid investments with maturities of three months or less to be cash or cash
equivalents.

The Company places its cash on deposit with financial institution in the United States of America. The Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation covers $250,000 for substantially all depository accounts. As of March 31, 2021,
the Company had $0 (2020: $524,329) in excess of the Federally insured limit with the financial institution.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR BAD DEBTS

Accounts receivable are the amounts owed on invoiced contractual agreements either in process or completed
by the Company. Accounts receivable are considered delinquent when payment is not received under terms
described within the individual contract’s terms.

An allowance for doubtful accounts is provided for those balances considered to be uncollectible based upon
historical experience and the Company’s specific review of outstanding account balances. Company policy is that



TECH MAHINDRALLC

accounts overdue in excess of 365 days is an indicator that the receivable has potentially impaired. Bad debts are

written off against the allowance when identified.

H. UNBILLED RECEIVABLES

Unbilled receivables represent accrued revenue earned and recognized on projects for which billings have not yet

been presented to the customer.
I. RELATED PARTIES

All companies within the Group are considered to be related parties. Related parties are considered to be related
if one party has the ability to control or jointly control the other party or exercise significant influence over the party
in making financial and operational decisions. Key management personnel are also regarded as related parties.
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise).

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

At March 31, 2021 and 2020, accounts receivable balances were as follows:

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Amounts due for services rendered and billed 9,110,330 5,568,027
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts - -
Amounts due for services rendered and billed, net 9,110,330 5,568,027
Amounts due for services rendered, not billed 2,861,189 1,079,505
Total accounts receivable, net 11,971,519 6,647,532

4. TRANSACTIONS WITH PARENT COMPANY

During the period ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had transactions with Tech Mahindra Ltd.(“TML"). At

March 31, 2021 and 2020 the Company had payables due to TML as follows:

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Beginning balance, due to 7,301,496 4,030,940
Cost of services from TML 59,394,006 16,805,066
Reimbursements (4,000,000) -
Payments to parent company (53,509,034) (13,507,528)
Revenue from TML (93,478) (26,982)
Ending balance, due to 9,092,990 7,301,496
Due (to) consists of:
Amounts due to TML 13,101,355 7,314,359
Amounts due from TML (4,008,365) (12,863)
9,092,990 7,301,496

Amounts due to and receivable from TML are interest free and payable on demand.
LITIGATION AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is not involved in any legal proceedings in the ordinary course of its business.
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

REVENUE AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The majority of the Company’s sales are credit sales. The concentration for revenue and billed accounts receivable, for

the period ended March 31, 2021, is predominately from the following customers:

Billed accounts receivable as at 31 March, 2021 Amount
Customer 1 4,111,514
Customer 2 2,090,413
Customer 3 964,430

Concentration
45%
23%
11%
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Billed accounts receivable as at 31 March, 2020 Amount Concentration
Customer 1 3,463,949 60%
Customer 2 2,026,456 35%
Customer 3 131,533 2%
Revenue concentration for the 12 months ended March 31, 2021 Amount Concentration
Customer 1 29,605,670 50%
Customer 2 14,286,169 24%
Customer 3 8,762,986 15%
Revenue concentration for the 12 months ended March 31, 2020 Amount Concentration
Customer 1 4,735,389 28%
Customer 2 10,107,457 60%
Customer 3 381,506 2%

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is defined under Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures”
(“ASC 820”), as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in the principal or most
advantageous market in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. ASC 820 also
establishes a three-level hierarchy, which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize
the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of
inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability on the measurement date. The three levels are defined as follows:

Level 1-inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for an identical asset or liability in an active
market.

Level 2—-inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for a similar asset or liability in an active market
or model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs are observable for substantially the full term of the asset or
liability

Level 3—-inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement of the
asset or liability.

The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate fair value due to the short-
term maturity of the instruments. The carrying amounts of the Company’s floatable interest rate debt are considered
reasonable estimates of fair value.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through April 30, 2021. No significant events occurred subsequent to
the balance sheet date that would have a material impact on the financial statements.



ENDED MARCH 31,2021

Schedule |

REVENUE

Contract revenue from third parties
Transfer to parent or affiliated companies

Revenue from parent or affliated companies
Revenue from third parties

Schedule Il

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Professional fees

Insurance

Miscellaneous

Bank charges

TECH MAHINDRALLC
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES YEARS

For the year
ended
March 31, 2021

For the year
ended
March 31, 2020

59,394,006 16,832,048
(59,394,006) (16,832,048)
93,478 26,982
93,478 26,982
9,556 13,482

2,404 500

841 -

71 137

12,872 14,119
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TECH MAHINDRA GMBH
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To TECH MAHINDRA GmbH, Diisseldorf
Opinions

We have audited the annual financial statements of TECH MAHINDRA GmbH, Disseldorf, which comprise the balance
sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the income statement for the financial year from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021, and notes
to the financial statements, including the recognition and measurement policies presented therein. In addition, we have
audited the management report of TECH MAHINDRA GmbH for the financial year from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021. In
accordance with the German legal requirements, we have not audited the content of the corporate governance statement
pursuant to Section 289f (4) HGB [Handelsgesetzbuch: German Commercial Code] (disclosures on the quota for women on
executive boards), which is included in Section 2.2.4 of the management report.

In our opinion, on the basis of the knowledge obtained in the audit,

— the accompanying annual financial statements comply, in all material respects, with the requirements of German
commercial law applicable to business corporations and give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial
position of the Company as at 31 March 2021 and of its financial performance for the financial year from 1 April 2020
to 31 March 2021, in accordance with German Legally Required Accounting Principles, and

— the accompanying management report as a whole provides an appropriate view of the Company’s position. In all
material respects, this management report is consistent with the annual financial statements, complies with German
legal requirements and appropriately presents the opportunities and risks of future development. Our opinion on the
management report does not cover the content of the statement on corporate governance referred to above.

Pursuant to Section 322 (3) sentence 1 HGB [Handelsgesetzbuch: German Commercial Code], we declare that our audit
has not led to any reservations relating to the legal compliance of the annual financial statements and of the management
report.

Basis for the Opinions

We conducted our audit of the annual financial statements and of the management report in accordance with Section
317 HGB and the German Generally Accepted Standards for Financial Statement Audits promulgated by the Institut
der Wirtschaftspriifer [Institute of Public Auditors in Germany] (IDW). Our responsibilities under those requirements and
principles are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual Financial Statements and of
the Management Report” Section of our auditor’s report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
requirements of European law and German commercial and professional law, and we have fulfilled our other German
professional responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions on the annual financial statements and on the management
report.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the corporate governance statement
pursuant to Section 289f (4) HGB (disclosures on the quota for women on executive boards).

Our opinions on the annual financial statements and on the management report do not cover the other information, and
consequently we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in so doing, to consider whether the other
information

— is materially inconsistent with the annual financial statements, with the management report information audited for
content or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or

— otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
Responsibilities of Management for the Annual Financial Statements and the Management Report

Management is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements that comply, in all material respects, with
the requirements of German commercial law applicable to business corporations, and that the annual financial statements
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and financial performance of the Company in compliance
with German Legally Required Accounting Principles. In addition, management is responsible for such internal control
as they, in accordance with German Legally Required Accounting Principles, have determined necessary to enable the
preparation of annual financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. They also have the responsibility for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern. In
addition, they are responsible for financial reporting based on the going concern basis of accounting, provided no actual or
legal circumstances conflict therewith.

Furthermore, management is responsible for the preparation of the management report that as a whole provides an
appropriate view of the Company’s position and is, in all material respects, consistent with the annual financial statements,
complies with German legal requirements, and appropriately presents the opportunities and risks of future development. In
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addition, management is responsible for such arrangements and measures (systems) as they have considered necessary
to enable the preparation of a management report that is in accordance with the applicable German legal requirements, and
to be able to provide sufficient appropriate evidence for the assertions in the management report.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual Financial Statements and of the Management Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and whether the management report as a whole provides an
appropriate view of the Company’s position and, in all material respects, is consistent with the annual financial statements
and the knowledge obtained in the audit, complies with the German legal requirements and appropriately presents the
opportunities and risks of future development, as well as to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions on the
annual financial statements and on the management report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Section
317 HGB and in compliance with the German Generally Accepted Standards for Financial Statement Audits promulgated
by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprifer (IDW) will always detect a material misstatement. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual financial statements and this management report.

We exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual financial statements and of the management
report, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit of the annual financial statements and of arrangements
and measures (systems) relevant to the audit of the management report in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of these
systems.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used by management and the reasonableness of estimates made
by management and related disclosures.

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the annual financial statements and in
the management report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our respective opinions. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to be able to continue as a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the annual financial statements present the underlying transactions and events in a manner that the annual
financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and financial performance of the
Company in compliance with German Legally Required Accounting Principles.

— Evaluate the consistency of the management report with the annual financial statements, its conformity with [German]
law, and the view of the Company’s position it provides.

—  Perform audit procedures on the prospective information presented by management in the management report.
On the basis of sufficient appropriate audit evidence we evaluate, in particular, the significant assumptions used
by management as a basis for the prospective information, and evaluate the proper derivation of the prospective
information from these assumptions. We do not express a separate opinion on the prospective information and on the
assumptions used as a basis. There is a substantial unavoidable risk that future events will differ materially from the
prospective information.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Dusseldorf, June 8, 2021

KPMG AG

Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft

[signature] Kis [signature] Krantz
Wirtschaftspriifer Wirtschaftspriifer
[German Public Auditor] [German Public Auditor]
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2021

Assets

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Aquired software

Property, plant
and equipment

Other equipment,
operating  and
office

equipment
Financial assets

Shares in affiliated
companies

Current assets
Inventories
Prepayments

Receivables and
other assets

Trade receivables

Receivables
from affiliated
companies

Other assets

Cash and cash
equivalents

Prepaid expenses

31-03-2021 31-03-2020
EUR EUR EUR EUR
258,574.00 606,094.81
1,834,152.24 2,794,719.07
20,356.86 8,356.86
2,113,083.10 3,409,170.74
19,696.73 24,503.43
14,769,041.54 18,258,412.32
24,678,851.26 27,279,868.81
1,452,607.16  40,900,499.96  1,032,530.66  46,570,811.79
144,868.97 1,109,699.90
41,064,965.66 47,705,105.12
959,481.63 808,500.82
44,137,530.39 51,922,776.68

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Subscribed capital
Capital reserve
Profit carried forward

Net loss for the period/Net profit

Provisions

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations

Tax provisions

Other provisions

Liabilities

Liabilities to banks

Trade payables

Liabilities to affiliated companies

Other liabilities

TECH MAHINDRA GMBH

- thereof taxes EUR 977,442.99 (prior year: EUR

1,271,744.97) -

—thereof social securities EUR 3,810.71 (prior

year: EUR 3,750.38) -

31-03-2021 31-03-2020
EUR EUR
601,000.00 601,000.00

770577047 17,082,298.90
16442119 9,120,524.18
471634261  -8,956,102.99
13,187,533.97  17,847,720.09
12247452 202,520.81
36,670.00 1473,204.88
10,456,101.69  10,368,623.00

10,615,24621  12,044,447.69
933,583.34 0.00
430,204.10 422,034.94

17,988,634.48  20,328,306.24
982,238.29 1,280,267.72

2033475021  22,030,608.90

4413753039 51,922,776.68
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TECH MAHINDRA GMBH
INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 1 APRIL 2020 TO 31

MARCH 2021
1. Revenue
2. Other operating income
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Cost of materials

Cost of purchased services

Personnel expenses

a) Wages and salaries

b) Social security, pension and
other benefits

Amortisation of intangible assets

and depreciation of property,

plant and equipment

Other operating expenses

Other interest and similar income

Interest and similar expenses

Income taxes

Result after taxes

Other taxes

Net profit for the year/Net loss

2020/2021 2019/2020
EUR EUR EUR EUR
75,093,046.41 83,911,167.07
2,724,440.19 1,431,527.39
26,353,759.35 25,154,600.42
33,607,818.96 40,583,239.89

4,854,914.21 38,462,733.17

1,107,755.29
6,772,181.49
250,369.99
387,126.58
263,527.50
4,720,773.21
4,430.60
_4,716,342.61

5,726,091.14 46,309,331.03

1,050,679.20
21,006,413.17
460,476.26
94,518.37
1,137,714.52
(8,950,085.99)
6,017.00

(8,956,102.99)
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TECH MAHINDRA GMBH, DUSSELDORF/GERMANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

General information about the annual financial statements

TECH MAHINDRA GmbH is located in Dusseldorf and registered at the Registry court in Disseldorf, Registry court number,
HRB 47738. The company is a large corporation within the meaning of Section 267 (3) HGB.

The annual financial statements were prepared in accordance with the provisions of the German Commercial code (HGB)
in the current version and the supplementary provisions of the German limited liability company law (Gesetz betreffend
Gesellschaften mit beschrankter Haftung (GmbHG)).

The financial statements comprise balance sheet, income statement and notes (including the fixed-asset movement
schedule). The income statement was prepared in accordance with the nature of expense method (§ 275 (2) HGB).

Disclosures on accounting policies

Intangible assets are measured at cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over their economic useful life. Purchased
software is amortized over their useful life of four years. Intangible asset, which are fully amortized, will be presented as
disposal in the last year of amortization.

Tangible assets are valued at cost and depreciated over their estimated useful life on a straight-line basis. Operating and
office equipment is depreciated over a useful life of three to ten years.

Low-value assets with costs of up to EUR 800.00 are immediately recognized as depreciation expense and directly
presented as disposal.

Investments and other financial assets are recognized at cost. If necessary, the applicable lower value has been recognized
at the reporting date.

Receivables and other assets are recognized at nominal value. In order to cover all recognizable risks as at the balance
sheet date, allowances for bad debts are set aside.

Cash-in-hand and bank balances are recognized at nominal value.

Prepaid expenses are incurred before the balance sheet date to the extent that these constitute expenditures for a certain
time thereafter.

Deferred taxes will be determined for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities under
commercial law and their tax bases and for usable loss carryforwards. Deferred taxes are calculated on the basis of an
average income tax rate of 31 %. Any net resulting tax burden would be recognized in the balance sheet as deferred tax
liabilities. In the event of a tax relief (deferred tax asset), the option granted in Section 274 (1) Sentence 2 HGB is exercised
and a balance sheet entry is waived. In the current financial year, there was a total asset surplus not shown in the balance
sheet. This is mainly due to valuation differences between the commercial balance sheet and the tax balance sheet with
regard to pension provisions.

Provisions were recognized for all further uncertain liabilities. They reflect all identifiable risks. In accordance with section
253 (1) sentence 2 of the HGB, provisions are measured at the settlement amount dictated by prudent business judgement.

Provisions from pension obligations were calculated based on the projected unit credit method by an actuarial. The
underlying assumptions are presented in following explanations to the balance sheets.

Liabilities are recognized at their settlement amount.

Income and expenses are recognized in the income statement on an accrual basis. Revenue is recognized at the time when
services are rendered.

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are valued in the annual financial statements at the average rate for the date
of initial recognition. On the reporting date, assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies with a remaining term
of up to one year are converted at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-current receivables and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are valued in accordance with the lower of cost or market principle (section
256a sentence 2 HGB) and recognized at the exchange rate on the balance sheet date provided that the exchange rate
on the transaction date was not lower (for assets) or higher (for liabilities). Profit and loss from converting foreign currency
transactions into local currency are recognized separately in the income statement under “Other operating income” and
“Other operating expenses”.
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BALANCE SHEET

Fixed Assets

With regard to the development of intangible assets, tangible assets and financial assists we refer to the fixed-asset

movement schedule (as appendix to the notes).

Financial assets

The company holds the share in the following investments:

TechM IT Services GmbH, Wien/Austria:

Shareholding relationship
Equity in KEUR
Result for the year in KEUR
TECH MAHINDRA Norway A.S, Norway:

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

100 %
107
7

March 31, 2021

100 %
100
1"

March 31, 2020

Shareholding relationship 100 % 100 %
Equity in kKNOK 10,876 7,752
Result for the year in KNOK 3,134 2,991
FX-rate as of March 31 9.9888 NOK/ 11.7084 NOK/
EUR EUR
Tech Mahindra Luxembourg S.a r.l., Luxembourg:
March 31, 2021
Shareholding relationship 100 %
Equity in KEUR 35
Result for the year in KEUR 23
Current Assets
Inventory
Inventory comprises only of prepayments to suppliers
Trade receivables and other assets
Trade receivables and other assets comprise as follows:
As of Amounts due after As of Amounts due after
March 31, 2021 more than 1 year March 31, 2020 more than 1 year
Trade receivables 14,769,041.54 € 0.00€ 18,258,412.32 € 0.00 €
Receivables from affiliated 24,678,851.26 € 0.00€ 27,279,868.81 € 0.00 €
companies
Other Assets 1,452,607.16 € 0.00 € 1,032,530.66 € 0.00 €
Total 40,900,499.96 € 0.00€ 46,570,811.79 € 0.00 €

Receivables from affiliated companies comprise receivables from shareholders in the amount of KEUR 24,520 (prior year:
kEUR 23,941).

Receivables from affiliated companies contain loan receivables in the amount of KEUR 10,387 (previous year: KEUR 16,184),
for which an allowance has been setup in the amount of KEUR 10,387 (prior year: KEUR 12,934), due to uncollectability. The
remaining receivables from affiliated companies result from trade receivables.

Other assets contain mainly deposits, tax receivables as well as salary and travel expense advance payments to employees.

Subscribed capital
The entity’s subscribed capital amounts to KEUR 601 (prior year: kKEUR 601) and is fully paid in.
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Capital reserve

As part of the merger of LCC Telecom GmbH, Ratingen, as of April 1, 2020 onto the company, based on the merger
agreement, the amount of EUR 9,376,528.73, of which the transferred liabilities exceeded the transferred assets, was
deducted from the capital reserve.

Provision for pension obligations

The actuarial report to determine the provision for pension obligations considers future salary increases as well as increases
in pension benefits. To calculate the pension obligation the mortality tables “Richttafeln 2018 G” by Klaus Heubeck were
applied.

The following assumptions were applied to determine the pension obligation as of March 31, 2021:

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Discount rate 219 % 261 %
Expected wage and salary increases 20% 20%
Expected increase in pension benefits 1.0 % 1.0 %

The provision for pension obligations is calculated in accordance with § 253 (2) HGB (German Commercial Code) using the
average market rate of interest for the past ten financial years and a duration of 15 years, which is published by the German
Central Bank (Deutsche Bundes Bank).

In the case of the provisions for post-employment benefit obligations, the difference between the amount recognized using
the average market rate of interest for the past ten financial years and the amount recognized using the average market rate
of interest for the past seven financial years amounts to EUR 15,230 (prior year EUR 21,899) in the current financial year.
This amount is restricted from distribution to the shareholder in accordance with § 253 (6) sentence 2 HGB.

All pension obligations are covered by reinsurance policies. Pursuant to § 246 (2) sentence 2 HGB the reinsurance policies
have been offset against the pension obligations, as claims against a reinsurance policy that is not accessible to all other
creditors and serves exclusively to meet pension obligations:

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

kEUR kEUR
The fair value of the plan assets 373 397
Pension obligation 495 583
Net amount 122 186

Due to the netting of the pension obligation with the plan assets, expenses for additions to the pension provision in the
amount of KEUR 88 were netted with personnel expenses in the amount of kKEUR 25 as part of the pension expenses. The
fair-value of the plan assets were determined using actuarial valuation methods.

Besides the netted pension obligation, in the prior year, the provision contained also outstanding contributions to the
reinsurance policy.

Other Provisions

As in the prior year, other provisions largely contain provisions for outstanding invoices for utilized subcontractor services
(KEUR 4,530; prior year KEUR 3,638), provision for outstanding charges from the shareholder (kEUR 4,293; prior year
kEUR 4,506).

Obligations for employee commitments comprise obligations for outstanding vacation days, bonus and severance payments
amount to KEUR 1,633 (prior year KEUR 2,172).

Liabilities
Remaining maturities are as follows:

Remaining Remaining Maturity Remaining
Maturity less more than 1 yearand  Maturity more
March 31, 2021 than 1 year less than 5 years than 5 years
Liabilities to banks 933,583.34 € 933,583.34 € 0.00 € 0.00 €
Trade payables 430,294.10 € 430,294.10 € 0.00 € 0.00 €
Payables to affiliated companies 17,988,634.48 € 17,988,634.48 € 0.00 € 0.00 €
Other liabilities 982,238.29 € 982,238.29 € 0.00 € 0.00 €
Thereof relating to social 3,810.71 € 3,810.71 € 0.00 € 0.00 €
security and similar
obligations
Thereof relating to taxes 977,442.99 € 977,442.99 € 0.00 € 0.00 €
Total 20,334,750.21 € 20,334,750.21 € 0.00 € 0.00 €
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Remaining Remaining Maturity Remaining
Maturity less more than 1 year and Maturity more
March 31, 2020 than 1 year less than 5 years than 5 years
Trade payables 422,034.94 € 422,034.94 € 0.00 € 0.00 €
Payables to affiliated companies 20,328,306.24 € 20,328,306.24 € 0.00 € 0.00 €
Other liabilities 1,280,267.72 € 1,280,267.72 € 0.00 € 0.00 €
Thereof relating to social 3,750.38 € 3,750.38 € 0.00 € 0.00 €
security and similar
obligations
Thereof relating to taxes 1,271,744.97 € 1,271,744.97 € 0.00 € 0.00 €
Total 22,030,608.90 € 22,030,608.90 € 0.00 € 0.00 €

Liabilities to the shareholder amount to KEUR 12,759 (prior year: KEUR 20,298).

Liabilities to affiliated companies result from deliveries and services (kKEUR 12,941; prior year: kKEUR 20,328) as well as
from loans (KEUR 5,048; prior year: kKEUR 0).

Other liabilities comprise mainly VAT payables as well as social security contributions and taxes.
Income statement disclosures
Revenue

As in the prior year, revenue mainly relates to income from subcontracting activities relating to the rendering of IT services.
They are all generated in Germany. Tech Mahindra GmbH is acting as service agent (“Dienstleistungskommissionar”) as all
material chances and risks related to the provided services are located at Tech Mahindra Limited.

Revenues are presented in the amount of actual costs plus a 7 % mark-up, charged to Tech Mahindra Limited. These
amounts are presented as receivables from affiliated companies from Tech Mahindra Limited. Invoices charged by Tech
Mahindra GmbH to customers locally are presented as trade receivables until they are paid. Corresponding to the trade
receivables, liabilities to affiliated companies are recognized.

Further, revenues include rental in the amount of KEUR 29 (prior year: KEUR 48) due to the sublease of not needed office
space.

Other operating income

Other operating income mainly includes income from release of allowance for doubtful trade receivables from affiliated
companies in the amount of kKEUR 2,547 (previous year: KEUR 0) as well as income from exchange rate differences
amounting to KEUR 30 (previous year: KEUR 158) and income from settling private use of company cars.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses include, in particular, additions to the allowances for doubtful accounts (KEUR 87; prior year:
kEUR 13,918) travel and distribution costs (KEUR 242; prior year: KEUR 1,414), legal and consulting costs (KEUR 1,664;
prior year: kKEUR 1,978) and premises costs (KEUR 2,053; prior year: kKEUR 1,796). The high allowance for doubtful
receivables in the prior period is mainly a correction of an intercompany loan.

Expenses from currency conversion amount to KEUR 678 (prior year: KEUR 39).
Other Interest and similar income

Other interest and similar income include interest from affiliated companies in amount of KEUR 250 (prior year: KEUR 299).
In the prior year, interest on taxes refunds for the years 2010 to 2012 was included in other interest and similar income in
the amount of KEUR 161.

Other Interest and similar expenses

Other interest and similar expenses include interest expenses to affiliated companies in amount of KEUR 339 (prior year:
kEUR 0) as well as interest charged to the provisions for pensions and similar obligations (KEUR 4; prior year: KEUR 6).

Taxes on income

Income taxes comprise as follows:
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Current Income tax expenses (935,920.57)€ (1,600,976.00) €
Tax refund prior years 672,393.07 € 463,261.48 €
Total expenses on Income taxes (263,527.50) € (1,137,714.52) €
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Other disclosures
Other financial obligations

The other financial obligations mainly result from office rental contracts an amount up to kEUR 1,396 (prior year: KEUR 1,563)
due in the next 12 months and kEUR 1,939 (prior year: kKEUR 2,630) for following remaining duration of the agreements.

Employees

In the fiscal year 2020/2021 in average the following number of employees were employed:

number of
Company areas employees
technical consultant 569
sales and support employees 34
Total 603

Management and Remuneration of the members of the Management

Managing directors of the company are

*  Mr. Aloke Palsikar, Bad Soden, Chief operating Office, till September 21, 2020

. Mr. Mukul Dhyani, Frankfurt am Main, Chief operating Office, since September 21, 2020
. Mr. Abhijeeet Anant Awekar, Milton Keynes/UK, CFO till February 9, 2021

. Mr. Mandar Vasant Bhairavkar, Milton Keynes/UK, CFO since February 9, 2021

As the CFO is been paid by the group company in the UK, no remuneration of the members of the management has been
disclosed, with regard to option of § 286 (4) HGB.

Advisory Board

The entity has an advisory board, which is composed of the following two members:

Rajesh Chandiramani, Mumbai/lndien, Tech Mahindra Ltd., Manager

Manish M Vyas, Texas/USA, Tech Mahindra Ltd., Manager

In the reporting year, the members of the advisory board did not receive any remuneration from the entity for their activities.
Events after the balance sheet date

No significant subsequent events after the balance sheet date, which have a significant impact on the income statement
and the balance sheet, have been occurred

Auditor’s fee

In fiscal 2020/2021 the auditor’s fee to KPMG Aktiengesellschaft Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft, Diisseldorf, in the
amount of KEUR 36 (prior year: KEUR 36) were recognized as an expense, which relates exclusively to auditing services.

Group financial statements
TECH MAHINDRA Limited, Pune/India is the sole shareholder of TECH MAHINDRA GmbH.

The Company’s financial statements are included in the consolidated financial statements of TECH MAHINDRA Limited,
Pune/India. TECH MAHINDRA Limited prepares the consolidated financial statements for the smallest and largest
consolidated group in accordance with general accepted accounting standards in India, which are derived from the
Inter~national Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). In accordance with the options of § 291 HGB, TECH MAHINDAR
GmbH does not prepare consolidated financial statements. The published consolidated financial statements of TECH
MAHINDRA Limited are available on the company’s Internet site at www.techmahindra.com.

Proposal or resolution on the appropriation of net profit

The management is proposing the following appropriation of net profit in agreement with the shareholders:
The profit of kKEUR 4,716 will be carried forward and netted with the retained earnings.

Disseldorf, June 8, 2021

Mukul Dhyani Mandar Vasant Bhairavkar
Managing Director Managing Director
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TECH MAHINDRA GMBH

MANAGEMENT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 1 APRIL 2020 TO
31 MARCH 2021

1
1.1

1.2

1.3

Corporate Profile
General business activities

TECH MAHINDRA GmbH (as follows: company or TECH MAHINDRA) is a wholly-owned German subsidiary of Tech
Mahindra Limited, Pune/India (“TM Ltd.”). It was established in 2001. The company’s business activities are focused
on the provision of consultancy technology and rendering outsourcing services in the communications sector.

We generally perform our services on behalf of our parent company within the scope of a service agreement. Our
parent company reaches agreements with the customer regarding those business activities. We are a subcontractor
to our parent company and are therefore not subject to material risks. Remuneration for our activities is based on the
reimbursement of costs incurred plus a mark-up.

Since 2015 we have also concluded a significant number of agreements directly with customers.
Financial performance measures

TECH MAHINDRA is part of the global Tech Mahindra Limited, Pune/India (“TM Ltd.”) group and its reporting system.
The financial performance indicators of the company are revenues as well as result for the year and are described in
section 2 and 3 of this report. As there is no break-down of group budgets on company level, the company reviews its
financial performance indicators mainly by comparison to prior fiscal years.

Non-financial performance indicators

We note that the following non-financial performance indicators are important but are not currently used in the direct
management of our company.

¢ Occupational safety

The constant and consistent implementation of safety guidelines ensures that the risk of accidents is reduced as far as
possible. Occupational safety is the highest principle of management and is more important than the principle of profit
maximization.

e Training Measures

The nature of our business means that we require highly qualified employees for work on high-tech and
telecommunications projects. Training is carried out according to need and is primarily conducted by employees at the
Tech Mahindra development centers in India. Training measures are monitored and evaluated by the HR department,
an employee’s superior and the employee him- or herself.

Report on Economic Conditions and Business
Development of the overall economy and the industry

The performance of the global economy during the second year of the COVID19 pandemic varies considerably between
sectors and regions. Industry is increasingly recovering from its slump in the spring of 2020. Although economic
output in Germany was still growing marginally at the end of 2020 a decline is expected for the first quarter of 2021.
The economic recovery is likely to resume over the coming months as the pandemic is increasingly contained and
restrictions are gradually eased.

The German Council of Economic Experts (GCEE) expects gross domestic product (GDP) in Germany to grow by 3.1
% in 2021. The economic recovery is set to continue apace next year as demand rises worldwide and consumers run
down the savings that they have accumulated. The GCEE expects GDP to grow by 4.0 % in 2022. Consumer price
inflation is likely to rise temporarily this year especially as a result of higher energy prices and the expiry of the VAT cut
to 16% as of December 31, 2020. The GCEE is forecasting that the rate of inflation in Germany will average 2.1 % and
1.9 % in 2021 and 2022, respectively. It expects GDP in the euro area to grow by 4.1 % and 4.2 % in 2021 and 2022,
respectively.

After years of robust growth in the past few years, the German economy had thus embarked upon a period of economic
boom in 2019, before the beginning of the COVID 19 pandemic. In this economic climate, the ECB’s sustained
expansionary monetary policy is partly responsible for a further increase in capacity overutilization in the economy as a
whole. With regard to further impacts from the COVID 19 pandemic on the economic environment, we refer to section
4.2 - Outlook.

The sector in which our company operates, benefits considerably from increasingly strong digitalization and the
continuously high need for investment in IT. Entities know that in order to create sustainable competitiveness, they
need to develop digitally within the company or face irrelevance. These challenges also provide opportunities for the

global technology industry.
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2.2 Report on business

2.2.1 Development of revenue

As our revenues are mainly based on reimbursement of costs incurred plus a 7 % mark-up (“cost-plus method”) as
part of a service agreement, the general economic and industry development have only a limited effect on the business
development of our company.

Revenue from the service agreement decreased from KEUR 83,863 to KEUR 75,064 due to lower costs, which have
been charged to our parent company. The company records also insignificant rental income in the revenue in the
amount of KEUR 29 (prior year KEUR 48) due to the sublease of not needed office space till October 2020.

2.2.2 Investments

In the fiscal year 2020/2021, the company acquired IT - and office - equipment for the locations in Dresden, Leipzig,
Mannheim and Munich in the amount of KEUR 303.

2.2.3 Employees

As at March 31, 2021, the Company counts 584 employees (March 31, 2020: 715 employees). Due to the economic
impacts of the COVID 19 pandemic, the company and its workers council signed an agreement on April 20, 2020 with
regard to the implementation of short-time work at the company. This agreement was designated for a duration of 12
months, but has been extended to December 31, 2021. During the duration of the agreement the company can assign
short-time work to its employees if deemed necessary.

The nature of our business demands the employment of highly skilled personnel who participate in high-tech and
telecommunication projects. That makes it necessary to employ staff from the TECH MAHINDRA development centers
in India.

We also employ qualified staff as well as subcontractors on site. Our employees are working at client companies
throughout Germany, including Bonn, Munich, Koblenz, Wolfsburg and Hamburg. Most of our employees have a
university degree and several of them have even postgraduate qualifications.

2.2.4 Statement on governance

80

The regulation for equal allocation of men and women in leading positions of companies and the public sector (“Gesetz
fur die gleichberechtigte Teilhabe von Frauen und Mannern an Fihrungspersonen in der Privatwirtschaft und im
offentlichen Dienst”) requires, that the supervisory board and the management sets a target for the quote of women in
supervisory board include time limits, in which this target has to be fulfilled.

The resolution of the shareholder and the management is still to be made.
Business development
Results of operations

Under the service agreement concluded with the parent company, TECH MAHINDRA is reimbursed for the cost
incurred and receives a mark-up of 7 %, so that TECH MAHINDRA always disposes on constant cash inflows and
realizes revenue that more than compensate the costs. In the period for the financial year 2020/2021, the Company
reported a net profit of KEUR 4,716, compared to net loss of KEUR 8,956 in the prior year. This profit for the year
corresponds to 6.3 % of the total revenue (prior year: -10.7 %). The loss in the prior year was primarily due to additions
to doubtful account for intercompany loans (included in intercompany receivables) in the amount of kKEUR 12,934.
Without the prior year recognition of the allowance in the amount of KEUR 12,934, prior years result would be a profit
of KEUR 3,978 (4.7 % of sales).

The cost of materials, which related exclusively to purchased services, totaled KEUR 26,354 (prior year: KEUR 25,155).
The materials usage ratio (ratio of cost of materials to revenue) increased from 30.0 % to 35.1 % due to an increased
need for purchased services at some projects.

The decline in employee benefits expense from kEUR 46,309 to kEUR 38,467 is mainly due to the lower numbers of
employees. The employee benefits expense ratio (ratio of employee benefits expense to revenue) amounts to 51.2 %
(prior year: 55.2 %). The lower personnel expenses were partly compensated by higher purchased services.

Other operating expenses decreased significantly from kEUR 21,006 to kEUR 6,772. The decline is notably attributable
to the prior year’s provision for doubtful loans given to intercompany amounting to kEUR 12,934. In addition, the
company incurred higher exchange losses. Due to the current pandemic situation, there has been a significant
reduction in travel and marketing costs as compared to last year.
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Net assets

The equity ratio decreased from 34.4 % to 29.9 % following the decrease of kKEUR 4,660 in equity to KEUR 13,188. The
decline in equity is mainly due to the decrease of the capital reserve in the amount of kKEUR 9,377 due to the merger
of an affiliated company, which has been partly compensated by the profit of the year in the amount of KEUR 4,716.

The Company’s assets are dominated by trade receivables as well as receivables from affiliated companies.

Trade receivables decreased from kEUR 18,258 to KEUR 14,769 mainly due an improved receivable management and
significant payments collected before the balance sheet date as well as due to lower sales in the current year.

The decline in receivables from affiliated companies from KEUR 27,280 to kEUR 24,679 relates mainly to lower sales.

The variance in cash and cash equivalents as part of the cash funds is presented together with the information on the
financial position below.

The lower other accruals as compared to last year were primarily due lower tax provision due to advance tax payments
in the current year.

Liabilities to affiliated companies decreased slightly to KEUR 17,989 as compared to KEUR 20,328 of last year due to
lower sales.

Financial situation

As of March 31, 2021, the company’s cash funds (cash-in-hand, bank balances) amounted to KEUR 145 (March 31,
2020: kEUR 1,110). While the operative cash flow increased significantly in current year, the decrease in cash funds
relates mainly to the repayment of intercompany loans, which have been transferred to the company as part of the
merger, as well as investing in newer expenditures for IT — and office-equipment at the new locations.

The service agreement ensures continuous cash inflow for the financing of current business activities.
Overall Assessment of the Economic Situation

In the opinion of the management of the company, the business development is generally satisfying. Despite the fact
that sales did not rise as forecasted due to the impacts and restrictions of the COVID 19 pandemic, the management
is satisfied with the development of sales and the profit for the year considering the current situation.

The company has considered the possible effects that may result from COVID-19, a global pandemic, on the carrying
amount of receivables, unbilled revenue and intangible assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible
future uncertainties in global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the company, as at the date of approval
of this management report has used internal and external sources of information including economic forecasts. The
company based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of the above assets will be recovered, net of
provisions established.

Outlook, risks and opportunities for future development

Report on risks and opportunities

4.1.1 Risk management

The company has a financial reporting system, which is integrated into the TECH MAHINDRA group reporting
structures. This supports the company in the ongoing monitoring and management of business development by means
of target, actual and budget comparisons on group level.

As a result of the service agreement described above, the company has constant cash inflows and revenue above the
level of its costs. Owing to the agreements that are in place, the company is not subject to significant business risk.

4.1.2 Risks and opportunities for future development

A number of the risks we face relate to the development of offshore services, increased competition and lower revenues
as well as lower profits. We are focused on overcoming those risks by continuing to increase our marketing activities,
developing clear quality guarantees for existing customers, extending our activities beyond our usual areas of business
(e.g. OSS, VAS and networks) and entering new markets.

As risk, we define future developments or events, which have impact on the budgeted results of the company and the
group respectively. We classify the risks in economic risks, employee related risks and technology risks. The company
is facing the following risks, which are present from risks with highest occurrence and the highest possible impact to
the lowest occurrence and lowest financial impact.

o Economic downturn due to the COVID-19

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic the global economic trend is slowing down and companies could consider cutting their
budgets with regard to investment in the IT infrastructure or to postpone IT - projects.
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* Employee related risks:

With the evolving IT industry, right skillset and talent is required to respond quickly to the ongoing changes. The inability
to cost effective hiring and retaining increased number of professionals with the required skillset is to be consider as a
risk.

* Technology risks:

The industry has been seeing a shift to disruptive technologies which are continually evolving. This shift, coupled with
changes in business models and consumer spending patterns could be a threat to the growth in traditional IT spends
and technology obsolescence.

The following opportunities are currently followed by the company:
* Digitalization Trend

The COVID-19 pandemic showed a significant need to digitalize processes in companies and further improve the IT
infrastructure. The TECH MAHINDRA group provides the necessary services to these companies, which comprises
significant business opportunities for the company.

* Employees

The company sees a big opportunity, that its recruits also employee in India, which offers more skilled and trained IT —
professionals then the limited market in Germany and Europe.

e Cost advantage

Due to the possibility to outsource part or complete orders to its shareholder in India, which has a different and lower
cost structure, the company has a cost advantage in regard to its competitors.

4.1.3 Overall assessment of the risk and opportunity situation

Despite the COVID-19 pandemic, the overall view of the company’s risk and opportunity situation remains essentially
unchanged. Currently, there are no risks recognizable, that either alone or in combination with other risks could
endanger the continued going concern of the company.

4.2 Outlook

4.2.1 General economic outlook

Due to the economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the German government expects annual average growth in
real gross domestic product (GDP) of 3.1 % in the remaining year of 2021, for 2022 a phase of recovery is predicted
with a growth of 4 %.

4.2.2 Companies outlook

Taking into account the current order backlog and business situation, we expect revenue increase slightly in the
financial year 2021/2022 and the following years, despite the current economic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. The
company'’s business will primarily consist of follow-up orders and acquired contracts. We also plan to generate growth
by extending our range of services and entering new markets. Profit for the year will increase slightly in comparison to
the profit in the current year.

The company has good prospects in the financial year 2021/2022 as we plan to develop additional businesses activities
in new areas and segments. We expect the profit/revenue ratio to remain at the same level due to the nature of our
business model (cost-plus method). However, increased volumes of business and higher revenue mean that we expect
profits to increase in the coming years.

We assume gradual growth in the future since the companies are under cost pressure. We continue to expect demand
for outsourcing and offshoring as well as managed service to increase. The introduction of new technologies is often
accompanied by a lack of technical skills, which TECH MAHINDRA can provide.

The predicted slightly increase in revenue and profit is based on an increased volume of business, which will result in
higher operating costs.

The company has considered the possible effects that may result from COVID-19, a global pandemic, and does as of
the date of this report not foresee any impact on its current business plan.

Dusseldorf/Germany, June 8, 2021

Mukul Dhyani Mandar Vasant Bhairavkar

Managing Director Managing Director
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MAD*POW MEDIA SOLUTIONS, LLC
ACCOUNTANT’S COMPILATION REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Mad*Pow Media Solutions, LLC
Portsmouth, NH

Management is responsible for the accompanying financial statements of Mad*Pow Media Solutions, LLC (a Limited Liability
Company), which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2020, and the related statements of operations and
changes in members’ equity and cash flows for the 12 months then ended December 31, 2020 and the related notes to the
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have
performed a compilation engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services
promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. We did not audit or review the financial
statements nor were we required to perform any procedures to verify the accuracy or completeness of the information
provided by management. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on
these financial statements.

The supplementary information contained in Schedules of Expenses is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management. The
supplementary information was subject to our compilation engagement. We have not audited or reviewed the supplementary
information and do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any assurance on such information.

CKH CPAs and Advisors, LLC
Atlanta, Georgia
March 30, 2021
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BALANCE SHEET

AT DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net

Due from related parties

Prepaid state and other taxes

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Non-current assets
Right of use asset
Property and equipment, net

Total Assets
Current liabilities
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Unearned revenue

Income taxes payable

Lease liability current portion
Short-term debt and line of credit

Non-current liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities
Lease liability non-current portion

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)
Members’ Equity

Members’ equity

Total Liabilities and Members’ Equity

MAD*POW MEDIA SOLUTIONS, LLC

2020 2019

$ 3,285,623 $ 1,680,589
2,809,968 3,974,971
304,052 105,484

- 28,019

220,963 149,431
6,620,606 5,938,494
3,644,421 4,165,810
474,761 582,112
4,119,182 4,747,922

$ 10,739,788 $ 10,686,416

$95,293 210,044
1,247,849 331,394
310,774 893,107
73,869 -
526,621 491,786

- 586,416
2,254,406 2,512,747
80,846 73,374
3,240,101 3,766,721
3,320,947 3,840,095
5,575,353 6,352,842
5,164,435 4,333,574

$ 10,739,788 $ 10,686,416

85



MAD*POW MEDIA SOLUTIONS, LLC
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 and the PERIOD AUGUST 1, 2019 to DECEMBER 31, 2019

Schedules 12 months ended
December 31,

5 months ended
December 31,

2020 2019
REVENUES:
Consulting services $ 15,908,592 $ 7,805,264
Conference income 132,318 37,377
Total revenues 16,040,910 7,842,641
COST OF REVENUES:
Cost of revenue for consulting service 9,677,340 4,731,097
Cost of revenue for conferences 178,217 148,239
Total cost of revenues 9,855,557 4,879,336
GROSS PROFIT 6,185,353 2,963,305
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel 2,404,523 1,079,158
General and administrative | 1,689,866 743,476
Sales and marketing I 152,035 88,230
Depreciation Note 6 183,409 94,397
Total operating expenses 4,429,833 2,005,261
OPERATING PROFIT 1,755,520 958,044
OTHER EXPENSES
Interest expense, net (4,962) 9,984
Interest (income)/expense, net (4,962) 9,984
Total other (income)/expenses 1,760,482 948,060
INCOME TAX EXPENSE Note 8 134,423 88,435
NET PROFIT $ 1,626,059 $ 859,625

All revenue and profit for the year is generated from continuing operations.
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MAD*POW MEDIA SOLUTIONS, LLC
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS’ EQUITY

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 and the PERIOD AUGUST 1, 2019 to DECEMBER 31, 2019

Members’ Accumulated Total Member’s
Capital Profits Equity
Balance at August 1, 2019 $ 100 $ 3,528,599 $ 3,528,699
Net income for the period - 859,625 859,625
Members drawings for the period - (54,750) (54,750)
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 100 $ 4,333,474 $ 4,333,574
Net income for the year - 1,626,059 1,626,059
Members drawings for the year - (795,198) (795,198)
Balance at December 31, 2020 $ 100 $ 5,164,335 $ 5,164,435
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MAD*POW MEDIA SOLUTIONS, LLC
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 and the PERIOD AUGUST 1, 2019 to DECEMBER 31, 2019

Cash flows from operating activities

Net Income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:

Depreciation

Deferred income taxes

Lease expense

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net

Due from related parties

State and other taxes

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Unearned revenue

Operating lease payments

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Accounts payable

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditures

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Members drawings

Proceeds from debt and line of credit
Repayment of debt and line of credit

Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase in cash

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest

Cash paid for income taxes
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12 months ended 5 months ended

December 31,

December 31,

2020 2019
$ 1,626,059 $ 859,625
183,409 94,397

7,472 72,752

687,575 286,490
1,165,003 (1,351,720)
(198,568) (105,484)
28,019 (5,465)

(71,532) (27,140)
(582,333) 627,263
(657,971) (234,992)
916,455 (79,625)
(114,751) 110,365
3,062,706 246,466
(76,058) (74,197)
(76,058) (74,197)
(795,198) (54,750)

- 550,000

(586,416) (22,262)
(1,381,614) 472,988
1,605,034 645,257
1,680,589 1,035,332

$ 3,285,623 $ 1,680,589
$ 3,425 $ 9,984
$ 81,101 $ 22,856



MAD*POW MEDIA SOLUTIONS, LLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019
1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Mad*Pow Media Solutions, LLC, “the company” is a consulting business that specializes in providing strategic user-centered
design services and digital solutions to a diverse client base across various industries throughout the United States. Digital
solutions comprise, but are not limited to, assisting clients with customer research, customer experience strategy and
design, behavior change, marketing content strategy, mobile application and website development.

The company was converted from a New Hampshire Limited Liability company to a Delaware Limited liability company on
July 29th, 2019. Tech Mahindra (Americas), Inc. acquired 65% of the shares of the company on July 31st, 2019. A further
11.66% was acquired during this year as stipulated by the stipulations of the initial purchase agreement.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

These financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires the Company to make estimates
and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results may differ from
those estimates.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from consulting services contracts are recognized as the services are performed and the amounts are
earned. The Company considers amounts to be earned once evidence of an arrangement has been obtained,
services have been provided, fees are fixed or determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured.

The company further generates revenue by hosting conferences and only recognizes this revenue once the event
is held.

Revenues from consulting services and conferences, together with all reimbursed costs for out of pocket expenses
are presented on the statement of operations, net of allowances or adjustments for agreed changes to reimbursed
costs.

COST OF REVENUE

This includes all direct costs for employee and contractors consisting of salaries and contract payments, payroll
taxes, insurance costs as well as reimbursable costs such as travel, lodging or entertainment.

All costs associated with hosting conferences are capitalized to prepaid expenses and only recognized as cost of
sales once the event has taken place.

SALES AND MARKETING COSTS

The Company expenses all costs for sales marketing and advertising as and when they are incurred. Sales and
marketing costs, including direct advertising costs, for the twelve months ending December 31, 2020 and the five
months ended December 31, 2019, were $88,230 and $152,035 respectively. The composition of these costs
were detailed in the supplemental schedule Il to the financial statements.

INCOME TAXES

A multi-member limited liability company is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes and is not
subject to federal income taxes. The taxable income or loss of the company is included in the individual income
tax returns of its members based upon their percentage of ownership. Consequently, no federal tax provision for
income taxes is required in the accompanying financial statements.

The company pays state taxes to MA and NH, in addition to the state taxes that it pays on behalf of its members
through composite tax returns. Accordingly, there is a state tax provision raised for composite taxes which is
included in the financial statements when required.

The company accounts for income taxes using Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) 740, Income Taxes. Under FASB ASC 740, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
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differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Under FASB ASC 740 the effect on the deferred tax assets
and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. The
Company records valuation allowances against deferred tax assets as deemed necessary.

Per FASB ASC 740-10-20, the Company follows the recognition requirements for uncertain tax positions as
required by generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. Income tax benefits are
recognized for income tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, only when it is determined
that the income tax position will more-likely-than-not be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. The
Company has analyzed tax positions taken for filing with all state jurisdictions where it operates.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company considers all highly-liquid investments with maturities of three months or less to be cash or cash
equivalents.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation covers $250,000 for substantially all depository accounts held by
a financial institution in the United States of America. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had
$3,068,076 and $1,430,589 respectively with financial institutions in excess of the federally insured limit.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

Accounts receivable are the amounts owed on invoiced contractual agreements either in process or completed
by the Company. Accounts receivable are considered delinquent when payment is not received under terms
described within the individual contract’s terms.

An allowance for doubtful accounts is provided for those balances considered to be uncollectible based upon
historical experience and the Company’s specific review of outstanding account balances. Company policy is
that accounts overdue in excess of 120 days and not subject to offsetting is a strong indicator that the receivable
has potentially impaired. Management will critically assess each receivable overdue in excess of 120 days for
impairment and then raise an allowance if deemed necessary. Bad debts are written off against the allowance
when identified.

UNBILLED RECEIVABLES

Unbilled receivables represent accrued revenue earned and recognized on projects for which billings have not yet
been presented to the customer.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Computers and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation, however the depreciation for this
category of assets is provided by applying the double declining balance method for the first three years of use of
the asset and the straight-line method of the remaining balance for the following two years.

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method and is generally based on the following useful lives:

*  Furniture and fixtures — seven years;
*  Software — three years;

* Leasehold improvements — lesser of remaining life of lease (including probable lease extensions) or estimated
useful life of equipment.

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to income as incurred. Additions and betterments are
capitalized. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are
removed from the appropriate accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in operations.

The Company annually reviews the status of property and equipment held by the Company for any impairment of
those assets. Any such impairment would result in a permanent reduction in the recorded value of the asset. No
such impairments existed at December 31, 2020.

RELATED PARTIES

Related parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control or jointly control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operational decisions. Key management
personnel are also regarded as related parties. Key management personnel are those persons having authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including
any director (whether executive or otherwise). Transactions involving related parties are carried out on an arm’s
length basis.
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MAD*POW MEDIA SOLUTIONS, LLC
L. LEASES

The company determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception of the arrangement. These leases are classified
as either an operating lease or a finance lease. Based on the evaluation of leases for the period ended December
31, 2020, no leases meet the criteria for classification as a finance lease. Operating leases are capitalized on the
balance sheet through a right-of-use (“ROU”) asset and a corresponding lease liability. ROU assets represent the
company’s right to use an underlying asset for the lease term, and lease liabilities represent the obligation to make
lease payments arising from the lease.

Operating leases are included in operating lease ROU assets, current operating lease liabilities, and long-term
operating lease liabilities on the balance sheet. Operating lease ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at the
commencement date of an arrangement based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. The
operating lease ROU asset also includes any lease payments made to the lessor prior to lease commencement,
less any lease incentives, and initial direct costs incurred. Lease expense for operating lease payments is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The company enters into long-term contracts to lease office space in support of company operations and these
have all been determined to represent operating leases.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

At December 31, accounts receivable balances were as follows:

2020 2019
Amounts due for services rendered and billed $2,553,989 $3,902,276
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (199,388) (242,733)
Amounts due for services rendered and billed, net 2,354,601 3,659,543
Amounts due for services rendered, not billed 455,367 315,428
Total accounts receivable, net $ 2,809,968 $ 3,974,971

4. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year, the Company had transactions with Tech Mahindra (Americas), Inc.(“TMA”). At December 31, the
Company had receivables due from TMA as follows:

2020 2019
Beginning balance 105,484 -
Contract revenue - parent company
Billed income 1,353,824 $21,103
Unbilled revenue 129,880 84,381
Receipts (1,285,136) -
Ending balance, due from $ 304,052 $ 105,484

OPERATING LEASES

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02 (Topic 842) “Leases.” Topic 842
supersedes the lease requirements in Accounting Standards Codification Topic 840, “Leases.” Under Topic 842,
lessees are required to recognize assets and liabilities on the balance sheet for most leases and provide enhanced
disclosures. Leases will continue to be classified as either finance or operating.

The company adopted Topic 842 effective August 1, 2019. The most significant effects of Topic 842 were the recognition
of right of use assets and of operating lease liabilities. We applied Topic 842 to all leases as of August 1, 2019. In
the adoption of Topic 842, we carried forward the assessment from Topic 840 of whether our contracts contain or are
leases, the classification of our leases, and remaining lease terms. The standard does not have a significant effect on
our consolidated results of operations and cash flows.

On August 31, 2017 the Company entered into a building lease with Invesco IF IV U.S.3,LLC, for business use and
occupancy of office space in Boston, Massachusetts. The lease was an extension of an existing lease dated June 8,
2012. The lease was extended beyond December 31, 2019 and is now effective until December 31, 2027. The new
lease extension also stipulates the inclusion of additional floor space to that which was stipulated in the original lease.
The lease is subject to an annual increase as stipulated in the agreement applied from April 1st, 2020. In addition to
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the rental payable the company will also be responsible to pay certain recoveries of operational costs and taxes. The
company has accounted for this new lease at December 31, 2020 and 2019, in terms of the policies in Note 2L of the
accounting policies disclosed above.

On September 5, 2018 the Company entered into a building lease with Wenberry Associates,LLC., for business use
and occupancy of office space in Portsmouth, New Hampshire. The lease was an extension of an existing lease dated
November 18, 2009. The lease was extended beyond December 31, 2018 and is now effective until December 31,
2023. The lease is subject to an annual increase at a rate equal to the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers,
but shall not exceed 3% in any year. In addition to the rental payable the company will also be responsible to pay
certain recoveries of operational costs and taxes. The company has accounted for this new lease at December 31,
2020 and 2019, in terms of Note 2L of the accounting policies disclosed above.

Rent expense for all properties rented for the twelve months ended December 31, 2020 and the five months ended
December 31, 2019 was $687,575 and $286,490 respectively. The future minimum lease commitments are as follows:

Years ending December 31, $

2021 671,902
2022 685,916
2023 700,015
2024 548,600
2025 559,000
2026 569,400
2027 580,667

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

At December 31, property and equipment balances were as follows:

2020 2019
Computers and equipment $ 967,892 §$ 931,016
Furniture 291,062 291,062
Leasehold improvements 614,973 605,465
Software 137,385 179,814
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,536,551) (1,425,245)

$ 474,761 $ 582,112

The total depreciation expense recognized for the twelve months ending December 31, 2020 and for the five months
ending December 31, 2019 was $183,409 and $94,397 respectively. The depreciation policies followed by the Company
are disclosed in Note 2J above.

SHORT-TERM DEBT AND LINE OF CREDIT FACILITY

On June 2, 2012, the Company entered into a line of credit agreement for $750,000 with People’s United Bank
(the “Bank™). The line is collateralized by the assets of the Company and the balance outstanding on this
line at December 31, 2019 was $550,000 and was fully repaid during the year ended December 31, 2020.
Additionally, on August 20, 2015 the Company entered into an term loan agreement with the Bank for an amount of
$250,000. The loan is collateralized by the assets of the Company and the balance outstanding at December 31, 2019
was $36,416 and was fully repaid during the year ended December 31, 2020.

2020 2019
Opening Balance - Line of credit $ 550,000 $ -
Proceeds - 550,000
Interest 2,957 9,133
Repayments made (552,957) (9,133)
Balance at December 31, of outstanding line of credit $ - 3 550,000
Opening Balance - Term loan $ 36,416 $ 58,677
Interest 468 852
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2020 2019

Repayments made (36,884) (23,113)

Balance at December 31, of outstanding term loan $ - 3 36,416

Total short term debt and line of credit $ - $ 586,416
INCOME TAXES

The company accounts for state income taxes under the provisions of the FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes, as noted in
Note 2F the company does not accounts for Federal Income Taxes.

2020 2019
Current state income tax expense consists of the following:
Business enterprise tax $ 32,859 $ 15,683
Other State taxes 94,092 -
$ 126,951 $ 15,683
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense consists of the following:
State $ 7472 $ 72,752
7,472 72,752
Total current and deferred income tax (benefit) expense $ 134,423 $ 88,435
Deferred tax liability consists of the following:
State $(80,846) $(73,374)
$(80,846) $(73,374)

In the ordinary course of business there are transactions with affiliated companies that affect the calculation and
estimation of the Company’s tax liability. Although management believes that the Company’s tax estimates are
reasonable, there is no assurance that the final determination of tax liability will not be different from what is reflected
in the Company’s historical income tax provisions and accruals.

The Company does not anticipate any amount to be recognized related to the Company’s uncertain tax position.
MEMBERS’ EQUITY

On July 29, 2019, Tech Mahindra (Americas), Inc. (“TMA”) entered into an agreement with the members of the Company
whereby it acquired 65% of the shares in the company. Under this agreement TMA will purchase the balance of the
shares over the next three years and thus purchased an additional 11.66% in the current year. At December 31, 2020
three individuals, resident in the State of New Hampshire (“minority shareholders”) continue to hold the remaining
minority interest in the Company.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
CONTINGENT LIABILITY

The Company received notice from the State of New Hampshire Department of Revenue and Administration on
February 18, 2020 of revised Business Tax Assessments based on the findings of their audit. The Company has
subsequently appealed to the notice and are confident that their objection will be successful, however the Company
cannot reasonably predict the ultimate outcome. The amount of the additional taxes levied for the fiscal years ending
December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were $ 15,017, $ 10,418 and $ 11,175 respectively.
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11. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

REVENUE AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The majority of the Company’s sales are credit sales and terms offered to customers vary according to the credit risk
profiles of, and the invoicing conventions established in, the entity’s markets. The contractual terms on invoices issued
to customers vary and are payable upon receipt or immediate to within 120 days.

Aging analysis of gross trade receivables, is as follows:

2020 2019
Less than 30 days $ 2113691 $ 3,281,888
Between 30 and 60 days 160,896 278,539
Between 60 and 120 days 80,014 99,116
More than 120 days (provided for in full) 199,388 242,733

$ 2,553,989 §$ 3,902,276

The following are customer concentration for sales for the year ended December 31, 2020 and billed accounts
receivable as at December 31, 2020.

Billed Revenue concentration for the 12 months ended December 31, 2020:

Amount, $ Concentration

Customer A 2,462,821 15%
Customer B 1,825,634 1%
Customer C 1,380,800 9%
Customer D 1,353,824 9%
Customer E 1,072,663 7%

Billed accounts receivable concentrations as at December 31, 2020:
Amount, $ Concentration

Customer A 549,306 22%
Customer F 315,974 12%
Customer H 288,312 1%
Customer J 240,919 9%
Customer K 239,885 9%

The following are customer concentration for sales for the five months ended December 31, 2019 and billed accounts
receivable as at December 31, 2019.

Billed Revenue concentration for the five months ended December 31, 2019:

Amount, $ Concentration

Customer B 2,267,749 29%
Customer | 910,669 12%
Customer H 609,572 8%
Customer A 493,951 6%
Customer J 475,349 6%

Billed accounts receivable concentrations as at December 31, 2019:
Amount, $ Concentration

Customer B 882,550 23%
Customer L 838,138 21%
Customer A 350,846 9%
Customer H 319,184 8%
Customer M 236,483 6%
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MAD*POW MEDIA SOLUTIONS, LLC
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is defined under Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures”
(“ASC 820”), as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in the principal or most
advantageous market in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. ASC 820 also
establishes a three-level hierarchy, which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize
the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of
inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability on the measurement date. The three levels are defined as follows:

Level 1-inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for an identical asset or liability in an active
market.

Level 2—inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for a similar asset or liability in an active market
or model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs are observable for substantially the full term of the asset or
liability.

Level 3—-inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement of the
asset or liability.

The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate fair value due to the short-
term maturity of the instruments. The carrying amounts of the Company’s floatable interest rate debt are considered
reasonable estimates of fair value.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

The Company sponsored defined contribution plans in which eligible participants may defer a fixed amount or a
percentage of their eligible compensation, subject to limitations, pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code. The Company made discretionary matching contributions of eligible compensation. Contributions are
discretionary and evaluated annually. Aggregate contributions charged to operations, including discretionary amounts,
for the five months ending December 31, 2019 was $126,881 and for the twelve months ending December 31, 2020
was $290,644.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 30, 2021. No significant events occurred subsequent
to the balance sheet date that would have a material impact on the financial statements.
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SCHEDULES OF EXPENSES

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 and the PERIOD AUGUST 1, 2019 to DECEMBER 31, 2019
$ $

Year ended 5 months ended

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Schedule |
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Lease expense and other rent 687,575 286,490
Professional fees 159,197 54,720
Computer and software expenses 156,195 58,590
Operational costs on rentals 77,886 25,695
Dues and subscriptions 113,820 43,737
Bad and doubtful receivables 98,408 94,729
Insurance 83,277 31,543
Communications 61,470 11,473
Office supplies, printing and postage 50,968 5,623
Automobile expenses 31,265 10,220
Meals and entertainment 26,288 23,204
Training and continuing education 18,643 14,243
Charitable contributions 18,070 17,600
Utilities 88,597 14,550
Travel expenses 9,328 18,786
Cleaning and janitorial expenses 8,561 8,020
Other Taxes - 1,930
Miscellaneous expenses 318 22,323
1,689,866 743,476
Schedule Il
SALES AND MARKETING
Advertising and promotions 74,381 13,704
Office supplies, printing and posting 41,346 16,963
Meals and entertainment 14,551 41,917
Research and samples 14,000 5,833
Travel expenses 7,757 9,813
152,035 88,230
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
The CJS Solutions Group, LLC and Subsidiaries a Florida Limited Liability Company Jacksonville,Florida

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The CJS Solutions Group, LLC. and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Company”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2020and
the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, members’ capital and cash flows for the year
ended December 31, 2020 and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risk of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company, as of December 31, 2020, the results of operations and its cash flow for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other matters
As discussed in Note 8 to the financial statements, the Company has had numerous transactions with the related parties.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The Consolidated
Supplemental Schedule of Expenses on page 113 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a
whole.

CKH CPAs and Advisors, LLC
Atlanta, Georgia May 14, 2021
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THE CJS SOLUTIONS GROUP, LLC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AT DECEMBER 31,2020 AND 2019

2020 2019
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,203,883 $ 2,722,836
Accounts receivable, net 3 13,815,181 44,218,050
Due from related parties 8 16,801,824 316,074
Prepaid income tax 4,199,670 2,969,841
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 124,363 1,294,256
43,144,921 51,521,057
Non-current assets
Property and equipment, net 5 2,026,975 583,748
Right of use asset 1,788,623 82,840-
Capital work in progress 111,582 484,631
Deferred income tax asset 4 6,845,615 4,946,361
Intangible assets, net 6 12,736,201 18,169,534
Goodwill, net 7 38,405,541 44,078,820
59,887,562 67,762,186
Total Assets $ 105,059,458 $ 119,866,991
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 1,944,492 2,612,967
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 6,504,673 8,484,456
Income taxes payable 6,428,797 3,983,192
Lease liability current portion 244,622 91,615
Due to related parties 8 36,338 1,497,090
Short-term debt and line of credit 9 - 16,614,161
Total liabilities 15,158,922 33,283,481
Non-current liabilities
Lease liability non-current portion 1,768,965 -
Total liabilities 16,927,887 33,283,481
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12 and 13)
Members' Equity
Members' equity 10 88,131,571 86,583,510
Total Liabilities and Members' Capital $ 105,059,458 $ 119,866,991

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 3
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THE CJS SOLUTIONS GROUP, LLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

FOR YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

REVENUES

COST OF REVENUES

GROSS PROFIT

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel

General and administrative
Amortization

Depreciation

Total operating expenses
OPERATING PROFIT / (LOSS)
OTHER INCOME / (EXPENSES)
Other income

Interest expense, net

Foreign currency (loss) / gain
Total other income / (expenses)
Profit / (loss) before income tax expense
INCOME TAX EXPENSE

NET PROFIT / (LOSS)

Other comprehensive gain
Gain/(Loss) on foreign currency translation
Comprehensive Gain / (Loss)

OF OPERATIONS AND
Schedules 2020 2019
$112,716,430 $166,984,166
| 80,894,068 133,657,255
31,822,362 33,326,911
9,471,890 14,910,714
| 8,141,484 8,471,342
11,106,612 11,106,613
Note 5 839,076 432,046
29,559,062 34,920,715
2,263,300 (1,593,804)
384,506 434,488
(872,730) (1,004,971)
596,754 (1,186,671)
108,530 (1,757,154)
2,371,830 (3,350,958)
Note 4 (521,027) (10,358)
1,850,803 (3,361,316)
(302,742) 1,174,812
1,548,061 (2,186,504)

All revenue and profit for the year is generated from continuing operations.
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Balance at December 31, 2018
Net loss for the period

Other comprehensive gain
Balance at December 31, 2019
Net loss for the period

Other comprehensive loss
Balance at December 31, 2020

THE CJS SOLUTIONS GROUP, LLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS' EQUITY

FOR YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

Accumulated

Members’ Other Accumulated Total
Capital Comprehensive (Deficit) Members’
(Loss) Capital
$ 99,927,450 $ (1,762,028) $ (9,395,408) $ 88,770,014
- - (3,361,316) (3,361,316)
- 1,174,812 - 1,174,812
99,927,450 (587,216) (12,756,724) 86,583,510
- - 1,850,803 1,850,803
- (302,742) - (302,742)
$ 99,927,450 $ (889,958) $(10,905,921) $ 88,131,571

101



THE CJS SOLUTIONS GROUP, LLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Net Loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:

Amortization

Depreciation

Deferred income tax benefit

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net

Due from related parties

Prepaid income taxes

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other receivables

Right of Use Asset

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Accounts payable

Income taxes payable

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditures

Due from related parties

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Committed loan

Lease Liability

Proceeds from uncommitted loans
Repayment of uncommitted loans

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Net decrease in cash
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31

2020 2019
$1,850,803  $(3,361,316)
11,106,612 11,106,613
839,076 432,046
(1,899,254) (2,323,714)
30,402,870 11,129,413
19,553,498 (605,197)
(1,229,829) (948,482)
1,169,893 496,846
(2,361,154) (82,840)
(1,979,783) 818,288
(668,476) 29,617
2,445,605 3,385,470
59,229,861 20,076,744
(1,253,883) (657,993)
(37,500,000) -
(38,753,883) (657,993)
(12,614,161) 2,614,161
1,921,972 91,615
37,500,000 56,425,686
(41,500,000) (82,425,686)
(14,692,189) (23,294,224)
(302,742) 1,174,812
5,481,047 (2,700,661)
2,722,836 5,423,497

$ 8,203,883 $ 2,722,836
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THE CJS SOLUTIONS GROUP, LLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019
NATURE OF OPERATIONS

1.

The CJS Solutions Group, LLC (the “Parent”) and Subsidiaries (the “Company”) is a consulting firm that specializes in
providing resources to plan, manage, build, optimize and generally assist in the implementation of electronic medical
records systems (“EMR”) in hospitals and health care systems.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company includes The CJS Solutions Group, LLC d/b/a The HCI Group
and its wholly owned subsidiary, HCI Group UK Ltd. (the “Subsidiary”) and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Healthcare
Clinical Informatics Ltd., CJS Solutions Group Canada ULC, HCI Group DMCC and HCI Group Australia Pty Ltd. Refer
to Note 13 below for details on closure of subsidiaries.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect the consolidated results of the Parent and its
subsidiaries for the period ended December 31, 2020. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires the Company to make estimates
and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results may differ from
those estimates.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from consulting services contracts is recognized as the services are performed and amounts are earned.
The Company considers amounts to be earned once evidence of an arrangement has been obtained, services are
provided, fees are fixed or determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured.

Revenues from these services and reimbursed costs for out of pocket expenses are presented on the statement
of operations and comprehensive loss, net of allowances or adjustments for agreed changes to reimbursed costs.

COST OF REVENUE

Direct costs for employee or contractor placements consists of salaries and contract payments (mainly from
hours), payroll taxes, insurance costs as well as reimbursable costs such as travel, lodging or entertainment.

ADVERTISING AND MARKETING

The Company expenses all advertising costs as incurred. Sales and Marketing costs incurred for period ended
December 31, 2020, was $624,506, and for the period ended December 31, 2019, was $665,082.

INCOME TAXES

CJS, was formed as a Limited Liability Company. On May 5, 2017 management elected to have the entity file an
income tax return as a corporation.

CJS accounts for income taxes using Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards
Cadification (ASC) 740, Income Taxes. Under FASB ASC 740, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. Under FASB ASC 740 the effect on the deferred tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. CJS records valuation
allowances against deferred tax assets as deemed necessary.

Per FASB ASC 740-10-20, the Company follows the recognition requirements for uncertain tax positions as required
by generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. Income tax benefits are recognized
for income tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, only when it is determined that the income
tax position will more-likely-than-not be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. The Company has
analyzed tax positions taken for filing with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and all state jurisdictions where it
operates.
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In accordance with guidance in ASC 740-10-30-27, the Company uses a “separate return” method to allocate
current and deferred taxes or benefits to members of the consolidated return group (“TMA and subsidiaries”) by
applying ASC 740 to each member as if they were separate tax payers. Under the “separate return” method, the
subsidiary is assumed to file a separate return with the taxing authority, thereby reporting its taxable income or loss
and paying the applicable tax to or receiving the appropriate refund from the Parent.

For the foreign subsidiaries deferred tax assets are only recognized if it is probable that they will be used.
CASH

The Company considers all highly-liquid investments with maturities of three months or less to be cash or cash
equivalents.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation covers $250,000 for substantially all depository accounts held by a
financial institution in the United States of America. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had

$4,715,019 and $1,302,476 respectively with financial institutions in excess of the federally insured limit.

The Financial Services Compensation Scheme covers small businesses in the United Kingdom that hold deposits
at member banks up to £85,000. As of December 31,2020 and 2019 such balances held in the United Kingdom
exceeded the insured limits by £1,933,820 ($2,642,202) and £570,360 ($756,722) respectively.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

Accounts receivable are the amounts owed on invoiced contractual agreements either in process or completed
by the Company. Accounts receivable are considered delinquent when payment is not received under terms
described within the individual contract’s terms.

An allowance for doubtful accounts is provided for those balances considered to be uncollectible based upon
historical experience and the Company’s specific review of outstanding account balances. Company policy is that
accounts overdue in excess of 365 days and not subject to offsetting is a strong indicator that the receivable has
potentially impaired. Bad debts are written off against the allowance when identified.

UNBILLED RECEIVABLES

Unbilled receivables represent accrued revenue earned and recognized on projects for which billings have not yet
been presented to the customer.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided by the
straight-line method and is generally based on the following lives:

»  Computers and technology peripherals — five years;
. Furniture and fixtures — seven years;
* Leasehold improvements — lesser of remaining life of lease or estimated useful life of equipment.

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to income as incurred. Additions and betterments are
capitalized. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are
removed from the appropriate accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in operations.

The Company annually reviews the status of property and equipment held by the Company for any impairment of
those assets. Any such impairment would result in a permanent reduction in the recorded value of the asset. No
such impairments existed at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES

The Company translates the operations and balances of its foreign subsidiaries into U.S. Dollars. Assets and
liabilities are translated into U.S. Dollars at year-end exchange rates. Income and expense items are translated
at the average rates of exchange prevailing during the year. Translation adjustments are included in “Other
Comprehensive Loss” and “Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss”. Transactions in currencies other than
the functional currency of the related subsidiary are converted at the foreign exchange rate on the date of the
transaction. Gains and losses, which result from foreign currency transactions, are included in Other Expenses.

GOODWILL

Goodwill resulting from business combinations represents the excess of the fair value of the consideration
transferred over the fair value of the net assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date. During
2015, the Company elected the private company accounting alternatives provided in Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2014-02, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350). Pursuant to these elections, the Company
prospectively amortized goodwill on a straight-line basis over a ten-year period. Impairment testing will be
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performed at the entity level whenever events occur, or circumstances changes, which indicates that the fair value
of the Company may be below its carrying amount.

IDENTIFIABLE INTANGIBLES

Identifiable definite lived intangibles are stated at fair value as of date of acquisition and are amortized over their
estimated useful lives. The Company amortizes customer relationships on a straight-line basis over a six-year
period. Under the provisions of (Topic 350) Intangibles - Goodwill and Other, identifiable intangible assets with
definite lives are tested for impairment if conditions exist that indicate the asset might be impaired. The impairment
assessments made at December 31, 2020 and 2019 did not result in any impairment charges.

RELATED PARTIES

All companies within the Group are considered to be related parties. Related parties are considered to be related
if one party has the ability to control or jointly control the other party or exercise significant influence over the party
in making financial and operational decisions. Key management personnel are also regarded as related parties.
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise).
The Company conducted business, involving a lease agreement with a provider in which an employee of the
Company holds an interest. Transactions involving related parties are carried out on an arm’s length basis.

LEASES

The company determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception of the arrangement. These leases are classified
as either an operating lease or a finance lease. Based on the evaluation of leases for the period ended December
31, 2020, no leases meet the criteria for classification as a finance lease. Operating leases are capitalized on the
consolidated balance sheet through a right-of-use (“ROU”) asset and a corresponding lease liability. ROU assets
represent the company’s right to use an underlying asset for the lease term, and lease liabilities represent the
obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease.

Operating leases are included in operating lease ROU assets, current operating lease liabilities, and long-term
operating lease liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets. Operating lease ROU assets and liabilities are
recognized at the commencement date of an arrangement based on the present value of lease payments over the
lease term. The operating lease ROU asset also includes any lease payments made to the lessor prior to lease
commencement, less any lease incentives, and initial direct costs incurred. Lease expense for operating lease
payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The company enters into long-term contracts to lease office space in support of company operations and these
have all been determined to represent operating leases.

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

Capital work-in-progress are costs incurred in the construction of the new corporate office lease space. Capital
work-in-progress is stated at cost and not depreciated. Depreciation on capital work-in-progress commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use and have been transferred to and disclosed under the fixed
assets.
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, accounts receivable balances were as follows:

2020 2019
Amounts due for services rendered and billed $ 12,989,402 $ 33,840,212
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (1,445,374) (89,731)
Amounts due for services rendered and billed, net 11,544,028 33,750,481
Amounts due for services rendered, not billed 2,271,153 10,467,569
Total accounts receivable, net $ 13,815,181 $ 44,218,050

INCOME TAXES

CJS accounts for income taxes under the provisions of the FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes , as described in Note 2G
above.

Current income tax (benefit) expense consists of the following: 2020 2019
Federal $ 1,747,735 $ 1,191,404
State 672,546 1,142,668
2,420,281 2,334,072

Deferred income tax (benefit) expense consists of the following:
Federal (1,597,232) (1,264,167)
State (302,022) (1,059,547)
(1,899,254) (2,323,714)
Total current and deferred income tax (benefit) expense $ 521,027 $ 10,358
2020 2019

Deferred tax asset consists of the following:

Federal 5,304,851 3,707,619
State 1,540,764 1,238,742

$ 6,845,615 $ 4,946,361

As of December 31, 2020, CJS had utilized all available federal net operating losses (NOLs) available to be carried
forward from prior years. CJS had utilized all available state net operating losses (NOLs) available to be carried forward

from prior years. CJS expects to be able to utilize the entire deferred tax benefit, therefore, no valuation allowance has
been recorded to reduce the asset.

In the ordinary course of business there are many transactions with affiliated companies that affect the calculation
and estimation of the Company’s tax liability. Although management believes that the Company’s tax estimates are
reasonable, there is no assurance that the final determination of tax liability will not be different from what is reflected
in the Company’s historical income tax provisions and accruals.

The Company does not anticipate any amount to be recognized related to the Company’s uncertain tax position.
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

2020 2019
At December 31, 2020 and 2019, property and equipment balances were
as follows:
Computer and software $2,932,871 $1,467,052
Furniture and equipment 98,313 248,560
Leasehold improvements 360,248 24,558
Office equipment 8,946 33,276
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,373,403) (1,189,698)
$ 2,026,975 $ 583,748

Total depreciation expense for the year ending December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $839,076 and $432,046 respectively.
Included in this depreciation amount is the depreciation of the Right-of-use asset relating to operating leases of

$440,560 for the year ending December 31, 2020. The depreciation policies followed by the Company are disclosed in
Note K.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET

2020 2019
At December 31, 2020 and 2019, intangible asset balances were as follows:
Customer contract and related relationships $ 32,600,000 $32,600,000
Less: accumulated amortization (19,863,799) (14,430,466)

$ 12,736,201 $ 18,169,534

Amortization expense for each of the years ending December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $5,433,333. The amortization
policies followed by the Company are described in Note N.

Amortization expense of intangible assets subject to amortization for the three years succeeding December 31, 2020
is as follows:

Years ending December 31, $
2021 5,433,333
2022 5,433,333
2023 1,869,535

12,736,201

GOODWILL, NET

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

2020 2019
Goodwill $ 59,510,430 $ 59,510,430
Less: accumulated amortization (21,104,889) (15,431,610)

$ 38,405,541 $ 44,078,820

Amortization expense for the years ending December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $5,673,279. The Company reviewed
its goodwill as of December 31, 2020 and determined that no impairment of goodwill has occurred. The amortization
policies followed by the Company are described in Note M.

Amortization expense of goodwill subject to amortization for the five years succeeding December 31, 2020 and
thereafter is as follows:

Years ending December 31, $
2021 5,673,279
2022 5,673,279
2023 5,673,279
2024 5,673,279
2025 5,673,279
Thereafter 10,039,146

38,405,541
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8. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the years ending December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had transactions with Tech Mahindra (Americas),
Inc.(“TMA”). At December 31, 2020 and 2019 the Company had payables due (to) from TMA as follows:

2020 2019
Beginning balance, due (to) (1,372,729) (2,033,792)
Income from 102,226 -
Cost of services - (14,195)
Expense reimbursement - debit/credit notes (1,596,813) 700,265
Payment made 3,965,649
Loan made 37,500,000 -
Receipt from TMA (38,634,671) (25,007)
Ending balance, due from (to) (36,338) (1,372,729)
Due from (to) from consists of:
Amounts due to TMA (36,338) (2,401,125)
Amounts due from TMA - 1,028,396

$(36,338)  $(1,372,729)

During the years ending December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had transactions with Tech Mahindra Limited
(“TechM”). At December 31, 2020 and 2019 the Company had payables due (to) from TechM as follows:

2020 2019
Beginning balance, due (to) (122,045) (625,374)
Income from 6,158,162 693,310
Cost of services (88,350) -
Expense reimbursement - debit/credit notes 35,023 223,471
Payment made 1,107,095 -
Receipts from (4,088,294) (413,452)
Ending balance, due (to) from 3,001,591 (122,045)
Due (to) consists of:
Amounts due to (88,350) (1,106,137)
Amounts due from 3,089,941 984,092
$ 3,001,591 $ (122,045)

During the years ending December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had transactions with Tech Mahindra Arabia
Limited (“TechMA”). At December 31, 2020 and 2019 the Company had a receivable due from TechMA as follows:

2020 2019
Beginning balance, due from 67,537 220,741
Expense reimbursement - debit/credit notes (4,261) 4,739
Receipts from (63,276) (157,943)
Ending balance, due from - 67,537
Due from consists of:
Amounts due from TechMA company - -
- $ 67,537
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During the years ending December 31,2020 and 2019, the Company had transactions with Pulse Clinical Alliances,
LLC (“Pulse”). At December 31, 2020 and 2019 the Company had a receivable due from Pulse as follows:

Beginning balance, due from

Income from

Cost of services

Expense reimbursement - debit/credit notes
Payments to/(Receipts from)

Ending balance, due from

Due from consists of:

Amounts due from Pulse company

2020 2019
184,729 652,212
296,129 -

(230,919) -

- (467,483)

60,663 -
310,602 184,729
310,602 184,729
$ 310,602 $ 184,729

During the years ending December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had transactions with Comviva Technologies Ltd
(“Comviva”). At December 31, 2020 and 2019 the Company had payables due from Comviva as follows:

Beginning balance, due from

Income from

Expense reimbursement - debit/credit notes
Payment made

Receipts from

Ending balance, due from

Due from consists of:
Amounts due to Comviva company
Amounts due from Comviva company

2020 2019
63,808 -
546,524 70,075
(3,228) (6,267)
9,495 -
(426,968) -
189,631 63,808

- (6,267)

189,631 70,075

$ 189,631 $ 63,808

During the years ending December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had transactions with Lightbridge Communication
Coorporation (“LCC”). At March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 the Company had payables due (to) from LCC as

follows:

Beginning balance, due from

Income from

Expense reimbursement - debit/credit notes
Payment made

Receipts from

Loans

Ending balance, due from

Due from consists of:
Amounts due to LCC company
Amounts due from LCC company

Total amounts due to related parties
Total amounts due from related parties

2020 2019
(2,316) -
227,008 -

- (2,316)

2,316 -
(32,227,008) -
45,300,000 -
13,300,000 (2,316)

- (2,316)

13,300,000 -

$ 13,300,000 $ (2,316)
(36,338) (1,497,090)
16,801,824 $ 316,074
$16,765486  $(1,181,016)
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SHORT-TERM DEBT AND LINE OF CREDIT FACILITY

On December 12, 2018 the Company entered into an uncommitted line of credit with JP Morgan Chase (the “Bank”)
which is renewed annually. The current maximum borrowing available under this uncommitted line is $37,500,000. The
line is collateralized by the assets of the Company and is not committed and is recallable. The balance outstanding
on this line of credit at December 31, 2020 was zero and at December 31, 2019 was $4,000,000. Interest accrues at
1) a variable rate equal to the Base Rate plus a margin offered by the Bank and accepted by the undersigned; 2) a
floating rate equal to the Eurodollar rate applicable to such loan plus a margin offered by the bank and accepted by the
undersigned or a fixed rate as offered per the Bank’s discretion to the undersigned and the Company may accept the
offered rate. The committed loan facility available at December 31, 2019 has been cancelled by the company as it no
longer required. The balance at December 31, 2019 on the loan was $12,614,161.

The loan agreement contains certain restricting covenants. At December 31, 2020 the Company did comply with all
covenants as per the loan agreement. Interest expense for years ending December 31, 2020 and 2019 were $822,416
and $190,186 respectively.

2020 2019

Opening balance of outstanding committed loan 12,614,161 41,139,070
Movement of committed loan (12,614,161) (41,139,070)
Closing balance of outstanding committed loan - -
Opening balance of outstanding uncommitted loans 4,000,000 30,000,000
Proceeds from uncommitted loans 37,500,000 56,425,686
Repayment of uncommitted loans (41,500,000) (82,425,686)
Closing balance of outstanding uncommitted loans - 4,000,000
- 16,614,161

MEMBERS' EQUITY

The Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger with Tech Mahindra HealthCare, LLC on March 6, 2017.
Under the terms of the agreement, the Company was merged into a newly created merger subsidiary of Tech Mahindra
Health Systems Holdings, LLC with the Company surviving the merger. The closing date of the merger was after the
close of business on May 4, 2017. Tech Mahindra Healthcare Systems Holdings, LLC (“Holdco”) entered into a Limited
Liability Company Agreement of Tech Mahindra Healthcare LLC, dated April 7, 2017, as sole initial member. On May 4,
2017, Tech Mahindra (Americas) Inc. (“TMA”), acquired 84.7% holding in Tech Mahindra Holdco, a Delaware Limited
Liability Company. On June 30, 2019 TMA acquired a further 4.07% from the minority holderd this was followed by a
further purchase of an additional 4.08% on May 31, 2020 by TMA from the same minority shareholder. At December 31,
2020 TMA has 92.85% interest in the Company. An individual, resident of the State of Florida (“minority shareholder”)
continues to hold the remaining minority interest in Holdco.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Company has established a salary deferral plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan
allows eligible employees to defer a portion of their compensation. Such deferrals accumulate on a tax deferred
basis until the employee withdraws the funds. The Company, at its option, may match a portion of the employee’s
contribution. The Company has elected not to match a portion of employee’s contribution at this time.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Real Estate Leases

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02 (Topic 842) “Leases.” Topic 842
supersedes the lease requirements in Accounting Standards Codification Topic 840, “Leases.” Under Topic 842,
lessees are required to recognize assets and liabilities on the balance sheet for most leases and provide enhanced
disclosures. Leases will continue to be classified as either finance or operating. The company adopted Topic 842
effective January 1, 2019. The most significant effects of Topic 842 were the recognition of right of use assets and of
operating lease liabilities. We applied Topic 842 to all leases as of January 1, 2019. In the adoption of Topic 842, we
carried forward the assessment from Topic 840 of whether our contracts contain or are leases, the classification of
our leases, and remaining lease terms. The standard does not have a significant effect on our consolidated results of
operations and cash flows.

On November 17, 2019 the company’s holding company, Tech Mahindra (Americas), Inc. “TMA”, has entered into
a building lease with NortgateArinso, Inc. for business use and occupancy of office space by CJS Solutions Group
(“CJS”) in Jacksonville, Florida. The lease commenced on January 31, 2020 and is effective until July 30, 2025. The
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lease is subject to an annual increase of 3% applied from August 1st, 2020. In addition to the rental payable the
company will also be responsible to pay Florida State Sales Tax to the landlord. The company has accounted for this
new lease as at December 31, 2020, in terms of the policies set out in Note P of the accounting policies above.

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $274,686 and $291,108 respectively. The future
minimum lease commitments are as follows:

Years ending December 31, $
2021 289,300
2022 402,616
2023 548,623
2024 565,006
2025 335,274

LITIGATION AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is involved in various legal proceedings in the ordinary course of its business. Although management
of the Company cannot predict the ultimate outcome of these proceedings excluding the settlement of the below class
action with certainty, it believes that the ultimate resolution of the Company’s proceedings, including any amounts it
may be required to pay in excess of amounts reserved or covered by insurance, will not have a material effect on the
Company’s financial statements. The Company was named as a defendant in certain class action lawsuits and some
pending lawsuits due to prior practices mainly related to overtime payments. The only known, likely and estimable
potential liability payable is a settlement payment in the amount of $400,000.

In November 2019 the Company approved to close two insignificant subsidiaries, named HCI Group DMCC & HCI
Group UK Limited. Subsequent to the approval there have been minimal activity on remaining assets and liabilities
on the records of these abandoned subsidiaries other than the write-off of the intercompany loans due from these
subsidiaries. The losses related to the write-offs are eliminated in the consolidation. These entitles were dissolved in
January 2020.

On dissolution of HCI Group UK limited, two 100% subsidiaries of that company namely, HCI Group Australia Pty Ltd
(Australian entity) & Healthcare Clinical Informatics (UK entity) are now 100% subsidiaries of CJS Solutions Group LLC
(US entity).

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
REVENUE AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The majority of the Company’s sales are credit sales. The following are customer concentration for sales for the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 and billed accounts receivable as at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

Revenue concentration for the year ended December 31, 2020: Amount,$ Concentration
Cleveland Clinic Health System 22,641,191 20%
Seattle Children's Hospital 13,852,705 12%
Integris Health 10,553,534 9%
NYC Health & Hospital Corporation 8,848,848 8%
Tech Mahindra Limited 6,158,162 5%
Billed accounts receivable concentrations as at December 31, 2020: Amount, $ Concentration
Cleveland Clinic Health System 3,051,607 26%
NYC Health & Hospital Corporation 1,560,032 14%
Mt Sinai Medical Center 1,053,504 9%
Modernizing Medicine 1,045,879 9%
Vancouver Coastal Health 566,441 5%
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Revenue concentration for the year ended December 31, 2019: Amount,$ Concentration
NYC Health & Hospital Corporation 74,959,725 45%
Cleveland Clinic Health System 17,589,232 11%
UCSF 11,033,957 7%
Seattle Children's Hospital 9,141,889 5%
Deaconess Health System 3,925,371 2%
Billed accounts receivable concentrations as at December 31, 2019: Amount,$ Concentration
NYC Health & Hospital Corporation 12,982,085 38%
Cleveland Clinic Health System 3,791,981 1%
Deaconess Health System 2,714,425 8%
Seattle Children's Hospital 2,531,479 8%
Vancouver Coastal Health 1,499,680 4%

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is defined under Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures”
(“ASC 820”), as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in the principal or most
advantageous market in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. ASC 820 also
establishes a three-level hierarchy, which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize
the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of
inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability on the measurement date. The three levels are defined as follows:

Level 1—inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for an identical asset or liability in an active
market.

Level 2—inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for a similar asset or liability in an active market
or model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs are observable for substantially the full term of the asset or
liability.

Level 3—-inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement of the
asset or liability.

The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate fair value due to the short-
term maturity of the instruments. The carrying amounts of the Company’s floatable interest rate debt are considered
reasonable estimates of fair value.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through May 14, 2021. No significant events occurred subsequent to
the balance sheet date that would have a material impact on the financial statements.



THE CJS SOLUTIONS GROUP, LLC
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE
CONSOLIDATED SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
FOR YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
$ $
Schedule |
COST OF REVENUES
Consultants compensation 77,028,047 105,238,119
Travel and other related expenses 3,866,021 28,419,136
80,894,068 133,657,255
Schedule Il
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Bad debt expenses 2,282,760 (55,718)
Sales and other indirect taxes 1,282,993 (369,410)
Office expenses 1,152,011 1,114,886
Professional fees 1,074,615 3,887,235
Travel 755,234 1,083,808
Sales and marketing 624,506 665,082
Miscellaneous 436,807 528,815
Insurance 176,424 168,575
Communications 109,102 252,676
Postage and delivery 86,930 171,487
Repairs and maintenance 46,862 33,621
Bank charges 40,801 66,442
Entertainment 39,376 420,005
Lease expense and other rent 18,404 358,480
Dues and subscriptions 14,659 145,358

8,141,484 8,471,342

113



OBJECTWISE CONSULTING GROUP INC.

OBJECTWISE CONSULTING GROUP INC.

Board of Directors

Mr. Lakshmanan Chidambaram
Mr. Guru Prasad lyengar

Mr. Amit Sood

Registered Office
36 Toronto Street, Suite 530
Toronto, ON M5C 2C5 Canada

Bankers

TD Bank Canada
HSBC Bank Canada

114



OBJECTWISE CONSULTING GROUP INC.
BALANCE SHEET 31-MAR-21

Amount in CAD

Particulars As at As at
Note March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

ASSETS:

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 957,908 1,351,908
Accounts receivable, net 3 1,061,307 801,787
Due from parent company 4 665,833 -
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 185,781 (667)
Total current assets 2,870,829 2,153,028
Property and equipment, net 6 17,837 20,138

Other assets:

Intangible assets, net 7 1,258,393 1,538,035
Goodwill, net 352,673 352,673
Other Non Current Assets 17,189 17,189
Other receivables - -
Total other assets 1,646,092 1,928,035
Total Assets 4,516,921 4,081,063

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY :

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 2,504,038 1,888,133
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 4,572 61,999
Due to parent company - -

Total current liabilities 2,508,610 1,950,132
Member's equity 2,397,598 2,255,373
Retained Earnings (389,287) (124,444)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss - -
Total Liabilities and Member's Equity 4,516,921 4,081,063
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OBJECTWISE CONSULTING GROUP INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

REVENUES
OTHER INCOME

COST OF REVENUES
GROSS INCOME

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel
General and administrative
Amortization
Other expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating profit

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
NET INCOME
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For the year
ended

Amount in CAD

For the year
ended

Note March 31,2021  March 31, 2020
5,721,206 4,508,738

- 37

5,721,206 4,508,775

9 891,073 563,691
4,540,319 3,810,238

281,943 142,637

10 85,611 116,654
5,798,946 4,633,220

(77,740) (124,445)




OBJECTWISE CONSULTING GROUP INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBER’S EQUITY

Retained Total Member's

Member's Equity Earnings Equity
Balance at March 31, 2019 2,255,373 (124,444) 2,130,929
Net income for the year - - -
Balance at March 31, 2020 2,255,373 (124,444) 2,130,929
Net income for the year 266,669 (389,287) (122,618)
Balance at March 31, 2021 2,522,042 (513,731) 2,008,311
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OBJECTWISE CONSULTING GROUP INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Income
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Due from parent company
Due to parent company
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Intangible Assets, net
Goodwill, net
Other receivables
Accounts payable, net
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Net Cash (Utilized in) Provided by Operating Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Changes in equity:
Property and equipment, net
Member's contribution
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

Supplemental disclosure:

Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes
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For the year
ended
March 31, 2021

For the year
ended
March 31, 2020

(259,520) (801,787)
(665,833) -
(186,448) 667
279,642 (1,538,035)

- (352,673)

- (17,189)

615,905 1,888,133
(57,427) 61,999
(273,681) (758,885)
2,301 (20,138)
(120,317) 2,130,929
(120,317) 2,110,791
(393,998) 1,351,906
1,351,906 -
957,908 1,351,906




OBJECTWISE CONSULTING GROUP INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MARCH 31, 2021

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

1.

Objectwise (‘OW’), based in Toronto, Canada specializes in enterprise project delivery by offering IT Staff Augmentation
& Professional services and PEGA development services.

Key service offerings: Primarily staff augmentation and professional services. Resource skills include Cards & Payment
SME, Pega Technology, & Blueprism Robotics.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

These financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Canada (Canadian GAAP). Revenue is recognized based on accrual method of
accounting

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian Accounting standards requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company considers all highly-liquid investments with maturities of three months or less to be cash or cash
equivalents.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR BAD DEBTS

Accounts receivable are the amounts owed on invoiced contractual agreements either in process or completed
by the Company. Accounts receivable are considered delinquent when payment is not received under terms
described within the individual contract’s terms.

An allowance for doubtful accounts is provided for those balances considered to be uncollectible based upon
historical experience and the Company’s specific review of outstanding account balances. Company policy is that
accounts overdue in excess of 365 days is an indicator that the receivable has potentially impaired. Bad debts are
written off against the allowance when identified.

UNBILLED RECEIVABLES

Unbilled receivables represent accrued revenue earned and recognized on projects for which billings have not yet
been presented to the customer.

RELATED PARTIES

All companies within the Group are considered to be related parties. Related parties are considered to be related
if one party has the ability to control or jointly control the other party or exercise significant influence over the party
in making financial and operational decisions. Key management personnel are also regarded as related parties.
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise).

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

At March 31, 2021 and 2020, accounts receivable balances were as follows:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Amounts due for services rendered and billed 1,061,307 801,787
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts - -
Amounts due for services rendered and billed, net 1,061,307 801,787
Amounts due for services rendered, not billed

Total accounts receivable, net 1,061,307 801,787
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TRANSACTIONS WITH PARENT COMPANY

During the period ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had transactions with Tech Mahindra Ltd.(“TML”). At

March 31, 2021 and 2020 the Company had payables due to TML as follows:

March 31, 2021
Beginning balance, due to
Cost of services from TML
Reimbursements
Payments to parent company
Revenue from TML
Ending balance, due to -

March 31, 2020

Due (to) consists of:
Amounts due to TML

Amounts due from TML (665,833)

(665,833)

Amounts due to and receivable from TML are interest free and payable on demand.
LITIGATION AND CONTINGENCIES
The Company is not involved in any legal proceedings in the ordinary course of its business.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

March 31, 2021

Computer and software 10,409
Furniture and Fixures 12,544
Accumulated Depreciation (5,116)

17,837

March 31, 2020
10,409
12,544
(2,815)
20,138

INTANGIBLE ASSETS ACQUIRED THROUGH BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

March 31, 2021

Customer Relationships 1,677,856
Accumulated Amortization (419,463)
1,258,393

March 31, 2020
1,677,856
(139,821)
1,538,035

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through May 31, 2021. No significant events occurred subsequent to

the balance sheet date that would have a material impact on the financial statements.

PERSONNEL EXPENSES

March 31, 2021

Salaries and Wages, including contribution to PF & Other Funds 890,872
Staff Welfare Expenses 201
891,073

March 31, 2020
563,118

573

563,691

OTHER EXPENSES

March 31, 2021

Rent 23,909
Travelling and Communication Expenses 1,025
Recruitment Expenses 1,211
Legal & Professional Expenses 19,077
Insurance Charges 25,579
Software, Hardware & Project specific Expenses 11,074
Miscellaneous Expenses 3,736

85,611

March 31, 2020
57,375

1,453

3,889

10,000

25,143

15,645

3,149

116,654
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TECH MAHINDRA (SINGAPORE) PTE. LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

We are pleased to submit this annual report to the member of the Company together with the audited financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 March 2021.

In our opinion:

(a) the financial statements set out on pages 125 to 150 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 March 2021 and the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company for the year ended on that date in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter
50 and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards; and

(b) at the date of this statement, with continuing financial support from ultimate holding company, there are reasonable
grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

The Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised these financial statements for issue.
Directors

The directors in office at the date of this statement are as follows:

Manish Goenka

Ayush Keshan

Hrishikesh Mahesh Pandit

Directors’ interests

According to the register kept by the Company for the purposes of Section 164 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the Act),
particulars of interests of directors who held office at the end of the financial year (including those held by their spouses
and children) in shares, debentures, warrants and share options in the Company and in related corporations are as follows:

Name of director and corporation in which interests are held Holdings at Holdings at
beginning end of the
of the year year

Ultimate holding company
Tech Mahindra Limited
(Ordinary shares of Indian Rupees 5 each)

Hrishikesh Mahesh Pandit 23 703
Ayush Keshan 114 1,114
Share options to subscribe for ordinary shares

Manish Goenka 36,000 36,000
Ayush Keshan 3,950 10,900
Hrishikesh Mahesh Pandit 6,000 5,100

Except as disclosed in this statement, no director who held office at the end of the financial year had interests in shares,
debentures, warrants or share options of the Company, or of related corporations, either at the beginning of the financial
year or at the end of the financial year.

Except as disclosed under the ‘Share options’ section of this statement, neither at the end of, nor at any time during the
financial year, was the Company a party to any arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

Share options

During the financial year, there were:

(i) no options granted by the Company to any person to take up unissued ordinary shares of the Company; and
(i) no shares issued by virtue of any exercise of option to take up unissued shares of the Company.

As at the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of the Company under options.

Auditors

The auditors, KPMG LLP, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Manish Goenka
Director

Ayush Keshan
Director

Place: Singapore
Date: June 23, 2021
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TECH MAHINDRA (SINGAPORE) PTE. LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Member of the Company
Tech Mahindra (Singapore) Pte. Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Tech Mahindra (Singapore) Pte. Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 125 to 150.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, Chapter 50 (‘the Act’) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (‘FRSs’) so as to give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2021 and of the financial performance, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (‘SSAs’). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the ‘Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code
of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (‘(ACRA Code’) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information contained in the annual report. Other information is defined as all
information in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

We have obtained all other information prior to the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of management and directors for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient
to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and
transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair
financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
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TECH MAHINDRA (SINGAPORE) PTE. LIMITED

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal controls.

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controls that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

KPMG LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore
Date : 23 June,2021
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2021

Assets
Plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investment in a subsidiary

Deferred tax assets
Non-current assets

Trade receivables
Contract assets

Other receivables and prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Current assets

Total assets

Equity

Share capital
Accumulated profits
Total equity

Liabilities

Other payables
Provisions
Non-current liabilities

Trade payables
Other payables
Provisions

Income tax payables
Current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

TECH MAHINDRA (SINGAPORE) PTE. LIMITED

Note

~N o o b

10
11

12

13
14

15
13
14

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

2021 2020

$ $

10,989 17,932
161,235,025 112,633,477
1,270,290 719,003
162,516,304 113,370,412
483,555 3,710,152
17,700 48,061
1,654,863 408,483
557,453 3,004,417
2,713,571 7,171,113
165,229,875 120,541,525
150,248,087 80,289,980
961,061 5,303,239
151,209,148 85,593,219
7,010,029 -
86,769 110,700
7,096,798 110,700
2,310,795 1,595,428
4,411,513 32,745,141
164,790 206,762
36,831 290,275
6,923,929 34,837,606
14,020,727 34,948,306
165,229,875 120,541,525
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TECH MAHINDRA (SINGAPORE) PTE. LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Note 2021 2020

$ $

Revenue 16 4,596,616 8,662,366
Other operating income 17 60,120 149,398
Employee benefits expense (3,306,815) (4,517,677)
Depreciation expense 4 (9,943) (25,527)
Finance cost 6 - (515,290)
Other operating expenses 18 (4,411,712) (4,555,015)
Fair value loss on earnout consideration 6 (1,797,589) -
Loss before tax 19 (4,869,323) (801,745)
Tax credit 20 527,145 157,284
Loss for the year/Total comprehensive loss for the year (4,342,178) (644,461)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TECH MAHINDRA (SINGAPORE) PTE. LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

At 1 April 2019

Total comprehensive income for the year

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners, recognised directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions to owners

Issuance of share capital (note 12)

Total transactions with owners

At 31 March 2020

At 1 April 2020

Total comprehensive income for the year

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss

Transactions with owners, recognised directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions to owners

Issuance of share capital (note 12)

Total transactions with owners

At 31 March 2021

Share capital Accumulated Total
profits

$ $ $

50,000 5,947,700 5,997,700

- (644,461) (644,461)

- (644,461) (644,461)

80,239,980 - 80,239,980

80,239,980 - 80,239,980

80,289,980 5,303,239 85,593,219

80,289,980 5,303,239 85,593,219

- (4,342,178) (4,342,178)

- (4,342,178) (4,342,178)

69,958,107 - 69,958,107

69,958,107 - 69,958,107

150,248,087 961,061 151,209,148

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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TECH MAHINDRA (SINGAPORE) PTE. LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax

Adjustments for:

Impairment loss on trade receivables
Impairment loss on other receivables
Impairment loss on loan to a related company
Depreciation expense

Interest income

Finance cost

Fair value loss on earnout consideration

Changes in:

-trade receivables

-other receivables and prepayments
-contract assets

-trade payables

-other payables

-provisions

Cash used in operations

Tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of plant and equipment
Interest received

Investments in subsidiaries

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of share capital
Proceeds of loan from a related company
Repayment of loan to a related company
Finance cost paid

Net cash from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Note A:

Note

-
N

(>N o> I e)]

11

2021 2020
$ $
(4,869,323) (801,745)
22,657 1,479,460
26,402 -
3,314,303 1,506,830
9,943 25,527
(45,688) (41,664)

- 515,290
1,797,589 -
255,883 2,683,698
3,203,940 (1,137,371)
(4,587,085) (332,559)
30,361 98,189
715,367 (1,240,753)
(218,193) (434,095)
(65,903) 7,383
(665,630) (355,508)
(277,586) (230,933)
(943,216) (586,441)
(3,000) (20,520)
45,688 38,363

(71,504,543)

(80,498,971)

(71,461,855)

(80,481,128)

The cash outflow on Company’s acquisition of subsidiaries during the financial year comprised:

Acquisition of Born Group Pte Ltd
Acquisition of Tenzing Limited
Acquisition of Momenton Pty Limited

Consideration settled in cash, representing cash outflow on acquisition

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note

6(A)

69,958,107 80,239,980
- 84,072,000

—  (84,072,000)

- (515,290)
69,958,107 79,724,690
(2,446,964) (1,342,879)
3,004,417 4,347,296
557,453 3,004,417
2021 2020

$ $
33,932,095 80,498,971
28,299,158 -
9,273,290 -
71,504,543 80,498,971




TECH MAHINDRA (SINGAPORE) PTE. LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on June June 23 ,2021.
1 Domicile and activities

Tech Mahindra (Singapore) Pte. Limited (‘the Company’) is incorporated in the Republic of Singapore. The address of
the Company’s registered office is 17, Changi Business Park Central 1, #06-01 Honeywell Building, Singapore 486073.

The principal activities of the Company are that providing consultancy and services relating to information technology
and development of software solutions and products.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Tech Mahindra Limited, incorporated in India, which is also the ultimate
holding company.

2 Basis of preparation
2.1 Going concern

The Company incurred a net loss of $4,342,178 (2020: $644,461) in the financial year ended 31 March 2021 and as
at the date, the Company was in net current liabilities of $4,210,358 (2020: $27,666,493). Notwithstanding these, the
financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis, as the ultimate holding company,
i.e. Tech Mahindra Limited, has undertaken to provide continuing financial support to the Company for at least 12
months from the date of this report, to enable it to continue its operations and meet its liabilities as and when they fall
due. Management has assessed that the ultimate holding company has the ability to provide the financial support.

2.2 Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (‘FRS’).
2.3 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as otherwise described in the notes
below.

2.4 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
2.5 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with FRS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are included in the following notes:

. Note 6 — measurement of recoverable amounts of investment in subsidiaries

* Note 8, 10 and 22 — measurement of expected credit loss (ECL) allowance for trade receivables and contract
assets: key assumptions in determining the weighted-average loss rate.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair
values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques
as follows:

+ Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

» Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then
the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input
that is significant to the entire measurement (with Level 3 being the lowest).

2.6

3.1

3.2

3.3
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Changes in accounting policies
New standards and amendments

The Company has applied the following FRSs, amendments to and interpretations of FRS for the first time for the
annual period beginning on 1 April 2020:

*  Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in FRS Standards

»  Definition of a Business (Amendments to FRS 103)

»  Definition of Material (Amendments to FRS 1 and FRS 8)

* Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to FRS 109, FRS 39 and FRS 107)

The application of these amendments to standards and interpretations does not have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements which addresses changes in accounting policies.

Foreign currency
(i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Company at exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting
date are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss
on monetary items is the difference between amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the year,
adjusted for effective interest and payments during the year, and the amortised cost in foreign currency translated
at the exchange rate at the end of the year.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated
to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
in a foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction. Foreign currency differences arising on translation are generally recognised in profit or
loss.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The Company controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Consolidated financial statements for the Company and its subsidiaries have not been prepared as the Company is
itself a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tech Mahindra Limited, which publishes consolidated financial statements which
are available for public use. The registered address of Tech Mahindra Limited is Gateway Building, Apollo Bunder,
Mumbai 400001.

Financial instruments
(i) Recognition and initial measurement
Non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities

Trade receivables and debt investments issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.
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(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement
Non-derivative financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; FVOCI — debt investment;
FVOCI - equity investment; or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the
first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

+ itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

« its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

« the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include
whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular
interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or
expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

*  how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

+ the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and how those risks are managed;

* how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of
the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

+ the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held-for-trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL.

Non-derivative financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk
and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a
contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

« contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

+ terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable rate features;

*  prepayment and extension features; and

+ terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a
financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits
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(iif)

(iv)

)

(vi)

or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but
unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is
treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Non-derivative financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised
cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Non-derivative financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs. They are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition
Financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when:
»  the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire; or
» it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which either
- substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred; or

- the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it
does not retain control of the financial asset.

Transferred assets are not derecognised when the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets
recognised in its statement of financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the transferred assets.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or
expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and short-term deposits with maturities of three months or
less from the date of acquisition that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used
by the Company in the management of its short-term commitments.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are
recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

3.4 Plant and equipment
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Recognition and measurement

Items of plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Purchased software that is
integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.
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If significant parts of an item of plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of plant and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of plant and equipment (calculated as the difference between the net
proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the component will flow to the Company,
and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognised. The costs
of the day-to-day servicing of plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of individual assets
are assessed and if a component has a useful life that is different from the remainder of that asset, that component
is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each component of an item of plant and equipment, unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.
Land is not depreciated.

Depreciation is recognised from the date that the plant and equipment are installed and are ready for use, or in
respect of internally constructed assets, from the date that the asset is completed and ready for use.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:
* Equipment 3 years
* Leasehold improvements 3 years or over the remaining term of lease period

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
adjusted if appropriate.

3.5 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation (where they have finite useful
lives) and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development
costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

The estimated useful life has been taken as follows:
+  Software 5 years

Intangible assets are amortised over the estimated useful lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed
at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

3.6 Impairment
(i) Non-derivative financial assets and contract assets
The Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on:
« financial assets measured at amortised costs; and
* contract assets (as defined in FRS 115).
Loss allowances of the Company are measured on either of the following bases:

* 12-month ECLs: these are ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after
the reporting date (or for a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months); or

» Lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument or contract asset.
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Simplified approach

The Company applies the simplified approach to provide for ECLs for all trade receivables (including lease
receivables) and contract assets. The simplified approach requires the loss allowance to be measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

General approach

The Company applies the general approach to provide for ECLs on all other financial instruments. Under the
general approach, the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs at initial recognition.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis,
based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and includes forward-looking
information.

If credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition or if the credit quality of the financial instruments
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that
the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before considering any credit
enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

The Company considers a contract asset to be in default when the customer is unlikely to pay its contractual
obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is
held).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Company is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are probability-weighted estimates of credit losses. Credit losses are measured at the present value of all
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Company expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial
asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
investments at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
» significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
* abreach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;

» the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

» itis probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
» the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.
Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost and contract assets are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of these assets.
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Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than investment property, inventories, contract
assets and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss
is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows and are utilised by more than one CGU.
Corporate assets are allocated to CGUs on a reasonable and consistent basis and tested for impairment as part
of the testing of the CGU to which the corporate asset is allocated.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated
to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

3.7 Provisions

3.8

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation

that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as finance cost.

Revenue

Rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services in the ordinary course of business is recognised when the Company satisfies
a performance obligation (PO) by transferring control of a promised service to the customer. The amount of
revenue recognised is the amount of the transaction price allocated to the satisfied PO.

The transaction price is allocated to each PO in the contract on the basis of the relative stand-alone selling prices
of the promised services. The individual standalone selling price of a service that has not previously been sold
on a stand-alone basis, or has a highly variable selling price, is determined based on the residual portion of the
transaction price after allocating the transaction price to services with observable stand-alone selling prices. A
discount or variable consideration is allocated to one or more, but not all, of the performance obligations if it relates
specifically to those POs.

The transaction price is the amount of consideration in the contract to which the Company expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring the promised services. The transaction price may be fixed or variable and is adjusted
for time value of money if the contract includes a significant financing component. Consideration payable to a
customer is deducted from the transaction price if the Company does not receive a separate identifiable benefit
from the customer. When consideration is variable, the estimated amount is included in the transaction price to
the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal of the cumulative revenue will not occur when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is resolved.

Revenue may be recognised at a point in time or over time following the timing of satisfaction of the PO. If a PO is
satisfied over time, revenue is recognised based on the percentage of completion reflecting the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that PO.
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3.9

Finance cost

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings.

3.10Employment benefits

(i) Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered the services entitling them to the contributions. Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes, such as the Singapore Central Provident Fund, are dealt with as payments to defined contribution
plans where the Company’s obligations under the plans are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan.

(ii) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or
profit-sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(iii) Compensated absences (employee leave entitlement)

The Company provides for compensated absences subject to Company’s rules. The employees are entitled to
accumulate leave subject to certain limits, for future encashment or utilisation. The liability is accrued based on
the number of days of unutilised leave at each balance sheet date. It is measured at the balance sheet date on
the basis of an independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit method. Actuarial gains and losses
are recognised in full in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they occur. The Company also offers
a short term benefit in the form of encashment of unutilised accumulated compensated absences above certain
limits for all of its employees and same is recognised as undiscounted liability at the balance sheet date.

3.11Tax
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Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.

The Company has determined that interest and penalties related to income taxes, including uncertain tax treatments,
do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore accounted for them under FRS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that
reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for temporary
differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. The measurement of deferred taxes reflects the tax consequences
that would follow the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to
temporary differences when they reverse, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date, and reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Future
taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable
temporary differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for
reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered, based on the business plans for the Company. Deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
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3.1 Government grants

A conditional grant related to staff costs is recognised in profit or loss as a deduction of staff costs. Grants for
expenses are recognised initially as deferred income at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received, and the Company will comply with the conditions associated with the grant. Grants that
compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss as a deduction against expenses
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are recognised.

3.12New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, interpretations and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning
after 1 April 2020 and earlier application is permitted; however, the Company has not early adopted the new or amended
standards and interpretations in preparing these financial statements.

The following new FRSs, interpretations and amendments to FRSs are not expected to have a significant impact on
the Company’s financial statements.

*  FRS 117 Insurance Contracts
» Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to FRS 1)
*  Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to FRS 116)

»  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to FRS 110
and FRS 28)

+ Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to FRS 103)
«  Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to FRS 16)
*  Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to FRS 37)

*  Annual Improvements to FRS(l)s 2018 — 2020
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Plant and equipment

Cost

At 1 April 2019
Additions

At 31 March 2020
Additions

At 31 March 2021

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2019

Depreciation for the year

At 31 March 2020
Depreciation for the year

At 31 March 2021

Carrying amounts
At 1 April 2019

At 31 March 2020
At 31 March 2021

Intangible assets

Cost
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021

Carrying amounts
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021

Investment in a subsidiary

Unquoted, equity investments at cost
At 1 April

Addition during the year

At 31 March

Equipment Leasehold Total
improvements

496,360 236,032 732,392

20,520 - 20,520

516,880 236,032 752,912

3,000 - 3,000

519,880 236,032 755,912

473,421 236,032 709,453

25,527 - 25,527

498,948 236,032 734,980

9,943 - 9,943

508,891 236,032 744,923

22,939 - 22,939

17,932 - 17,932

10,989 - 10,989

Software

$

1,605,978

1,605,978

2021 2020

$ $

112,633,477 -

48,601,548 112,633,477

161,235,025 112,633,477
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The details of subsidiary are as follows:

Name of company Principal activities Country of Effective equity held by the
incorporation Company
2021 2020
% %

Born Group Pte Ltd Content production and commerce Singapore 100 100
(Note A) solutions services
Tenzing Limited Management consulting, digital New Zealand 100 -
(Note B) transformation & technology services
Momenton Pty. Digital technology services Australia 100 -
Limited
(Note C)

(A) Acquisition of Born Group Pte Ltd

In previous financial year, the Company acquired 100% stake in Born Group Pte. Limited (Born Group) on 26 November
2019 with a consideration of 112,633,477. Born Group is engaged in providing content production and commerce
solutions services across USA, APAC and Europe.

Consideration transferred for the acquisition of Born Group

2020

$

Total consideration for 100% equity interest acquired 112,633,477
Less: Earnout consideration recognised as at acquisition date (note 13) (32,134,506)
Consideration settled in cash, representing cash outflow on acquisition 80,498,971

consideration arrangement

As part of the acquisition agreement with the previous shareholders of Born Group, a contingent consideration has
been agreed. Additional cash payments shall be payable to the previous shareholders of Born Group based on the
audited financial performance of Born Group Pte Ltd for the financial period year ended 31 December 2019. As at the
acquisition date and 31 March 2021, the contingent consideration was determined at USD 21,500,000 (approximately
$32,134,506) and recognised as “Other payables” (note 13).

Subsequent to acquisition date, Born Group’s actual financial performance exceeded the earnings target and the final
settlement of earnout consideration amounting to $33,932,095 was paid to previous shareholders of Born Group in
May 2020. The fair value change of earnout consideration resulted in a loss of $1,797,589 (difference between earnout
consideration at acquisition date of $32,134,506 and actual earnout consideration of $33,932,095), which has been
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Finance costs related to the acquisition

For the purpose of acquisition of Born Group, the Company had obtained a loan from its related company, i.e. Tech
Mahindra (Americas) Inc on 1 November 2019 amounted to USD 62,000,000 (approximately $84,072,000) and the
Company had fully repaid the loan on 10 December 2019. The loan was unsecured and bore interest rate of 2.84%.
The interest expenses paid of the loan amounted to $515,290 had been recognised as “Finance costs” for the financial
year ended 31 March 2020.

(B) Acquisition of Tenzing Limited

The Company acquired 100% stake in Tenzing Limited (“Tenzing Group”) on 23 October 2020. Tenzing is based in
New Zealand and is a Technology Consulting Firm and Tenzing was acquired with a consideration of NZD 41,573,536
(approximately $39,328,258).

Consideration transferred for the acquisition of Tenzing Group

2021

$

Total consideration for 100% equity interest acquired 39,328,258
Less: Earnout consideration recognised as at acquisition date (note 13) (11,029,100)
Consideration settled in cash, representing cash outflow on acquisition 28,299,158
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Contingent consideration arrangement

As part of the acquisition agreement with the previous shareholders of Tenzing Group, a contingent consideration has
been agreed. Additional cash payments shall be payable to the previous shareholders of Tenzing Group based on the
audited financial performance of Tenzing Group from the financial period year ended 31 March 2021 to 31 March 2023.

As at the acquisition date and 31 March 2021, the contingent consideration for above was determined at NZD
11,526,536 (approximately $11,029,100) and recognised as “Other payables” (note 13).

(C) Acquisition of Momenton Pty Limited

The Company acquired 100% stake in Momenton Pty. Limited (Momenton Group) in 23 October 2020. Momenton
Group is based in Australia and is Digital Enterprise Technology Firm and it was acquired at consideration of AUD
9,005,507 (approximately $9,273,290).

As part of the acquisition agreement with the previous shareholders of Momenton Group, a contingent consideration
has been agreed. Additional cash payments shall be payable to the previous shareholders of Momenton Group based
on the audited financial performance of Momenton Group from the financial period year ended 31 March 2022 to 31
March 2024. Accordingly, no contingent consideration has been recognised for the financial year ended 31 March
2021.

(D) Impairment loss assessment

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss. The Company evaluates whether there is an
indicator that an impairment may have occurred. The financial health of and near-term business outlook for the
subsidiaries, such as industry performance and operating cash flows are considered. Any significant changes in the
business environment and key input to the recoverable amount calculation may be seen as an indicator of impairment.
Dividend income from the subsidiaries, under certain circumstances, may also be considered as an indicator of
impairment. If any such indicator is present, the Company determines the amount of impairment loss based on the
recoverable amount of the investment. The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference
between the investment’s or cash generating unit’s carrying amount and recoverable amount representing the higher
of value in use (VIU) and fair value less cost of disposal (FVLCD). In current and prior financial years, management
assessed that there is no impairment loss on the investment in subsidiaries

7 Deferred tax assets

2021 2020
$ $
Deferred tax assets 1,270,290 719,003

The following are the deferred tax assets recognised by the Company during the year:

At 1 April 2019 Recognised in At 31 March Recognised in At 31 March

profit/ (loss) 2020 profit/ (loss) 2021
(Note 20) (Note 20)

$ $ $ $ $

Deferred tax assets
Plant and equipment (3,900) 852 (3,048) 1,180 (1,868)
Trade and other 20,995 506,229 527,224 571,772 1,098,996

receivables
Provisions 210,294 (57,210) 153,084 (15,026) 138,058
Others 41,740 3 41,743 (6,639) 35,104
269,129 449,874 719,003 551,287 1,270,290
8 Trade receivables

2021 2020
$ $
Third parties 1,691,366 2,306,405
Less: Impairment loss (1,564,077) (1,541,420)
127,289 764,985
Holding company 356,266 2,945,167
483,555 3,710,152
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The movements in credit loss allowance are as follows:

2021 2020

$ $

At beginning of year 1,541,420 70,427
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss during the year 22,657 1,479,460
Written off during the year - (8,467)
At end of year 1,564,077 1,541,420

The credit period on services rendered ranges from 30 to 60 days (2020: 30 to 60 days). No interest is charged on the
outstanding balance.

Credit and market risks, and impairment losses

The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks, and impairment loss for trade receivables are disclosed in Note
22.

Loss allowance for trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (ECL). The
ECL on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtor
and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the current reporting
period.

A trade receivable is written off when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables from contracts with customers based on the Company’s
provision matrix. As the Company’s historical credit loss experience does not show significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the provision for loss allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Company’s different customer base.

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from COVID[119, a global pandemic, on the
carrying amount of trade and other receivables, unbilled revenue, intangible assets and investments. In developing
the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in global economic conditions because of this pandemic,
the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used an internal and external source of
information including economic forecasts. The Company based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of
the above assets will be recovered, net of provisions established.

Expected Estimated Lifetime
credit loss rate total gross ECL

carrying

amount at

default
% $ $

2021

Not past due - 8,753 -
Past due more than 30 days — 37,878 —
Past due 31 — 60 days - - -
Past due 61 — 90 days - 3,893 -
Past due 91 — 365 days — 76,765 —
More than 365 days 100 1,564,077 (1,564,077)

1,691,366 (1,564,077)
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Expected Estimated Lifetime
credit loss total gross ECL

rate carrying

amount at

default
% $ $

2020

Not past due - 20,887 -
Past due more than 30 days - 695,714 -
Past due 31 — 60 days - 17,441 -
Past due 61 — 90 days - - -
Past due 91 — 365 days - 30,943 -
More than 365 days 100 1,541,420 (1,541,420)

2,306,405 (1,541,420)

Contract assets

2021 2020
$ $
Unbilled software installation services 17,700 48,061

Payment for installation of software services is not due from the customer until the installation services are completed
and therefore a contract asset is recognised over the period in which the installation services are performed to represent
the Company’s right to consideration for the services transferred to date.

Credit and market risks, and impairment losses

The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks, and impairment losses for contract assets are disclosed in note
22.

Management estimates the loss allowance on amounts due from customers at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, taking
into account the historical default experience and the future prospects of the relevant customers’ industry. None of
the amounts due from customers at the end of the reporting period is past due. Based on the Company’s historical
credit loss experience with the relevant customers, as well as available forward-looking information, the Company has
assessed the expected credit loss rate on contract assets to be insignificant.

There has been no significant change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the current
reporting period in assessing the loss allowance for the contract assets.

Other receivables and prepayments

2021 2020

$ $

Advance to employees 79,474 56,394
Less: Impairment loss (79,474) (53,072)
Advance to employees (net) - 3,322
Loan to a related company 4,821,133 1,506,830
Less: Impairment loss on loan to related company (4,821,133) (1,506,830)
Loan to a related company (net) - -
Other receivables 1,351,058 64
Prepayments 303,805 405,097
1,654,863 408,483




1"

12

TECH MAHINDRA (SINGAPORE) PTE. LIMITED

Movement in the credit loss allowance on other receivables and prepayments:

Note 2021 2020

$ $

At beginning of year 1,559,902 53,072
Charge to profit or loss 18 3,340,705 1,506,830
At end of year 4,900,607 1,559,902

Loan to a related company is unsecured and the interest rate on the loan is 1.26% (2020: 2.77%) per annum. The other
receivables from fellow subsidiary are unsecured, non-interest bearing and receivable on demand.

Credit and market risks, and impairment losses

The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks, and impairment losses for other receivables are disclosed in
note 22.

For the purpose of impairment assessment, other receivables is considered to have low credit risk as it is not due
for payment at the end of the reporting period and there has been no significant increase in the risk of default on the
receivables since initial recognition. Accordingly, for the purpose of impairment assessment for other receivables the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses (ECL).

There has been no significant change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the current
reporting period in assessing the loss allowance for other receivables.

Based on the Company’s historical credit loss experience with the relevant counterparties, as well as available forward-
looking information, the Company has assessed the expected credit loss rate on other receivables to be insignificant.

Loss allowance for advance to employees and loan to related Company is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses. The ECL on advance to employees and loan to related Company is estimated by reference to
past default experience and an analysis of the counterparty’s current financial position. An allowance has been made
for estimated irrecoverable amounts for advance to employees of $79,474 (2020: $53,072) and for loan to a related
company of $4,821,133 (2020: $1,506,830).

Cash and cash equivalents

2021 2020
$ $
Cash at bank 557,453 3,004,417
Share capital
2021 2020 2021 2020
Number of shares $ $
Ordinary shares, with no
par value
At 1 April 8,028,998 5,000 80,289,980 50,000
Issuance of shares 6,995,809 8,023,998 69,958,107 80,239,980
At 31 March 15,024,807 8,028,998 150,248,087 80,289,980

During the year, the Company issued 6,995,809 of ordinary shares at $10 per share to the holding company, resulting
in increase of share capital by $69,958,107.

Capital management

The Company reviews its capital structure at least annually to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as
a going concern. The capital structure of the Company comprises only of share capital and retained earnings. The
Company'’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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13 Other payables

2021 2020

$ $

Accruals 392,442 610,635
Consideration payable 11,029,100 32,134,506
11,421,542 32,745,141

Less: Non-current consideration payable (7,010,029) -
4,411,513 32,745,141

The consideration payable relates to the earnout consideration in connection to the acquisition of Tenzing Group (2020:

Born Group) (note 6).
Market and liquidity risks

The Company’s exposures to currency risk and to liquidity risk related to other payables are disclosed in note 22.

14 Provisions

Provision for unutilised leave
Less: Non-current provision for unutilised leave

Current provision for unutilised leave

2021 2020

$ $
251,559 317,462
(86,769) (110,700)
164,790 206,762

The Company calculates and records untilised leave (the “Leave Benefit Scheme”) for its qualified employees. The

amount recognised in the statement of financial position are determined as follows:

Present value of Leave Benefit Scheme
Represented by

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Reconciliations of the present value of the Leave Benefit Scheme liabilities are as follows:

At beginning of the year
Provisions made during the year
Benefits paid

At end of the year

2021 2020
$ $
251,559 317,462
164,790 206,762
86,769 110,700
251,559 317,462
2021 2020

$ $
317,462 310,079
28,105 78,112
(94,008) (70,729)
251,559 317,462

The cost of providing post-employment benefits is calculated by independent actuaries, Willis Tower Watson, using the
Projected Unit Credit Method. The actuarial valuation was carried out using the following key assumptions:

2021

$

Normal retirement age 60 years
Discount rate 1%
Salary escalation rate 2.00% - 4.00%
Withdrawal rate 0.1%-50%
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15 Trade payables
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2021 2020

$ $

Third parties 1,021 26,129
Holding company 2,309,774 1,569,299
2,310,795 1,595,428

The average credit period on trade payables is 30 days (2020: 30 days). No interest is charged on the outstanding
balance.

Market and liquidity risks

The Company’s exposures to currency risk and to liquidity risk related to trade payables are disclosed in note 22.

Revenue
2021 2020
$ $
Service income — immediate holding company 4,596,616 8,662,366

The following table provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in
contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition policies:

Service income — immediate and ultimate holding company

Nature of goods or services Service agreement with the immediate and ultimate holding company for
reimbursement of costs incurred plus a mark-up (“cost-plus method”)

When revenue is recognised Revenue from services are recognised as performance obligation is satisfied
over a period of time based on the stage of completion of the contract in
case of third party contracts.

Revenue from immediate and ultimate holding company is accrued
according to the terms of the agreement with the immediate and ultimate
holding company based on attributable costs incurred on date of accrual. .

Significant payment terms Invoices are issued to the customers after the services are performed and
are normally payable within 30 days.

Contract balances

The following table provides information about receivables and contract assets from contracts with customers.

Note 2021 2020

$ $

Trade receivables 8 483,555 3,710,152
Contract assets 9 17,700 48,061

Significant changes in the contract assets and the contract liabilities balances during the period are as follows.

Contract assets

2021 2020

$ $

Changes in measurement of progress 17,700 48,061
Contract asset reclassified to trade receivables 48,061 146,250

Significant judgements are used to estimate these total contract costs to complete. In making these estimates,
management has relied on the expertise of project teams to determine the progress of the contracts and also on past
experience of completed projects. The estimated total contract costs is reviewed every reporting period and adjusted
where necessary, with the corresponding effect of change being recognised prospectively from the date of change.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

Management expects that 100% of the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts as of 31 March 2021 will
be recognised as revenue during the next reporting period.
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Other operating income

Interest income
Write back of sundry payable
Others

Other operating expenses

Impairment loss/(reversal of) allowance on trade receivables
Impairment loss on other receivables
Impairment loss on loan to a related company
Conveyance expenses

Entertainment expense

Insurance

Professional fees

Travelling

Telecommunication

Hardware/Software billable cost

Others

(Loss)/Profit before tax

This has been arrived at after (crediting)/charging:

Interest expenses on loan from a related company
Employee benefits expense (including directors):

- Salaries and bonuses

- Contributions to defined contribution plans

Tax credit

Current tax expense
Current year

Deferred tax credit
Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Total tax (credit)/expense

Note

10
10

Note

2021 2020
$ $

45,719 43,930
14,401 36,860

- 68,608

60,120 149,398
2021 2020

$ $

22,657 1,479,460
26,402 -
3,314,303 1,506,830
- 55,100

39,788 81,912
139,015 104,126
156,967 83,379
49,351 348,643
38,323 35,373
233,138 527,213
391,768 332,979
4,411,712 4,555,015
2021 2020

$ $

- 515,520
3,197,685 4,370,199
109,130 147,478
2021 2020

$ $

24,142 292,590
(551,287) (449,874)
(527,145) (157,284)
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2021 2020
$ $

Reconciliation of effective tax rate
(Loss)/Profit before tax (4,869,323) (801,745)
Tax calculated using the Singapore tax rate of 17% (2020: 17%) (827,785) (136,297)
Effect of tax concessions (10,001) (17,425)
Tax effect of non-deductible items 334,940 6,902
Tax effect of non-taxable items (24,299) (10,464)
(527,145) (157,284)

Related party transactions
Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel of the Company are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the entity. The directors and key executives are considered as key management
personnel of the Company.

2021 2020
$ $

Compensation of directors
Short-term benefits 150,304 137,200

The remuneration disclosed above include only directors as there is no personnel other than directors who are
considered to be members of key management of the Company.

Other related party transactions

Note 2021 2020
$ $

Ultimate holding company
Consultancy fee charged 724,343 1,363,428
Administrative service income 16 (4,596,616) (8,662,366)

Financial instruments

Financial risk management

Overview

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
»  credit risk

* liquidity risk

*  market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management of capital.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. Management is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies.
Management reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company,
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.
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The Company’s Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the
risks faced by the Company.

Credit risk

The Company has adopted procedures in extending credit terms to customers and in monitoring its credit risk. The
Company only grants credit to creditworthy counterparties.

At the end of the reporting period, 74% (2020: 79%) of the trade receivables are due from holding company. The risk
management process includes assessing corresponding credit standing and monitoring of collections.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, grossed up for any allowances for losses,
represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

Further details of credit risks on trade receivables, contract assets and other receivables are disclosed in Notes 8, 9
and 10 to the financial statements.

The Company places its cash with reputable financial institutions. The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank
and financial institution counterparties with high credit ratings.

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on the 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the
short maturities of the exposures. The Company considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk
based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties. The amount of the allowance on cash and cash equivalents
is negligible.

The Company’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories:

Category Description Basis for recognising expected credit
losses (ECL)
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does Trade receivable:
not have any past-due amounts. Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired

Other receivables:
12-month ECL

Doubtful Amount is more than 1 year past due or there has Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

In default Amount is more than 1 year past due or there is Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired
evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired.

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off

severe financial difficulty and the Company has no
realistic prospect of recovery.

The table below details the credit quality of the Company’s financial assets as well as maximum exposure to credit risk
by credit risk rating grades:

Note Internal 12-motnh Gross Loss Net
credit or lifetime ECL carrying allowance carrying
assessment amount (i) amount
$ $ $
2021
Trade receivables from third 8 0] Lifetime ECL 1,691,366 (1,564,077) 127,289
parties (simplified
approach)
Trade receivables from 8 (i) Lifetime ECL 356,266 - 356,266
holding company (simplified
approach)
Contract assets 9 (i) Lifetime ECL 17,700 - 17,700
(simplified
approach)
Loan to related company 10 (i) 12-month ECL 4,821,133 (4,821,133) -
Other receivables 10  Performing 12-month ECL 1,430,532 (79,474) 1,351,058
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Note Internal 12-motnh Gross Loss Net
credit or lifetime ECL carrying allowance carrying
assessment amount (i) amount
$ $ $
2019
Trade receivables from 8 (i) Lifetime ECL 2,306,405 (1,541,420) 764,985
third parties (simplified
approach)
Trade receivables from 8 (i) Lifetime ECL 2,945,167 - 2,945,167
holding company (simplified
approach)
Contract assets 9 (i) Lifetime ECL 48,061 - 48,061
(simplified
approach)
Loan to related company 10 (i) 12-month ECL 1,506,830 (1,506,830) -
Other receivables 10  Performing 12-month ECL 56,458 (53,072) 3,386

(i) The Company determines the expected credit losses on these items by using a provision matrix, estimated based
on historical credit loss experience on the past due status of the debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current
conditions and estimates of future economic conditions.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is managed by matching the payment and receipt cycle. The Company’s operations are financed
mainly through equity and accumulated profits.

The following table summarises the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities at the end of the reporting period based on undiscounted cash flows of financial instruments premised on
the earlier of the contractual date or when the Company is expected to pay.

Particulars Less than 1 1 to 5 years Total
year
us$ Us$ Us$

31 March 2021
Trade and other payables 6,722,308 7,010,029 13,732,337

31 March 2020
Trade and other payables 34,340,569 - 34,340,569

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the
Company’s income or the value of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk.

Interest rate risk

The Company does not have any interest bearing financial assets and liabilities except for its fixed deposits and loan
to a related company. Fixed deposits and loan to related company are all short-term, hence, with the current interest
rate level, any future variations in interest rates will not have a material impact on net profit.

No sensitivity analysis is prepared as the Company does not expect any material effect on the Company’s profit or loss
arising from the effects of reasonably possible changes to interest rates on interest bearing financial instruments at the
end of the reporting period.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company has very minimal exposure to foreign exchange risk as most transactions are transacted in the
functional currency which is in Singapore dollars. The Company does not hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk
as the risk is not expected to be significant.
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Accounting classification and fair values

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities (including trade and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents and trade and other payables) recorded in the financial statements at amortised cost approximate
their fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments or re-pricing.

Categories of financial instruments

Note 2021 2020
$ $
Financial assets
Trade receivables 8 483,555 3,710,152
Other receivables* 10 1,351,058 3,386
Cash and cash equivalents 11 557,453 3,004,417
Financial assets at amortised cost 2,392,066 6,717,955
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 13 2,310,795 1,595,428
Other payables 14 11,421,542 32,745,141
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 13,732,337 34,340,569

* Exclude prepayments
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your directors present their report together with the audited accounts of your company for the year ended December 31,
2020.

Financial Results

For the years ended December 31 2020 2019
RMB RMB
Income 22,361,639 21,959,632
Profit/(Loss) before tax 2,922,120 2,500,210
Net Profit 2,679,292 2,380,631

Review of Operations:

During the year under review, your Company recorded an income of RMB 22,361,639 and Net profit of RMB 2,679,292.
Directors:

Mr. Amitava Ghosh, Mr. Ravi Yellajosula and Mr. Mukesh Sharma are directors of the Company

Outlook for the Current Year:

The Company is optimistic of increasing its business in near future.

Acknowledgments:

Your Directors gratefully acknowledge the co-operation and assistance received from the employees, bankers, State and
other Government Authorities and support from the shareholder.

For TECH MAHINDRA (BEIJING) IT SERVICES LIMITED

Amitava Ghosh Ravi Yellajosula
Chairman Director

Place: Beijing, China
Date : April 9, 2021
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AUDIT REPORT

All shareholders of Tech Mahindra (Beijing) IT Services Ltd.:

Audit Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Tech Mahindra (Beijing) IT Services Limited. (hereinafter referred to as
“Mahindra Company”), including the balance sheet as at December 31, 2020, the income statement, the cash flow
statement and the relevant notes to the financial statements of year 2020.

In our opinion, the attached financial statements were prepared in accordance with the provisions of the accounting
standards for enterprises in all major aspects, and fairly reflected the financial situation of Mahindra Company as at
December 31, 2020, as well as the operating results and cash flow of the year 2020.

Basis of Forming Audit Opinions

We conducted the audit work in accordance with the auditing standards for Chinese Certified Public Accountant.
The “Responsibility of Certified Public Accountant for Auditing Financial Statements” part of the audit report further
elaborated our responsibilities under these standards. In accordance with the code of ethics for Certified Public
Accountant in China, we were independent of Mahindra Company and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained was sufficient and appropriate and provided a basis for issuance
of audit opinions.

Other Information

The management layer of Mahindra Company (hereinafter referred to as management) was responsible for other
information. Other information included information covered in Mahindra Company’s 2020 annual report, but not the
financial statements and our audit report.

Our audit opinions on the financial statements didn’t cover other information, nor did we publish any form of verification
conclusions on other information.

In combination with our audit of the financial statements, it was our responsibility to read other information and, in the
process, considering whether there was material inconsistency or seemed to be material misstatement between the
other information and the financial statements or situation that we learned during the audit.

Based on the work we have performed, we should report the fact if we confirmed that there was a material misstatement
in other information. In this respect, we had nothing needed to report.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance

The management was responsible for preparing financial statements in accordance with the provisions of the accounting
standards for enterprises to achieve fair reflection and to design, implement and maintain necessary internal control,
so as to make the financial statements free from material misstatement caused by fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management was responsible for assessing the continuing business ability of the
Mahindra company, disclosing matters related to the continuing business (if applicable), and applying the continuing
business assumption, unless management planned to liquidate the Mahindra company, terminate operations or have
no other realistic options.

Those Charged with Governance was responsible for supervising the financial reporting process of Mahindra Company.
The Responsibility of Certified Public Accountants for Auditing Financial Statements

Our goal was to obtain reasonable assurance on whether the financial statements as a whole were free from material
misstatement caused by fraud or error, and to issue an audit report containing audit opinions. Reasonable assurance
was a high level of assurance, but it did not guarantee that the audit executed in accordance with the audit standards
having a material misstatement can always be found. A misstatement may be caused by fraud or error, and was
generally considered to be significant if it was reasonably expected that the misstatement, individually or collectively,
may affect the economic decisions made by the users of the financial statements based on the financial statements.

In the process of performing the audit according to the audit standards, we exercised professional judgment and
maintained professional skepticism. At the same time, we also carried out the following works.

(1) Identifying and assessing material misstatement risks in financial statements due to fraud or error, designing and
implementing audit procedures to address these risks, and obtaining sufficient and appropriate audit evidence
as the basis for the issuance of audit opinions. Since fraud may involve collusion, forgery, willful omission,
misrepresentation or overriding internal control, the risk of a material misstatement resulting from failure to detect
fraud was higher than the risk of a material misstatement resulting from failure to detect error.
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(2)
3)

(4)

®)

Understanding internal controls related to audit to design appropriate audit procedures.

Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies adopted by management and the rationality of accounting
estimates and relevant disclosures.

Drawing conclusions about the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern assumption. At the
same time, based on the audit evidence obtained, a conclusion can be drawn on whether there was significant
uncertainty in matters or situations that may lead to significant doubts about the continuing operation ability of
Mahindra Company. If we concluded that there was significant uncertainty, as the requirements of the audit
standards, we should draw the attention of statement users to the relevant disclosures in the financial statements
in the audit report; if the disclosure was insufficient, we should express a non-unqualified opinion. Our conclusions
were based on information available as of the audit report date. However, future events or circumstances may
cause the unsustainable operation of the Mahindra Company.

Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content (including disclosure) of the financial statements, and
assessing whether the financial statements fairly reflected relevant transactions and events.

We made communication with governance layer on planned audit scope, time arrangement, major audit findings and
other matters, including the internal control deficiencies of concern that we identified during the audit.

Beijing Zhong Sheng Jia Hua Certified

Name of CPA:

Public Accountants Co.,Ltd
Beijing China Name of CPA:
April 9, 2021
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TECH MAHINDRA (BEWING) IT SERVICES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET (AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2020)

Prepared by Tech Mahindra (Beijing) IT Services Ltd RMB Yuan
Assets No. End of period|  Beginning of |Liabilites and  Shareholders| No. End of period Beginning of
period | Equity period
Current assets Current liabilities:
Cash and bank 1 9,863,982.33| 4,131,250.62 | Short-term loans 37 3,250,000.00
Short-term investment 2 Accounts payable 38 86,697.82
Dividend receivable 3 Advances on sales 39 1,609,491.09
Interest receivable 4 Employee benefits payable 40 32,151.21
Accounts receivable 5 1,550,656.89| 3,274,342.29 | Staff welfare fund unpaid 41
Other receivables 6 481,201.74 521,979.64 | Dividend unpaid 42
Prepayments 7 460,197.20 12,458.69 | Taxes payable 43 253,340.70 331,311.31
Subsidy receivable 8 Other payables 44 1,723,344.89 2,579,626.02
Inventories 9 Other expenses 45
Deferred expenses 10 Contingent liabilities 46
Long-term investment in 1 47
bonds to be expired within
one year
Other current assets 12 9,892.70 8,747.76 | Long-term liabilities to be expired| 48
within one year

Total current assets 13 | 12,365,930.86| 7,948,779.00|Other current liabilities 49
Long-term investment: 14 50
Long-term investment in 15 Total current liabilities 51 3,705,025.71 6,160,937.33
stocks
Long-term investment in 16 Long-term liabilities: 52
bonds to be expired within
one year
Total long-term investment 17 Long-term loans 53
Fixed assets 18 Bonds payable 54
Fixed assets,at cost 19 1,737,466.22| 1,737,466.22|Long-term accounts payable 55
Less:Accumulated 20 1,123,953.83 507,342.01 | Specific payable 56
depreciation
Fixed assets, net value 21 613,512.39| 1,230,124.21| Other long-term liabilities 57
Less:Provision for devaluation | 22 Total long-term liabilities 58
of fixed assets
Fixed assets, net amount 23 613,512.39( 1,230,124.21 | Deferred taxation: 59
Construction materials 24 Deferred tax, credit 60
Construction in progress 25 Total liabilities 61 3,705,025.71 6,160,937.33
Disposal of fixed assets 26 62
Total fixed assets 27 613,512.39| 1,230,124.21| Shareholders' Equity: 63
Intangible and other assets: 28 Share capital 64 5,574,666.02 3,441,546.02
intangible assets 29 Less:Investment Returned 65
Long-term prepaid expenses 30 1,498,423.87| 2,942,463.33|Paid-up capital (stock) 66 5,574,666.02 3,441,546.02
Other deferred expenses 31 Capital reserve 67 12,639.68 12,639.68
Total intangible and other 32 1,498,423.87| 2,942,463.33|Surplus reserve 68
assets

33 Including: Staff welfare fund 69
Deferred taxation: 34 Undistributed profit 70 5,185,535.71 2,506,243.51
Deferred taxation, debit 35 Shareholders' Equity: 71 10,772,841.41 5,960,429.21
Total Assets 36 | 14,477,867.12| 12,121,366.54 | Total Liabilities and| 72 14,477,867.12| 12,121,366.54

Shareholders' Equity
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TECH MAHINDRA (BEWING) IT SERVICES LIMITED
INCOME STATEMENT( FOR THE YEAR 2020)

Prepared by Tech Mahindra (Beijing) IT Services Ltd RMB Yuan
Item No. Current year Last year
cumulative cumulative
1. Principal operating revenues 1 22,361,639.09 | 21,959,631.84
Less:operating cost 2
operating tax and subsidies 3 231,848.30 32,727.37
2. Principal operating profit 4 22,129,790.79 | 21,926,904.47
Add:Other operating profit 5
Less:Operating expense 6
Administration expense 7 18,965,235.16 19,295,201.33
Financial expense 8 244,227.89 160,256.79
3. Operating profit 9 2,920,327.74 2,471,446.35
Add:Investment income 10
Other income 11 42,569.95 28,981.77
Subsidy income 12
Non-operating income 13
Less:Non-operating expense 14 40,777.90 218.56
4. Total profit 15 2,922,119.79 2,500,209.56
Less:Income tax 16 242,827.59 119,578.83
5.Net profit 17 2,679,292.20 2,380,630.73
Six, Net profit 18 2,679,292.20 2,380,630.73
plus one Beginning balance of Retained Earnings 19 2,506,243.51 125,612.78
( two) Surplus to compensate for loss 20
( three) Other adjustment factor 21
Seven, Profit available for distribution 22 5,185,535.71 2,506,243.51
Less: ( one ) statutory surplus reserve 23
( two) The statutory public welfare fund 24
( three) Staff bonus and welfare fund 25
(four) Withdrawal reserve fund 26
(five) Appropriation of Enterprise Expansion Fund 27
(six) Profit capitalized on return of investment 28
(seven) Supplementary current capital 29
(eight) Single retained profit 30
(nine)Other 31
Eight, Distributable profit for investors 32 5,185,535.71 2,506,243.51
Less: Dividend payable on preferred stock 33
(two) Discretionary surplus reserve 34
(three) Common stock dividends payable (profits payable) 35
(four) Transferred to capital (capital stock) common stock dividend 36
(five) Other 37
Nine, Undistributed profits 38 5,185,535.71 2,506,243.51
Aong which Annual pre-tax profits after irreparable loss. 39
Supplementary information 40
One, sale, disposal or investment sector units proceeds 41
Two, the loss of natural disasters (loss to "+" to fill a column) 42
Three, changes in accounting policies influence the profit total amount 43
Four, change in accounting estimate affects the profit total amount 44
Five, debt recombination losses (loss to "+" to fill a column) 45
Six, other non-recurring gains and losses (gains with "+" to fill a 46

column)
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TECH MAHINDRA (BEWING) IT SERVICES LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT (FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2020)

Prepared by Tech Mahindra (Beijing) IT Services Ltd RMB Yuan
Items No. Amount
1. Cash flows from operating activities

Cash inflow from sale of goods and provision of services 1 25,427,022.81

Repayment of tax received 2 8,072.21

Other cash inflow relating to operating activities 3 1,723,565.93

Total cash inflow 4 27,158,660.95

Payments for purchase of goods and receipt of services 5

Payments to and for staff 6 9,805,761.84

Taxation paid 7 1,442,084.73

Other Payments relating to operating activities 8 12,135,508.63

Total cash outflow 9 23,383,355.20

Net cash inflow/outflow generated from operations 10 3,775,305.75
2. Cash flow from investing activities 1"

Cash inflow from retirement of investment 12

Cash inflow from profit of investment 13

Cash gain of disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets, and other long-term investment 14

Other proceeds relating to investment activities 15

Total cash inflow 16

Purchase of fixed assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets 17 14,311.93

Cash paid for investment 18

Other cash paid relating to investment activities 19

Total cash outflow 20 14,311.93

Net cash inflow/outflow generated from investment activities 21 -14,311.93
3. Cash flows from financing activities: 22

Absorption of investment 23 2,133,120.00

Borrowings raised 24

Other cash inflow relating to financing activities 25

Total cash inflow 26 2,133,120.00

Borrowings repaid 27

Dividend, interest and profit paid 28 168,100.00

Other cash outflow relating to financing activities 29

Total cash outflow 30 168,100.00

Net cash inflow/outflow generated from financing activities 31 1,965,020.00
4. Influence of fluctuation of echange rate 32 6,717.89
5. Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 33 5,732,731.71
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Prepared by Tech Mahindra (Beijing) IT Services Ltd RMB Yuan
Supplementary information No. Amount
1. Adjustment of net profit to cash flows generated from operations:
Net profit 34 2,679,292.20
Add:Provision for devaluation of assets 35
Depreciation of fixed assets 36 583,346.99
Amortization of intangible assets 37
Amortization of long-term expense 38 1,491,616.22
Decrease of deferred expenses (Less: increase) 39
Increase of pre-paid expense (Less: decrease) 40
Loss on disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets (less: gain) 41
Loss on retirement of fixed assets 42
Financial expense 43
Investment loss (less:investment gain) 44
Deferred tax, credit (less: debit) 45
Decrease of inventories (less: increase) 46
Decrease of receivables in operations (less: increase) 47 1,316,724.79
Increase of payables in operations (less: decrease) 48 -2,295,674.45
Others 49 -
Net cash inflow/outflow generated from operations 50 3,775,305.75
2. Investing and financing activities not relating to cash flows 51
Capital transferred from liabilities 52
Transferable bonds to be expired within one year 53
Fixed assets transferred from financing activities 54
3. Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 55
Cash and bank balances at end of period 56 9,863,982.33
Less: Cash and bank balances at beginning of period 57 4,131,250.62
Cash equivalent at end of period 58 -
Less: Cash equivalent at beginning of period 59 -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 60 5,732,731.71
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TECH MAHINDRA (BEIJING) IT SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 DEC. 2020

(The currency are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

The Company’s General Profile

As a wholly foreign-owned enterprises, Tech Mahindra (Beijing) IT Services Limited was invested and established by
Tech Mahindra Limited. The Company was approved to be established by Beijing Municipal Government according
to policy document SWZJZZ[2007]N0.05422, obtained Enterprise’s Legal Person Registration in the Industry and
Commerce Administration Bureau of Beijing on Sep.24, 2007 with the Business License 91110105666903783P.The
registered capital of the company is US$2,500,000.00.The Company’s registered address is 2201 room, Building 8,
No. 25 Ganluyuan nanli, Chaoyang District, Beijing. Legal representative: Mr. Jagdish Mitra.

Scope of Business: Technical services, technical advice, design, development, production and computer networking,
telecommunications and electronic technology-related applications; product sales of assets.

Basis of Preparation
1 Basis of preparation

The financial statement is prepared under going concern assumption based on the actual transactions taking
place which is required by ASBE (Accounting Standards for Business Enterprise) and its application guidelines,
explanatory notes and other relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance of PRC.

According to the relevant rules in the ASBE, accounting measurement of our company is based on accrual basis.
This financial statement use historical cost as the measurement basis, except for the financial assets. Ifimpairment
is taking place, our company will account for the impairment according to relevant rules.

2 Going concern

This financial statement is presented under going concern assumption, our company has the ability to operate
continuously at least 12 months from balance sheet date.

Compliance of Accounting Standards of Business Enterprises

The financial statements prepared by the Company are subject to requirements from the Accounting Standards and
present fairly the Company’s financial position, operation results, cash flow and other related information.

Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
1. Accounting period

The accounting period of the Company is from 1 January to 31 December.
2. Operating period

Normal operating period is the period from acquiring asset for processing to the realization of cash and cash
equivalent. Our company use 12 months as an operating period and use this as a standard to categorize the
liquidity of asset and liability.

3. Book-keeping Currency
The company’s financial records and the financial statements are stated in Renminbi.
4. The categorization standard of cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in our company include cash, cash in bank that can be used at any time and investment
we held which is short period, usually 3 months from purchase to maturity, strong liquidity, easy to transfer to any
pre-determined amount of cash and low risk of value fluctuation.

5. Foreign exchange translation
(1) The translation method of foreign transaction

The foreign transaction in our company, in initial recognition, should be translated to presentation currency
according to the exchange rate on the transaction date, however, the foreign currency exchange or other
transactions involved foreign currency exchange business should be translated using actual exchange rate in
the transaction.

(2) The translation method involving foreign currency monetary and non-monetary items
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At balance sheet date, for foreign currency monetary items, we use exchange rate at balance sheet date, and
for the exchange rate differences, we accounted for in profit and loss, except: a. foreign currency borrowing
cost related to acquire asset that can be capitalized should be treated under borrowing cost capitalization
rules; b. for foreign currency monetary items available for sale, apart from the exchange differences caused
by other current amount changes than amortized cost that should be accounted for in other comprehensive
income, other differences should also be accounted for in profit and loss

For foreign currency non-monetary items measured by historical cost, we still use presentation currency
translated by the exchange rate at transaction date. For foreign currency non-monetary items measured
by fair value, we use the exchange rate at the fair value determination date. The differences between the
presentation currency after translation and the original presentation currency should be accounted for in profit
and loss or other comprehensive income as fair value changes (including exchange rate changes.

(3) Translation method of foreign currency financial statements

When consolidated financial statements involve overseas operation, if the operation is foreign currency
monetary items due to net investment in overseas operation, the exchange differences due to exchange rate
fluctuation should be accounted for in other comprehensive income as foreign currency financial statements
exchange differences; in the case of overseas operation disposal, the differences should be accounted for in
the profit and loss

The foreign currency financial statement of overseas operation should be translated to Renminbi financial
statements using the following method: for assets and liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position, we
use exchange rate at balance sheet date; for shareholder’s equity, apart from retained earnings, other items
should use the exchange rate at the date when it is happened. For income and expenses items in the income
statement, we use weighted average exchange rate at the transaction date. The opening balance of retained
earnings is the ending balance of the previous year after translation; the ending balance of retained earnings
is presented by calculation under profit distribution items after translation; the differences between total asset
and total liability and equity should be accounted for in other comprehensive income as foreign currency
financial statements exchange differences. When we dispose of overseas operation and lose control, the
foreign currency financial statements exchange differences related to overseas operation presented under
shareholder’s equity in the Statement of Financial Position should be, all or in proportion according to the
percentage of overseas operation disposed of, transferred into profit and loss.

For foreign currency cash flow, we use weighted average exchange rate at the date of cash inflow or outflow
to translate and the differences should be presented in the Statement of cash flows as an adjusted item.

The opening balance and the actual amount of the previous period should be presented using the amount
after translation of the financial statement of previous period.

When we dispose of all shareholder’s equity of overseas operation or lose control due to disposal of partial
investment or other reasons, the foreign currency financial statements exchange differences of shareholder’s
equity belongs to the parent company under shareholder’s equity in the Statement of Financial Position
should be transferred into profit and loss in full.

When we dispose partial investment or other reason that results of lower percentage of shareholding of
overseas operation without losing control, the differences of foreign currency financial statement should be
accounted for as minority shareholding rather than profit and loss. When the disposal of overseas operation is
partial investment of associate or joint venture, the differences of foreign currency financial statement related
to this operation should be transferred into profit and loss in proportion to the percentage of disposal.

Financial Instrument

A financial asset or financial liability is recognized when the Company becomes a party to a financial instrument
contract.

(1) Classification, confirmation and measurement of financial assets

According to the business mode of managing financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of financial assets, the Company divides financial assets into: Financial assets measured at amortized cost.
Financial assets measured at fair value with changes included in other comprehensive income. Financial
assets that are measured at fair value and whose movements are included in the current profits and losses.

Financial assets are measured at fair value at initial recognition. For financial assets measured at fair value
and whose changes are included in current profits and losses, relevant transaction costs are directly included
in current profits and losses. For other types of financial assets, relevant transaction costs are included in
the initial recognition amount. Accounts receivable or notes receivable arising from the sale of products or
the provision of labor services that do not contain or take into account significant financing components shall
be initially recognized by the Company in accordance with the amount of consideration that the Company is
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expected to be entitled to receive.
Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Company’s business model of managing financial assets measured in amortized cost is aimed at
collecting contractual cash flow, and the contractual cash flow characteristics of such financial assets are
consistent with the basic lending arrangements, that is, the cash flow generated on a specific date is only
the payment of principal and interest based on the unpaid principal amount. For such financial assets, the
Company adopts the effective interest rate method and carries out subsequent measurement according to
amortized cost. The profits or losses arising from amortization or impairment are included into the current
profits and losses.

Financial assets measured at fair value with changes included in other comprehensive income

The Company’s business model for managing such financial assets is to collect and sell contractual cash flow,
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of such financial assets are consistent with the basic lending
arrangements. The Company measures these financial assets at fair value and their changes are included
in other comprehensive income, but impairment loss or gain, exchange gain or loss and interest income
calculated according to the effective interest rate method are included into the current profit and loss.

In addition, the Company designates some non tradable equity instrument investments as financial assets
measured at fair value with changes included in other comprehensive income. The Company shall record the
relevant dividend income of such financial assets into the current profits and losses, and the change of fair
value into other comprehensive income. When the financial asset is derecognized, the accumulated gains
or losses previously included in other comprehensive income will be transferred from other comprehensive
income to retained income and will not be included in current profits and losses.

Fair value through Profit and Loss Financial assets

The Company classifies the above financial assets measured at amortized cost and financial assets measured
at fair value with changes included in other comprehensive income into financial assets measured at fair value
with changes included in current profits and losses. In addition, during initial recognition, in order to eliminate
or significantly reduce accounting mismatch, the Company designated part of financial assets as financial
assets measured at fair value with changes included in current profit and loss. For such financial assets, the
Company adopts fair value for subsequent measurement, and the changes in fair value are included into the
current profit and loss.

Classification, recognition and measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities upon initial recognition are classified as financial liabilities which are measured at fair value
and whose changes are included in current profits and losses and other financial liabilities. For the financial
liabilities measured at fair value with the changes included into the current profits and losses, the relevant
transaction costs are directly included into the current profits and losses, and the relevant transaction costs of
other financial liabilities are included in the initial recognition amount.

Fair value through Profit and Loss Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities measured at fair value with changes included in current profits and losses, which include
transactional financial liabilities (including derivatives belonging to financial liabilities) and financial liabilities
designated to be measured at fair value with changes included in current profits and losses at initial recognition.

Trading financial liabilities (including derivatives belonging to financial liabilities) are subsequently measured
according to their fair values. Except for those related to hedge accounting, changes in fair values are included
in current profits and losses.

Financial liabilities designated to be measured at fair value with changes included in current profits and losses.
Changes in the fair value of this liability caused by changes in the Company’s own credit risk are included in
other comprehensive income. When the liability is derecognized, the accumulated change in fair value caused
by changes in its own credit risk included in other comprehensive income is transferred to retained earnings.
Changes in fair value are accounted into current profits and losses. If the above-mentioned treatment of the
impact of changes in the credit risk of these financial liabilities will cause or expand accounting mismatch in
profits and losses, the Company will include all profits or losses of the financial liabilities (including the impact
amount of changes in the credit risk of the enterprise itself) into the current profits and losses.

Other financial liabilities

Except for financial liabilities and financial guarantee contracts formed by the transfer of financial assets
that do not meet the conditions for termination of recognition or continue to be involved in the transferred
financial assets, other financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
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and subsequently measured at amortized cost. Gains or losses arising from termination of recognition or
amortization are included in current profits and losses.

Basis of Confirmation and Calculation of financial instruments

Financial assets shall be derecognized if they meet one of the following conditions: [ The termination of the
contractual right to receive cash flow from the financial asset. [1 The financial asset has been transferred,
and almost all risks and rewards related to the ownership of the financial asset have been transferred to the
transferee. [0 The financial asset has been transferred. Although the enterprise has neither transferred nor
retained almost all risks and rewards in the ownership of the financial asset, it has given up its control over
the financial asset.

If the enterprise neither transfers nor retains almost all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the financial
assets, and does not give up the control over the financial assets, the relevant financial assets shall be
recognized according to the extent of continuous involvement in the transferred financial assets, and the
relevant liabilities shall be recognized accordingly. The degree of continuous involvement in the transferred
financial assets refers to the risk level faced by the enterprise due to the change in the value of the financial
assets.

If the overall transfer of financial assets meets the conditions for termination of recognition, the difference
between the book value of the transferred financial assets and the sum of the consideration received due to
the transfer and the accumulated amount of changes in fair value originally included in other comprehensive
income shall be included into the current profits and losses.

If the partial transfer of financial assets meets the conditions for termination of recognition, the book value of the
transferred financial assets shall be apportioned according to its relative fair value between the derecognized
part and the non derecognized part, and the difference between the sum of the consideration received due to
the transfer and the accumulated change in fair value originally included in other comprehensive income that
shall be apportioned to the derecognized part and the allocated aforesaid book amount shall be included into
the current profits and losses.

For financial assets sold by the Company with recourse, or for endorsement and transfer of held financial
assets, it is necessary to determine whether almost all risks and rewards in the ownership of the financial
assets have been transferred. If almost all risks and rewards in the ownership of the financial asset have
been transferred to the transferee, the recognition of the financial asset shall be terminated. If almost all risks
and rewards on the ownership of a financial asset are retained, the recognition of the financial asset shall
not be terminated. If almost all risks and rewards related to the ownership of financial assets have not been
transferred or retained, it shall continue to judge whether the enterprise retains control over the assets and
carry out accounting treatment according to the principles mentioned in the preceding paragraphs.

Termination of recognition of financial liabilities

If the current obligation of the financial liability (or part thereof) has been relieved, the Company terminates
the recognition of the financial liability (or part thereof). The Company (the borrower) and the lender sign
an agreement to replace the original financial liabilities by assuming new financial liabilities. If the contract
terms of the new financial liabilities and the original financial liabilities are substantially different, the original
financial liabilities shall be derecognized and a new financial liability shall be recognized at the same time. If
the Company makes any substantial modification to the contract terms of the original financial liability (or part
thereof), the original financial liability shall be derecognized and a new financial liability shall be recognized in
accordance with the modified terms.

If financial liabilities (or part thereof) are derecognized, the Company shall include the difference between its
book value and the consideration paid (including transferred non-cash assets or liabilities assumed) into the
current profits and losses.

Offset of financial assets and financial liabilities

When the Company has the legal right to offset the recognized amount of financial assets and financial
liabilities, and such legal right is currently enforceable, and the Company plans to settle the financial assets
on a net basis or realize the financial assets and settle the financial liabilities at the same time, the financial
assets and financial liabilities are listed in the balance sheet at a net amount after mutual offset. In addition,
financial assets and financial liabilities shall be listed separately in the balance sheet and shall not be offset
against each other.

The fair value determination method of financial assets and financial liabilities

Fair value refers to the price that market participants can receive from selling an asset or pay to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction on the measurement date. Where there is an active market for financial
instruments, the Company adopts quotations in the active market to determine their fair values. Quoted price
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in active market refers to the price easily obtained from exchanges, brokers, industry associations, pricing
service agencies, etc. on a regular basis, and represents the price of market transactions actually occurred
in fair trading. If there is no active market for financial instruments, the Company uses evaluation techniques
to determine their fair values. Evaluation techniques include reference to prices used in recent market
transactions by parties familiar with the situation and willing to trade, reference to current fair values of other
financial instruments that are substantially the same, discounting cash flow technique, option pricing model,
etc. In valuation, the Company adopts valuation techniques that are applicable under current circumstances
and are supported by sufficient available data and other information, selects input values that are consistent
with the characteristics of assets or liabilities considered by market participants in transactions related to
assets or liabilities, and gives priority to the use of relevant observable input values as much as possible. If the
relevant observable input value cannot be obtained or it is not impracticable to obtain it, the non-input value
shall be used.

(7) Equity instruments

Equity instruments refer to contracts that can prove ownership of the Company’s residual equity in assets
after deducting all liabilities. The issuance (including refinancing), repurchase, sale or cancellation of equity
instruments by the Company are treated as changes in equity, and transaction costs related to equity
transactions are deducted from equity. The Company does not recognize changes in the fair value of equity
instruments.

Dividends (including “interest” generated by instruments classified as equity instruments) distributed by the
Company'’s equity instruments during their existence shall be treated as profit distribution.

Receivables
Receivables include notes receivables, trade receivables and other receivables, etc.
(1) Standards for confirming doubtful debt

e The death or bankruptcy of the debtor, whose receivables still cannot be recovered after the debt has
been paid off by his/her bankruptcy assets or heritage.

e Debt still cannot be recovered after three years of overdue debt owed by the debtor.
(2) The measurement method we use is allowance method.
Inventory

(1) Classification of inventory: the inventory of this company includes the raw materials working in progress (WIP)
inventory, semi-finished goods, turnover materials, finished goods, commodity stocks, etc.

(2) Valuation method of obtaining and delivering of inventory: the cost of inventory includes purchase cost,
processing cost and other costs. FIFO (First In First Out) method should be used to value collection and
delivering of the inventory.

(3) Measurement of netrealizable value and measurement method of provision of obsolete inventory Net realizable
value is the differences between the estimated selling price of the inventory and estimated future cost, selling
expenses and relevant taxes. When measuring net realizable value, the foundation is the evidence obtained
and take the purpose of holding the inventory and influence of post balance sheet events into consideration.

On balance sheet day, inventory is measured at lower of cost and net realizable value. When net realizable
value is lower than cost, provision of obsolete inventory should be presented by the differences between cost
and net realizable value of an individual inventory.

When provision is presented, it can be reversed back within the amount of the provision when the factor that
influence the provision has disappeared so that net realizable value is higher than its cost, the reversal will be
accounted for in the profit and loss.

(4) Inventory system of stock: the stock method of this company’s inventory quantity is perpetual inventory
system.

(5) The amortization method of low value consumables and packaging materials

Low-value consumables are amortized on a one-off basis/ partial amortization method when they are used;
packaging materials are amortized on a one-off basis/ partial amortization method when they are used.
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Held-for-sale assets

If the book value of a non-current asset or to-be-disposed portfolio is recovered by the Company mainly through
sale activities (including the exchange of non-monetary assets with commercial nature, the same below), the non-
current asset or to-be-disposed portfolio falls into held-for-sale category. The specific criteria: both of the following
conditions shall be satisfied: a non-current asset or to-be-disposed portfolio can be sold immediately under the
current conditions based on the practice of selling such asset or to-be-disposed portfolio in similar transactions;
the Company has already decided on the sale plan and obtained confirmed purchase commitment; the sale is
scheduled to be completed within one year. Among them, a Disposal Portfolio refers to a group of assets that will
be disposed of as a whole through sale or other approaches in a transaction, and the liabilities directly associated
with these assets transferred along with the assets in transaction. If the portfolio of assets or group of portfolios of
assets is allocated goodwill acquired in business merger in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 8 - Asset Impairment, the Disposal Portfolio shall include the goodwill allocated to it.

In the event that the book value of a non-current asset or to-be-disposed portfolio that has been designated as
held-for-sale category is higher than the net amount of fair value less sales expenses when the non-current asset
or to-be-disposed portfolio is initially measured or measured on the balance sheet date, the book value shall
be to the net amount of fair value minus sales expenses, and the written-down amount shall be recognized as
asset impairment loss and included in current period profit or loss. The provision for impairment loss of the held-
for-sale asset shall be accrued. For a Disposal Portfolio, the confirmed impairment loss shall deduct the book
value of the goodwill in the Disposal Portfolio, then deduct the book value of the non-current assets determined
by the measurement on a pro-rata basis in accordance with the applicable Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 42 held-for-sale non-current assets, Disposal Portfolio and Termination of Operations (hereinafter
referred to as the “Guide for Held-For-Sale”). In the event of an increase of the book value of the held-for-sale
Disposal Portfolio minus sales expenses on the subsequent the balance sheet date, the amount previously written
down shall be recovered and be reversed within the mount of the asset impairment loss recognized in the non-
current assets measured by the measurement “Guide for Held-For-Sale” after being classified as held for sale
asset, the reversal amount shall be included in the current period profit or loss, and the book value of all non-
current assets (except for goodwill) determined by the measurement on a pro-rata basis in accordance with the
applicable “Guide for Held-For-Sale” shall be increased on a pro-rata basis. The book value of the goodwill that
has been deducted and the impairment loss of the assets recognized before the classification of the held-for-sale
non-current assets in accordance with the applicable “Guide for Held-For-Sale” shall not be reversed.

In terms of the held-for-sale non-current assets or non-current assets in Disposal Portfolio, there is no accrual or
amortization for depreciation, and the interest from and other expenses from the liabilities in held-for-sale Disposal
Portfolio shall still be recognized.

When a non-current asset or Disposal Portfolio no longer meets the conditions for Held-For-Sale category, non-
current asset or Disposal Portfolio will no longer be classified as Held-For-Sale category by the Company or the
non-current asset will be removed from the Held-For-Sale Disposal Portfolio, and be measured based on one of
the following two values, whichever is lower: (1) The book value before being classified as held-for-sale category
adjusted based on the depreciation, amortization or impairment that should have be confirmed if it is not classified
as held-for-sale category; (2) recoverable amount.

Long-term investment

The long-term equity investment refers to in this part refers to the long-term equity investment that the Company
has control, joint control or significant influence on the invested entity. The long-term equity investment of the
Company that does not have control, joint control or significant impact on the investee shall be accounted as a
financial asset measured at fair value with its changes included into the current profits and losses. Among them, if
it is non-transactional, the Company may choose to designate it as a financial asset measured at fair value and its
changes are included in the accounting of other comprehensive income at the time of initial recognition. For details
of its accounting policies, please refer to Note 1V, 9 “Financial Instruments”.

Joint control refers to the control that the Company shares with other party/parties for an arrangement in
accordance with relevant agreements, and relevant activities of the arrangement can only be decided based on
the consensus of all parties sharing the control rights before making a decision. Significant Influence refers to
power of the Company to participate in the decision-making of the financial and operating policies of the investee,
but the Company cannot control or jointly control the development of these policies with other parties.

(1) Determination of investment cost

For a long-term equity investment obtained from a combination of businesses under the same control,
the apportioned share of the book value in the final controller’s consolidated financial statements on the
combination date in accordance with the shareholders’ equity shall be the initial investment cost of the long-
term equity investment. The capital reserve shall be adjusted subject to the difference between the initial
investment cost of the long-term equity investment and the cash paid, the non-cash assets transferred, and
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the book value of the debts assumed; if the capital reserve is insufficient for offsetting, the retained earnings
shall be adjusted. Where the equity securities are issued as merger consideration, the apportioned share of
the book value in the final controller’s consolidated financial statements on the combination date in accordance
with the shareholders’ equity shall be the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment, and the
total par value of the issued shares is taken as the share capital. The capital reserve shall be adjusted subject
to the difference between the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment and the total par value
of the shares issued; if the capital reserve is insufficient for offsetting, the retained earnings shall be adjusted.
Where the equity of combined parties under the same control is obtained through multiple transactions and
a business combination under the same control is formed finally, it shall be treated differentially based on
whether it is a “package deal”: if it belongs to a “package deal”, all transactions will be treated as a transaction
that obtains control. If it is not a “package deal”, the apportioned share of the book value in the final controller’s
consolidated financial statements on the combination date in accordance with the shareholders’ equity shall
be the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment. The capital reserve shall be adjusted subject
to the difference between the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment and the sum of the book
value of long-term equity investment before combination date and the book value of the new consideration for
the new share on the combination date. If the capital reserve is insufficient for offsetting, the retained earnings
shall be adjusted. The equity investments that are held prior to the combination date and are recognized with
equity recognized or as available-for-sale financial asset as other comprehensive income will not be given
accounting treatment for the moment.

For a long-term equity investment obtained from a combination of businesses not under the same control,
the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment shall be based on the combination cost on
the purchase date. The combination cost includes the assets paid by purchaser, the liabilities incurred or
assumed, and the sum of the fair value of issued equity securities. Where the equity of combined parties
not under the same control is obtained through multiple transactions and a business combination under the
same control is formed finally, it shall be treated differentially based on whether it is a “package deal”: if it
belongs to a “package deal”, all transactions will be treated as a transaction that obtains control. If it is not a
“package deal”, the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment calculated by the cost method
shall be calculated based on the sum of the book value of the equity investment in the original holder and
the new investment cost. The original share holding that measured using equity method, the relevant other
comprehensive income does temporarily not conduct accounting treatment. Intermediary expenses and other
related expenses shall be recognized in current period profit or loss when incurred.

Follow-up measurement and confirmation methods for profit and loss

The Equity Method shall be used to account for long-term equity investments that have joint control over
the invested entity (except for those constituting joint operators) or have significant impact on the invested
entity. In addition, the company’s financial statements use the Cost Method to account for long-term equity
investments, which can control the long-term equity investment of the investee.

a. Long-term equity investment based on Cost Method

When accounting with Cost Method, long-term equity investment is priced at the initial investment cost,
and the cost of the long-term equity investment is adjusted by adding or recovering the investment.
Except for the actual payment at the time of obtaining investment or the cash dividends or profits included
in the consideration but not yet issued, the current investment income shall be recognized according to
the cash dividends or profits declared by the investee.

b. Long-term equity investment accounted for by Equity Method

When accounting with Equity Method, if the initial investment cost of a long-term equity investment is
greater than the fair value share of the identifiable net assets of the investee when investing, and the
initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment shall not be adjusted; if the initial investment
cost is less than the fair value share of the identifiable net assets of the investee when investing, the
difference shall be included in the current profit and loss, and the cost of the long-term equity investment
shall be adjusted

When accounting with Equity Method, the investment income and other comprehensive income are
recognized separately according to the shares of the net profit or loss and other comprehensive income
that should be enjoyed or shared, and the book value of the long-term equity investment should be
adjusted at the same time. The book value of long-term equity investment is reduced accordingly by
calculating the share that should be enjoyed according to the profit or cash dividend declared by the
investee. The book value of long-term equity investment shall be adjusted and included in the capital
reserve for other changes in the owner’s rights and interests of the invested entity other than the net profit
and loss, other comprehensive income and profit distribution. When confirming the share of the net profit
and loss of the investee, the net profit of the investee shall be adjusted and confirmed on the basis of
the fair value of the identifiable assets of the investee at the time of investment. If the accounting policies
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and periods adopted by the invested entity are inconsistent with the Company, the financial statements
of the invested entity shall be adjusted in accordance with the accounting policies and periods of the
Company, and the investment income and other comprehensive income shall be confirmed accordingly.
For the transactions between the Company and the associates and joint ventures, the assets invested
or sold do not constitute a business, and the unrealized gains and losses from internal transactions are
offset against the portion of the Company that is attributable to the proportion of the shares, on this basis.
investment profit and loss should be confirmed. However, the unrealized internal transaction losses
incurred by the Company and the investee are not included in the impairment losses of the transferred
assets. Where the assets invested by the Company into a joint venture or an associates constitute a
business, if the investor obtains long-term equity investment but does not control, the fair value of the
invested business shall be deemed as the initial investment cost of the new long-term equity investment,
and the difference between the initial investment cost and the book value of the invested business is fully
recognized in the current profits and losses. If the assets sold by the Company to a joint venture or an
associate that constitute a business, the difference between the consideration value obtained and the
book value of the business shall be fully recognized in the profits and losses of the current period.

When confirming the net loss that incurred by the investee should be shared, the book value of the long-
term equity investment and other long-term equity that substantially constitutes the net investment of
the investee are reduced to zero. In addition, if the Company has an obligation to bear additional losses
to the investee, the estimated liabilities shall be recognized according to the estimated obligations and
included in the current investment losses. If the investee achieves net profit in the following period, the
Company shall resume recognizing the share of income after making up for the unrecognized share of
loss.

For the long-term equity investment in the joint ventures and associates held by the Company for the
first time before the implementation of the new accounting standards, if there is a debit balance of equity
investments related to the investment, the current profits and losses shall be accounted for by the straight-
line amortization of the original remaining period.

Acquisition of Minority Equity

In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, if the difference between the long-term equity
investment added by purchasing minority shares and the net assets share that should be continuously
calculated by the subsidiary company from the purchase date (or the consolidation date) is calculated
according to the proportion of newly added shares, the retained earnings shall be adjusted; and if the
capital reserve is insufficient to offset, the retained earnings shall be adjusted.

Disposal of long-term equity investment

In the consolidated financial statements, the parent company partially of disposes of the long-term equity
investment of the subsidiary without losing control, the difference of the corresponding net assets in the
subsidiary between the disposal price and the disposal of the long-term equity investment is included in
the shareholders’ equity. it shall be treated in accordance with the relevant accounting policies described
in “Notes on the preparation of consolidated financial statements” in Note IV.5 .

For the disposal of long-term equity investment in other cases, the difference between the book value of
the disposed equity and the actual acquisition price shall be included in the current profits and losses.

If the long-term equity investment is accounted for by equity method, the remaining equity after disposal
is still accounted for by equity method, when disposing, the other comprehensive income which were
originally included in shareholder’s rights and interests shall be accounted for on the same basis as the
assets or liabilities directly disposed of by the investee. The owner’s equity recognized as a result of
changes in the owner’s equity of the investee other than net profit or loss, other comprehensive income
and profit distribution, it should be carried forward to the current profit and loss

For the long-term equity investment accounted by Cost Method, the remaining equity is still accounted by
Cost Method after disposal, other comprehensive income that recognized by equity method accounting
or financial instrument recognition and measurement criteria accounting before obtaining control over
the investee shall be accounted for on the same basis as the assets or liabilities directly disposed of by
the investee, and shall be settled to the current profit and loss in proportion. Changes of the net assets
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of investee in the owner’s equity other than net profit or loss, other comprehensive income and profit
distribution ‘s that recognized by equity method shall be settled to the current profit and loss in proportion.

Where the Company loses control over the investee due to disposal of part of its equity investment, when
preparing individual financial statements, if the remaining equity after disposal can exercise joint control
or exert significant influence on the investee, it shall be accounted for by equity method instead, and the
remaining equity shall be adjusted by accounting by equity method when itis deemed to be acquired. If the
remaining equity after disposal cannot be jointly controlled or exerts significant influence on the investee,
it shall be accounted for according to the relevant provisions of the financial instrument recognition and
measurement criteria, and the difference between the fair value and the book value on the date of loss of
control. Itis included in the current profit and loss. Before the Company obtains control over the investee,
other comprehensive income recognized by equity method accounting or financial instrument recognition
and measurement criteria is used to directly dispose of the relevant assets with the investee, accounting
treatment based on the same basis as the investee directly disposes of related assets or liabilities when
the control of the investee is lost, Accounting is treated on the same basis as the liabilities. Changes in
the owner’s equity other than net profit or loss, other comprehensive income and profit distribution of the
investee’s net assets recognized by the equity method are carried forward to the current profit or loss
when the control of the investee is lost. Among them, the remaining equity after disposal is accounted for
using the equity method. Where the remaining equity after disposal is accounted for by equity method,
other comprehensive income and other owner’s equity should be settled by proportion. If the remaining
equity is accounted for using financial instrument recognition and measurement standard, all of other
comprehensive income and other shareholder’s equity should be settled.

If the Company loses its joint control or significant influence on the investee due to the disposal of part
of the equity investment, the remaining equity after disposal shall be accounted for according to the
financial instrument recognition and measurement criteria, and the difference between the fair value
and the book value on the date of loss of joint control or significant influence is recognised in the current
profit or loss. The other comprehensive income recognized in the original equity investment by the equity
method is accounted for on the same basis as the investee’s direct disposal of related assets or liabilities
when the equity method is terminated, Owner’s equity recognized as a result of changes in other owners’
equity other than net profit or loss, other comprehensive income and profit distribution of the investee
should be transferred to current investment income when terminating the equity method

The Company disposes of the equity investment in the subsidiaries step by step through multiple
transactions until the loss of control. If the above-mentioned transactions are part of a package transaction,
the transactions are treated as a transaction dealing with the equity investment of the subsidiary and
losing control. The difference between the book value of each long-term equity investment corresponding
to the disposal price and the disposal of the equity before loss of control is first recognized as other
comprehensive income, and when the control is lost, it is transferred to the current profit and loss of loss
of control.

11. Fixed Assets

(1) Confirmation conditions for fixed assets

)

®)

Fixed Assets refer to tangible assets held for the purpose of producing goods, providing labor services,
renting or operating management, and having a service life of more than one fiscal year. Fixed assets are
recognized only when the economic benefits associated with them are likely to flow into the Company and
their costs can be reliably measured. Fixed assets are initially measured at cost and taking into account the
impact of projected abandonment costs.

Categorization of fixed assets

Fixed assets can be divided into Property, Plant and Equipment, Transportation vehicle, Land, Office
equipment, Electronic devices, etc.

Initial Measurement of fixed asset

Fixed asset will be measured at historical cost.

(4) Depreciation methods for various types of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated over their useful lives using the straight-line method from the month
following the scheduled availability. The service life, estimated net residual value and annual depreciation
rate of various fixed assets are as follows:
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Category Depreciation | Depreciation | Residual Annual
Method period (Year) | rate(%) depreciation
rate (%)
Electronic equipment straight-line | 3 5 33.37
depreciation

b. The estimated net residual value refers to the expected state after the estimated useful life of the fixed
assets has expired and is at the end of its useful life. The amount currently obtained by the Company
from the disposal of the assets after deducting the estimated disposal expenses.

c. Impairment test method and Impairment provision method for fixed assets

For details of Impairment test method and impairment provision method for fixed assets, please refer to
“Long-Term Asset Impairment”.

d. Recognition basis and valuation method of fixed assets acquired by finance lease

Afinance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards associated with ownership
of an asset, and its ownership may or may not be transferred. If it is reasonable to determine the
ownership of the leased asset at the expiration of the lease term, the depreciation shall be calculated
within the useful life of the leased asset; If it is not reasonable to determine the ownership of the leased
asset at the expiration of the lease term, depreciation shall be calculated within a relatively short period
of the lease term and the service life of the leased assets.

e. Others

The subsequent expenses related to fixed assets, if the economic benefits related to the fixed assets
are likely to flow in and their costs can be reliably measured, are included in the cost of fixed assets
and the book value of the replaced part should be terminated. The subsequent expenditures other than
mentioned as above are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

The fixed asset is derecognized when the fixed asset is in disposal or is not expected to generate
economic benefits by using or disposal. The difference between the disposal income from the sale,
transfer, retirement or damage of the fixed assets less the carrying amount and related taxes is recognized
in profit or loss for the current period.

The Company reviews the useful life, estimated net residual value and depreciation method of fixed
assets at least at the end of the year, and changes as an accounting estimate if changes occur.

12. Construction in progress

13.

The cost of construction in progress is determined based on actual project expenditure, including various project
expenditures incurred during the construction period, capitalized borrowing costs before the project reaches the
expected usable status, and other related expenses. Construction in progress is carried forward to fixed assets

when it is ready for its intended use.

For details of the impairment test method and impairment provision method for construction in progress, please

refer to “Long-Term Asset Impairment”.

Intangible Assets

(1) Intangible assets

Intangible assets refer to identifiable non-monetary assets without physical form owned or controlled by the
Company.

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Expenditure related to intangible assets is included in the cost
of intangible assets if the relevant economic benefits are likely to flow to the Company and its costs can be
measured reliably. Expenditure on other items other than this is recognised in profit and loss when incurred.

The acquired land use rights are usually accounted for as intangible assets. The related land use rights and
building construction costs of self-developed and constructed buildings are accounted for as intangible assets
and fixed assets, respectively. In the case of purchased houses and buildings, the relevant price is distributed
between the land use rights and the buildings. If it is difficult to allocate them reasonably, all of them are
treated as fixed assets.

Since the intangible assets with limited useful life are available for use, the original value minus the estimated
net residual value and the accumulated amount of impairment reserve shall be amortized by the straight-line
method during their expected service life. Intangible assets with uncertain service life shall not be amortized.
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At the end of the period, the useful life and amortization methods of intangible assets with limited useful life
are reviewed, and if any change occurs, it is treated as a change of accounting estimate. In addition, the
useful life of intangible assets with uncertain service life is also reviewed. If there is evidence that the period
for which the intangible assets bring economic benefits to the enterprise is foreseeable, the useful life of
intangible assets is estimated and amortized according to the amortization policy of intangible assets with
limited useful life

(2) Research and development expenditure

The company’s expenditure for internal research and development project is divided into research phase
expenditure and development phase expenditure.

Expenditures for the research phase shall be recognized in profit or loss when incurred.

Expenditures for the development phase that meet the following conditions shall be recognized as intangible
assets, and expenditures in the development stage that fail to meet the following conditions are included in
current profit and loss:

a. ltis technically feasible to complete the intangible asset to enable it to be used or sold.
b. The intent to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

c. The way in which intangible assets generate economic benefits, including the ability to prove that the
products produced from the intangible assets having a market or the intangible assets having a market,
and the intangible assets will be used internally, which can prove its usefulness;

d. sufficient technical, financial resources and other resources for supporting the development of the
intangible assets and the ability to use or sell the intangible assets.

e. Expenditure attributable to the development phase of the intangible asset can be reliably measured.
(3) Impairment test method and Impairment provision method for intangible assets

For details of the impairment test method and impairment provision method, please refer to “Long-Term Asset
Impairment”.

Long-term deferred expenses

The long-term deferred expenses are all expenses that have occurred but shall be borne by the reporting period
and subsequent periods with amortization period of more than one year. The company’s long-term deferred
expenses mainly include lease of land use right and renovation costs of factory building. Long-term deferred
expenses are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated benefit period.

Long-term assets impairment

For fixed assets, construction in progress, intangible assets with limited useful life, investment property measured
by cost model, and non-current non-financial assets such as long-term equity investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates, the Company determines whether there is any indication of impairment on the balance
sheet date. If there is any indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated and the impairment test is
carried out. Goodwill, intangible assets with uncertain service life and intangible assets that not yet ready for use
are tested for impairment annually, regardless of whether there is any indication of impairment.

If the result of the impairment test indicates that the recoverable amount of the asset is lower than its book value,
the impairment provision is made based on the difference and is included in the impairment loss. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the fair value of the asset less the disposal expense and the present value of the estimated
future cash flow of the asset. The fair value of assets is determined according to the sale agreement price in a fair
transaction. If there is no sales agreement but there is an active market for the asset, the fair value is determined
according to the buyer’s bid for the asset; if there is neither sales agreement nor active market for assets, the
fair value of assets shall be estimated based on the best information available. Asset disposal expenses include
legal fee, taxes, transportation expenses and direct expenses incurred to make assets saleable. The present
value of the estimated future cash flow of an asset is determined by the appropriate discount rate discounting
and the estimated future cash flow generated by the asset during its continuous use and final disposal. The
asset impairment provision is calculated and confirmed based on individual assets. If it is difficult to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined by the asset group
which the asset belongs to. An asset group is the smallest portfolio of assets that can generate cash inflows
independently.

The book value of the goodwill listed separately in the financial statements is amortized into asset groups or
portfolios that are expected to benefit from the synergies of business combinations when impairment tests are
conducted. The test results show that the recoverable amount of the asset group or portfolio containing the
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16.

17.

assessed goodwill is lower than its book value, the corresponding impairment losses should be confirmed. The
amount of impairment loss is first deducted from the book value of the goodwill amortized to the asset group or
portfolio, and then deducted proportionally from the book value of other assets according to the proportion of the
book value of assets other than goodwill in the asset group or portfolio.

Once the above asset impairment loss is confirmed, it will not be reversed to the part where the value is restored
in the future period.

Employee Compensation

The Company’s employee compensation mainly includes short-term employee remuneration, Post-employment
Benefits, Termination Benefits and benefits for other long-term employee. Among them:

Short-term employees remuneration mainly includes wages, bonuses, allowances and subsidies, employee welfare
fees, medical insurance premiums, maternity insurance premiums, work injury insurance premiums, housing fund,
labor union funds, employee education funds, and non-monetary benefits. The Company recognizes the actual
short-term employee’s remuneration as a liability in the accounting period in which employees provide services to
the Company and recognizes them in profit or loss or related asset costs. Non-monetary benefits are measured at
fair value.

Post-employment Benefits mainly include basic retirement security, unemployment insurance, and annuities. The
Post-employment Benefit Scheme includes a Defined Contribution Plan and a Defined Benefit Plan. If a Defined
Contribution Plan is adopted, the corresponding amount of the deposit shall be included in the relevant asset cost
or current profit and loss as incurred. (1) The Defined Contribution Plan is recognized as a liability based on a fixed
fee paid to an independent fund and is included in the current profit and loss or related asset costs; (2) The Defined
Benefit Plan is accounted for using the expected cumulative benefits unit method Specifically, the Company will
convert the welfare obligation arising from the Defined Benefit Plan into the final value of the departure time
according to the formula determined by the expected cumulative benefits unit method; then it is attributed to the
employee’s in-service period and is included in the current profit and loss or related asset cost.

If the labor relationship with the employee is terminated before the employee’s labor contract expires, or if the
employee is encouraged to accept the reduction voluntarily, when cannot withdrawing unilaterally the dismissal
benefits provided by the termination of the labor relationship plan or the reduction proposal, and when confirming
the costs associated with the restructuring involving the payment of the dismissal benefits, whichever is earlier, the
Company will recognize the employee compensation liabilities arising from the dismissal benefits, and included
in the current profit and loss. However, if the dismissal benefits are not expected to be fully paid within 12 months
after the end of annual reporting period, they shall be treated in accordance with other long-term employee
compensations.

The internal retirement plan for employees shall be treated in the same way as the above-mentioned dismissal
benefits. The company will pay the internal retired staff the salary and the social insurance premiums from the
employee’s lay-off to normal retirement, and will include in the current profit and loss (dismissal benefits) when the
conditions of the estimated liabilities are met.

If the other long-term employee benefits provided by the Company to the employees are in line with the Defined
Contribution Plan, they shall be accounted for Defined Contribution Plan, and otherwise accounted for the Defined
Benefit Plan.

Income

The company confirms the realization of the business revenue as per the following regulations, keeps accounts as
per the realized income and records into the current profits and losses.

(1) Commodity Sales Revenue

When the main risks and rewards of commodity ownership is transferred to the buyer without retaining the
continuing management rights usually associated with the ownership and without effectively controlling of the
sold commodity, if the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, and the relevant economic benefits are
likely flow into enterprise and the relevant costs incurred or will be incurred can be reliably measured, the
sales revenue of commodities shall be confirmed.

(2) Income from labor services

In the case the results of the labor service transaction can be reliably estimated, the labor income provided
is confirmed on the balance sheet date according to the percentage of completion method. The completion
progress of the labor transaction is determined by the ratio of the completed work or the proportion of the labor
service provided to the total labor service, or by the ratio of labor costs incurred to the estimated total cost.
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Reliable estimates of results of the labor transactions provided mean that it can be simultaneously met a.)
The amount of income can be measured reliably; b.) Relevant economic benefits are likely to flow into the
enterprise; ¢.) The degree of completion of the transaction can be determined reliably, d.) The costs that have
occurred and will occur in the transaction can be measured reliably.

(3) Revenue from charge for use
Revenue shall be recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the relevant contract or agreement.
Government grants

Government grant refers to the company’s acquisition of monetary and non-monetary assets from the government
free of charge, excluding the capital invested by the government as an investor and enjoying the corresponding
owner’s rights and interests. Government grants include assets-related grants and revenue-related grants.

Government grants related to assets are recognized as deferred earnings and are divided into current profits and
losses in a reasonable and systematic way during the service life of the assets concerned. The government grants
related to revenue, which are used to compensate for the related cost or loss in the subsequent period, shall be
recognized as deferred income, and shall be recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the related costs or
losses are recognized; if it is used to compensate the related costs or losses that has occurred, it shall be directly
recognized in the current profit and loss.

Government grants related to the daily activities of the Company shall be included in other income or cost
deductions according to the nature of the economic business; government subsidies unrelated to daily activities
shall be included in the non-operating revenues and expenses.

When the recognized government grants need to be returned, if there are relevant deferred earnings balances,
the book balance of related deferred earnings shall be deducted, and the excess part shall be included in the
current profits and losses or the book value of assets shall be adjusted, otherwise, the book value of assets shall
be directly included in the current profits and losses.

Deferred Income Tax Assets / Deferred Income Tax Liabilities
(1) Current Income Tax

On the balance sheet date, the current income tax liabilities (or assets) formed in the current and previous
periods are measured by the expected amount of income tax payable (or returned) in accordance with the
provisions of the Tax Law. The amount of taxable income on which currentincome tax expenses are calculated
is based on the corresponding adjustment of pre-tax accounting profits in the reporting period in accordance
with the relevant tax laws.

(2) Deferred Income Tax Assets and Deferred Income Tax Liabilities

The difference between the book value of certain assets and liabilities and their tax basis, and the temporary
difference between the book value of items that are not recognized as assets and liabilities but which can be
determined as their tax basis according to the tax law, are confirmed by the balance sheet liability method.

Taxable temporary differences which related to the initial recognition of goodwill and the initial recognition
of an asset or liability arising from a transaction that is neither a business combination nor an accounting
profit or taxable income (or deductible loss), relevant deferred income tax liabilities shall not be recognized.
In addition, for taxable temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, if the Company is able to control the turnaround time of temporary differences, and the temporary
difference is unlikely to be reversed in the foreseeable future, the related deferred income tax liabilities shall
not be recognized. Except for the above exceptions, the Company recognizes all other deferred income tax
liabilities arising from taxable temporary differences.

Taxable temporary differences which related to the initial recognition of an asset or liability arising from a
transaction that is neither a business combination nor an accounting profit or taxable income (or deductible
loss), relevant deferred income tax liabilities shall not be recognized. In addition, for taxable temporary
differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, if the temporary difference is
unlikely to be reversed in the foreseeable future, or the amount of taxable income used to offset the temporary
difference is unlikely to be obtained in the future, the deferred income tax assets concerned shall not be
recognized. Except for the above exceptions, the Company recognizes other deferred income tax assets that
can offset temporary differences, subject to the amount of taxable income that is likely to be obtained to offset
temporary differences.

For deductible losses and tax credits that can be carried forward in subsequent years, the corresponding
deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable income shall
be used to offset the deductible losses and tax credits.
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@)

(4)

On the balance sheet date, the deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities shall be
measured at the applicable tax rates in the period in which the related assets are recovered or the related
liabilities are recovered in accordance with the tax laws.

On the balance sheet date, the book value of deferred income tax assets is reviewed. and the book value of
deferred income tax assets is written down if it is likely that sufficient taxable income will not be available to
offset the benefits of deferred income tax assets in the future. When it is possible to obtain sufficient taxable
income, the amount written down shall be reversed.

Income tax expenses
Income tax expenses include current income tax and deferred income tax.

In addition to recognizing that the current income tax and deferred income tax related to other transactions
and matters directly included in shareholder’s rights and interests shall be recognized in other comprehensive
income or shareholder’s rights and interests, and the book value of adjusted goodwill from deferred income
tax resulting from the merger of enterprises, the other current income tax and deferred income tax expenses
or gains shall be recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

Offset of Income Tax

When the company has legal rights to settle on a net basis, and intends to settle on a net basis or acquire
assets and pay off liabilities at the same time, the company’s current income tax assets and current income
tax liabilities shall be presented on a net basis after the offset.

When it has the legal right to settle current income tax assets and current income tax liabilities on a net
basis, and deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are related to the income tax levied
by the same tax administration department on the same tax payer or to different tax payers, but in the
future, during each important period of deferred income tax assets and liabilities being reversed, the taxpayer
involved intends to settle the current income tax assets and liabilities on a net basis, or acquire assets and
pay off liabilities simultaneously, the deferred the income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities of the
Company shall be presented on a net basis after offset.

20. Changes in significant accounting policies and estimates

(1

)

Changes of accounting policies
There is no changes of accounting policies for the current year.
Changes of significant accounting estimates

There is no significant accounting estimates this year.

V. Taxation

VL.
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The company mainly taxes and tax rates

Tax Specific tax rate
Taxable income is calculated as output tax at the rate of
Value-added tax (VAT) 6%, and VAT is calculated as the difference after deducting
the input tax allowed to be deducted in the current period.
City construction tax According to the actual payment of turnover tax 7%
Surcharge for education According to the actual payment of turnover tax 3%
Local education surcharge According to the actual payment of turnover tax 2%
Enterprise Income Tax According to 25% of taxable income
Individual income tax Excess progressivity

Main Notes to the Financial Statements

The following notes (including notes of major items in the company’s financial statements) refer to December 31, 2019
as the beginning of the year, December 31, 2020 as the end of the year, 2020 in the current period and 2019 in the
previous period unless otherwise specified
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Cash and bank

TECH MAHINDRA (BEIJING) IT SERVICES LIMITED

Item Closing balance | Beginning balance
Cash in hand

Cash in bank 9,863,982.33 4,131,250.62
Other currency funds

Total 9,863,982.33 4,131,250.62

Accounts receivable

Item

Closing balance

Beginning balance

Note receivable

Accounts receivable

1,550,656.89

3,274,342.29

Total

1,550,656.89

3,274,342.29

1. Accounts receivable

2. Classified disclosure of accounts receivable

Category

Closing balance

Book balance

Bad-debt provision

Book value

Amount

Proportion%

Amount

Total
proportion%

Receivables with significant single
amount and provision for bad debts
separately

Receivables with provision for bad
debts according to the combination
of credit risk characteristics

1,550,656.89

100.00

1,550,656.89

Receivables for which single
amount is not important and bad
debt reserves are boldly withdrawn
separately

Total

1,550,656.89

100.00

1,550,656.89

Receivables with significant single
amount and provision for bad debts
separately

Receivables with provision for bad
debts according to the combination
of credit risk characteristics

3,274,342.29

100.00

3,274,342.29

Receivables for which single
amount is not important and bad
debt reserves are boldly withdrawn
separately

Total

3,274,342.29

100.00

3,274,342.29
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In the portfolio, accounts receivable for which bad debt provision is accrued according to aging analysis method.

3.

4,

174

Aging

Closing balance

Accounts receivable

Bad-debt provision

Total proportion %

Within one year

1,550,656.89

1to 2 years

2 to 3 years

More than 3 years

Total

1,550,656.89

Continued:

Beginning balance

Aging Accounts receivable | Bad-debt provision | Total proportion(%)
Within one year 3,274,342.29
1to 2 years
2 to 3 years
More than 3 years
Total 3,274,342.29
Prepayments

(1) Prepayments are presented by age

Aging Closing balance Beginning balance
Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion(%)

Within one year 455,284.74 98.93 12,458.69 100.00

1to 2 years 4,912.46 1.07

2 to 3 years

More than 3 years

Total 460,197.20 100.00 12,458.69 100.00

Other receivables

Item Closing balance Beginning balance
Other receivables 481,201.74 521,979.64
Interest receivable
Dividend receivable
Total 481,201.74 521,979.64

(1) Classification by nature of funds

Nature of payment Closing balance Beginning balance

Office rental deposit 479,701.74 520,479.64
Petty cash 1,500.00 1,500.00
Sub Total 481,201.74 521,979.64
Less: impairment

Total 481,201.74 521,979.64




Other current assets
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Item Closing balance Beginning balance
Input tax to be deducted 9,892.70 8,747.76
Total 9,892.70 8,747.76

Fixed assets

ltem Closing balance Beginning balance
Fixed assets 613,512.39 1,230,124.21
Liquidation of fixed assets
Total 613,512.39 1,230,124.21
(1)Fixed assets
(2)Status of fixed assets
Item Beginning book Increase this year Decrease this Closing book
balance year balance
I.  Total Original Price 1,737,466.22 1,737,466.22
Electronic equipment 1737466.22 1,737,466.22
Il. Total Accumulated
Depreciation 507,342.01 616,611.82 1,123,953.83
Electronic equipment 507342.01 616,611.82 1,123,953.83
lll. Total Amount of
Impairment Reserve
Electronic equipment
IV. Total book value 1,230,124.21 613,512.39
Electronic equipment 1,230,124.21 613,512.39
Long-term prepaid expenses
I Beginning Increase in Amortlzat!on Other reduced Closing
tem - amount in
balance current period . amounts balance
current period
Renovation costs 2,942,463.33 | 14,311.93 1,458,351.39 1,498,423.87
Total 2,942,463.33 | 14,311.93 1,458,351.39 1,498,423.87
Short-term loans
Items Closing balance Beginning balance
Company loan 3,250,000.00
In total 3,250,000.00

Trade payables
(1) Salary payable to employees listed

Items Closing balance Beginning balance
86,697.82

86,697.82

Consultation fee
Total
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10. Advance
Item Closing balance Beginning balance
Advance Service fee 1,609,491.09
Total 1,609,491.09
11. Employee benefits payable
Item Opening Amount Amount paid | Ending balance
balance | withdrawn this this year
year
I~ Wages, bonuses, allowances and 6,481,414.59 |  6,449,263.38 32,151.21
subsidies
Il.  Employee benefits 2,632,223.26 2,632,223.26
I.  Redundancy compensation 724,275.20 724,275.20
Total 9,837,913.05 9,805,761.84 32,151.21
12. Taxes payable
Item Closing balance Beginning balance
Value-added tax 49,980.55 139,402.20
Personal income tax 48,990.84 60,427.38
Enterprise Income Tax 148,882.15 115,308.92
City construction tax 3,200.84 9,434.14
Surcharge for education 1,371.79 4,043.20
Local education surcharge 914.53 2,695.47
Total 253,340.70 331,311.31
13. Other payables
Item Closing balance Beginning balance
Other payables 1,723,344.89 2,579,626.02
Interest payable
Dividends payable
Total 1,723,344.89 2,579,626.02
(1) Other payables
(2) Other payables by nature
Item Closing balance Beginning balance
Service fee 754,548.82 810,422.31
Advance prepayment from Headquarters 563,860.09 563,860.09
Accrued expense 20,874.09 53,769.62
Rental and service of network equipment 165,061.89 764,474.00
Decoration quality deposit 219,000.00 219,000.00
Interest on loan 168,100.00
Total 1,723,344.89 2,579,626.02
14. Paid-in capital
Beginning . Increase Decrease in .
Item balance in currgnt current period Closing balance
period
Tech Mahindra Limited 3,441,546.02 | 2,133,120.00 5,574,666.02
Total 3,441,546.02 | 2,133,120.00 5,574,666.02
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15. Capital premium

Beginnin Increase Decrease in
Item g 9 in current . Closing balance

balance . current period

period
Capital (equity) premium 12,639.68 12,639.68
Total 12,639.68 12,639.68
16. Retained earnings

ltem Current amount Amount of previous
period
Undistributed profit at the end of last year before adjustment 2,506,243.51 125,612.78

Adjust the total undistributed profit at the beginning of the period (
increase +, decrease - )

Adjusted undistributed profits at the beginning of the period 2,506,243.51 125,612.78

Plus: net profit attributable to shareholders of the parent company

in the current period 2,679,292.20 2,380,630.73

Minus: Withdraw statutory surplus reserve

Unallocated profit at the end of the period 5,185,535.71 2,506,243.51
17. Operating income and operating costs

ltem Current amount Amount of previous period

Income Cost Income Cost
Principal business 22,361,639.09 21,959,631.84
Total 22,361,639.09 21,959,631.84

18. Other income

Amount of previous

Item Current amount period
Input tax plus deduction 34,497.74 23,147.56
Service fees paid for withholding IT 8,072.21 5,834.21
Total 42,569.95 28,981.77

19. Non-operating expense

Amount of previous

Item Current amount period
Compensation, liquidated damages, late fees 218.56
Uncollectible other accounts receivable 40,777.90

Total 40,777.90 218.56

20. Income tax

Item Current amount Amount of previous

period
Current income tax 242,827.59 119,578.83
Total 242,827.59 119,578.83,

VIl. Contingent Events
Without the contingent event this year.
VIIl. Events after the balance sheet date

Without the need for disclosure of events after the balance sheet date this year.
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IX. Other significant events declaration
This financial statement has already been approved by Board of Director of the company.
X. The approval of financial statement

This financial statement has already been approved by Board of Director of the company.
TECH MAHINDRA (BEIJING) IT SERVICES LIMITED

Legal Representative: Mr. Jagdish Mitra
Person in charge of accounting: Mr.Harshad Deshpande
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Foreign rights and interests of foreign-invested enterprises confirmation form audit report
Tech Mahindra (Beijing) IT Services Limited:

We have audited the accompanying Tech Mahindra (Beijing) IT Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as the Company)
foreign shareholding rights and interests of foreign-invested enterprises confirmation form for 2020. In accordance with the
relevant provisions of the foreign exchange management, true and complete preparation of foreign-invested enterprises in
foreign interests confirmation form is the responsibility of the Company’s management. While our responsibility is to perform
the audit work on the basis of the foreign shareholding interests of foreign-invested enterprises confirmation form and reach
a conclusion on whether the form in all material respects, abides the relevant requirements of the national foreign exchange
management. We are not providing assurance to the compliance on the Company’s foreign exchange balance to relevant
rules of the country.

We perform the audit work in accordance with the “foreign-invested enterprises by the Chinese Institute of CPAs guidance”
which developed by the Chinese Institute of CPAs. In the audit process, we ask to check the records and documents,
recalculations and other procedures as we considered necessary. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for the audit conclusions.

We believe that the foreign interests confirmation table of the foreign-invested enterprises in all material respects comply
with the requirements of the national foreign exchange management.

This report is intended for your confirmation form submitted to the foreign shareholding interests of foreign-invested
enterprises to the national foreign exchange management departments and may not be used for any other purpose.

Beijing Zhong Sheng Jia Hua Certified Public Name of CPA:
Accountants Co.,Ltd

Beijing China Name of CPA:
April 9, 2021
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Foreign Rights and Interests of Foreign-invested Enterprises Confirmation Form

Prepared by: TECH MAHINDRA (BEIJING) IT SERVICES LIMITED

Fill time: April 9, 2021

Organization Code:91110105666903783P

Unit: RMB Yuan

capital items)

Indicators Beginning Ending
1. The actual investment of the foreign investor 3,441,546.02 5,574,666.02
Of which: foreign real to the registered capital 3,441,546.02 5,574,666.02
2. Amount of reserve and retained earnings of foreign enjoyed 2,518,883.19 5,198,175.39
2.1 Capital reserve 12,639.68 12,639.68
2.2 Surplus reserve
2.3 Undistributed profit 2,506,243.51 5,185,535.71
3. Foreign dividend that allocated but not yet exported outside
4. Foreign currency account balances (Including regular items and 1214 1,958,065.85

Note:

1. This year has been to export the amount of foreign profits is: 0.00Yuan.

U.S. dollars, year-end balance is $ 0.00.

2. The external guarantees new adding amount is 0.00 U.S.dollars this year, reducing amount of the guarantee is 0.00

Person in charge of the unit :
Person in charge of accounting department :

Lister:
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TECH MAHINDRA BAHRAIN LTD. W.L.L

Directors
Mr. Hrishikesh Pandit
Mrs. Dhanashree Bhat

Registered Office

Flat 1126, Building 722
Road 1708, Block 317
Diplomatic Area, Manama
Kingdom of Bahrain

Bankers
Ahli United Bank B.S.C.
HSBC Middle East Limited

Auditors
KPMG Fakhro, Bahrain
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the year ended 31 March 2021

In accordance with the Commercial Companies Law, we have the pleasure in presenting the financial statements of Tech
Mahindra -Bahrain- LTD W.L.L (“the Company”) for the year ended 31 March 2021 as set out on pages 185 to 197.

Financial highlights 2021 2020

BHD BHD
Revenue 136,108 149,905
Gross profit 45,403 26,867
Total comprehensive income 8,558 9,409
Total equity 398,123 389,565

Representations and audit

The Company’s activities for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been conducted in accordance with the Commercial
Companies Law and other relevant statutes of the Kingdom of Bahrain.

There have been no events subsequent to 31 March 2021, which would materially modify the financial statements presented
on pages 185 to 197.

The Company has maintained proper, complete accounting records and these, together with all other information and
explanations, have been made freely available to the auditors KPMG Fakhro, who have expressed their willingness to
continue in office for the audit of the year ending 31 March 2022.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Hrishikesh Pandit
Director

Date: June 16, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDER

Tech Mahindra -Bahrain- LTD W.L.L
Kingdom of Bahrain

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Tech Mahindra -Bahrain- LTD W.L.L (the “Company”) which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at 31 March 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code),
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Kingdom of Bahrain,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information

The board of directors is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date of this auditors’
report is the Director’s report set out on page 182.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
obtained prior to the date of this auditors’ report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the board of directors for the financial statements

The board of directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
IFRS, and for such internal control as the board of directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the board of directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the board of directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the board of directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on other regulatory requirements

As required by the Commercial Companies Law, we report that:

the Company has maintained proper accounting records and the financial statements are in agreement therewith;
the financial information contained in the director’s report is consistent with the financial statements.

we are not aware of any violations during the year of the Commercial Companies Law or the terms of the Company’s
article of association that would have had a material adverse effect on the business of the Company or on its financial
position; and

satisfactory explanations and information have been provided to us by management in response to all our requests.

KPMG Fakhro
Partner registration number 137

Date: June 16, 2021
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TECH MAHINDRA BAHRAIN LTD. W.L.L
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2021

Bahraini dinars

Notes 2021 2020
ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 4 193,162 22,785
Cash and bank balances 6 396,985 397,060
Total assets 590,147 419,845
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 7 50,000 50,000
Statutory reserve 8 25,000 25,000
Retained earnings 323,123 314,565
Total equity (page 187) 398,123 389,565
Liabilities
Provision for employees’ benefits 9 12,072 10,733
Total non-current liabilities 12,072 10,733
Trade payables and other liabilities 10 7,027 12,770
Due to the Parent Company 5 172,925 6,777
Total current liabilities 179,952 19,547
Total equity and liabilities 590,147 419,845

The financial statements were approved by the Directors on June 16, 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Mrs. Dhanashree Ajit Bhat
Director

Mr. Hrishikesh Pandit
Director

The accompanying notes 1 to 15 are an integral part of these financial statements
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Revenue from services (net)

Cost of revenue

Gross profit

General and administrative expenses
Impairment allowance on trade receivables
Profit from operations

Other Income

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

The financial statements were approved by the Directors on 16th June 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Mrs. Dhanashree Ajit Bhat
Director

Mr. Hrishikesh Pandit
Director

The accompanying notes 1 to 15 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Bahraini dinars

2021 2020
136,108 149,905
90,705 123,038
45,403 26,867
26,144 18,391
12,211 -
7,049 8,478
1,509 931
8,558 9,409
8,558 9,409




TECH MAHINDRA BAHRAIN LTD. W.L.L
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Bahraini dinars

2021 Share Statutory Retained Total

capital reserve earnings equity
At 1 April 2020 50,000 25,000 314,565 389,565
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 8,558 8,558
At 31 March 2021 50,000 25,000 323,123 398,123
2020 Share Statutory Retained Total

capital reserve earnings equity
At 1 April 2019 50,000 25,000 305,156 380,156
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 9,409 9,409
At 31 March 2020 50,000 25,000 314,565 389,565

The accompanying notes 1 to 15 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit for the year

Adjustment for:

Sundry balances write back

Interest on fixed deposit

Provision for employees’ benefits

Profit for the year before changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Trade receivables
Trade payables and other liabilities
Due to the Parent company

Payment of employee’s end of service benefits

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from Investing activities

Interest received on fixed deposits

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The accompanying notes 1 to 15 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Bahraini dinars

2021 2020
8,558 9,409
(1,061) (220)
(1,136) (710)
1,339 5,279
7,700 13,758
(170,377) 5,706
(4,682) 2,135
166,148 (39,219)
(1,211) (17,620)

- (1,987)

(1,211) (19,607)
1,136 710
1,136 710
(75) (18,897)
397,060 415,957
396,985 397,060




TECH MAHINDRA BAHRAIN LTD. W.L.L

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2021

REPORTING ENTITY

1

Tech Mahindra-Bahrain- LTD W.L.L (the “Company”) was incorporated on November 3, 2009 as a Single Person
Company in the Kingdom of Bahrain and registered with the Ministry of Industry, Commerce and Tourism under
Commercial Registration number 73221-1. During the year, the legal status of the Company changed from a Single
Person Company (SPC) to a With Limited Liability (W.L.L) entity subsequent to the issuance of Degree Law 20 of 2020
which acted to cover all SPC entities to WLL status automatically.

The Company is engaged in providing information technology services and telecommunication solutions.

The Company’s registered office is in Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain. The Company is owned by Tech Mahindra Limited,
India (the “Parent Company”).

The Company’s issued share capital consists of 500 ordinary shares at BD 100 each, issued and fully paid.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) and in conformity with the requirements of the Commercial Companies Law.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Bahraini Dinars (“BD”) being the functional currency of the Company.

New standards, amendments and interpretations effective from 1 January 2020

The following standards, amendments and interpretations, which became effective as of 1 January 2020, are
relevant to the Company:

(i)

(i)

Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

The IASB has issued a revised Conceptual Framework which will be used in standard-setting decisions with
immediate effect. No changes will be made to any of the current accounting standards. However, entities that
rely on the Framework in determining their accounting policies for transactions, events or conditions that are
not otherwise dealt with under the accounting standards will need to apply the revised Framework from 1
January 2020.

The adoption of this amendment had no significant impact on the financial statements.
Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8)

The IASB has made amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors which use a consistent definition of materiality throughout
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting, clarify
when information is material and incorporate some of the guidance in IAS 1 about immaterial information. In
particular, the amendments clarify:

+ that the reference to obscuring information addresses situations in which the effect is similar to omitting
or misstating that information, and that an entity assesses materiality in the context of the financial
statements as a whole, and

+ the meaning of ‘primary users of general- purpose financial statements’ to whom those financial
statements are directed, by defining them as ‘existing and potential investors, lenders and other creditors’
that must rely on general purpose financial statements for much of the financial information they need.

The adoption of this amendment had no significant impact on the financial statements.

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020 and earlier application is permitted; however; the Company has not early applied the following new
or amended standards in preparing these financial statements.
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(i) Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37)

The amendments specify which costs an entity includes in determining the cost of fulfilling a contract for the
purpose of assessing whether the contract is onerous. The amendments apply for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 to contracts existing at the date when the amendments are first applied.
At the date of initial application, the cumulative effect of applying the amendments is recognized as an opening
balance adjustment to retained earnings or other components of equity, as appropriate. The comparatives are
not restated.

The Company does not expect to have a significant impact on its financial statements.
(ii) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE): Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16)

In the process of making an item of PPE available for its intended use, a company may produce and sell
items before starting production. Under the amendments, proceeds from selling items before the related item
of PPE is available for use should be recognized in profit or loss, together with the costs of producing those
items. IAS 2 Inventories should be applied in identifying and measuring these production costs.

Companies will therefore need to distinguish between:
»  costs associated with producing and selling items before the item of PPE is available for use; and
»  costs associated with making the item of PPE available for its intended use.

The amendments clarify that testing whether an item of PPE is functioning properly means assessing its
technical and physical performance rather than assessing its financial performance — e.g. assessing whether
the PPE has achieved a certain level of operating margin.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with earlier
application permitted. The amendments apply retrospectively, but only to items of PPE made available for use
on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the company first
applies the amendments.

The Company does not expect to have a significant impact on its financial statements.
(iii) Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1)

Under existing IAS 1 requirements, companies classify a liability as current when they do not have an
unconditional ‘right to defer’ settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the reporting
period. As part of its amendments, the requirement for a right to be unconditional has been removed and
instead, now requires that a right to defer settlement must have substance and exist at the end of the reporting
period. This assessment may require management to exercise interpretive judgement.

The Company does not expect to have a significant impact on its financial statements.
COVID-19 impact

On 11 March 2020, the coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health
Organization (WHO) and has rapidly evolved globally. This has resulted in a global economic slowdown with
uncertainties in the economic environment. Global equity and commodity markets have also experienced great
volatility and a significant drop in prices. The estimation uncertainty is associated with the extent and duration of
the expected economic downturn and forecasts for key economic factors including GDP, employment, oil prices
etc. This includes disruption to capital markets, deteriorating credit markets and liquidity concerns.

Authorities have taken various measures to contain the spread including implementation of travel restrictions
and quarantine measures. The Government of Kingdom of Bahrain has announced various economic stimulus
programmes (“Packages”) to support businesses in these challenging times. The Company and its customers are
expected to get some benefits from these Packages that will help them sustain the impact of the crisis.

The pandemic as well as the resulting measures and policies are expected to have direct and/or knock-on impact
on the Company. The management and the board of directors has been closely monitoring the potential impact
of the COVID-19 developments on the Company’s operations and financial position; including possible loss of
revenue, onerous contracts etc. The Company has also put in place contingency measures, which include but are
not limited to enhancing and testing of business continuity plans including its liquidity requirements. Based on their
assessment, the board of directors is of the view that the Company will continue as a going concern entity for the
next 12 months from the date of this financial statements.

In preparing these financial statements, judgements made by management in applying the Company’s accounting
policies and sources of estimation are subject to uncertainty regarding the potential impacts of the current economic
volatility and these are considered to represent management’s best assessment based on available or observable
information.
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Use of estimates and management judgement

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised and in any future periods affected.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Company measures expected credit loss for receivables that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of the receivable. A financial asset is considered ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events, that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting polices applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those used in the previous
period.

a)

b)

c)

Revenue recognition
The Company recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer.

Revenue from contracts priced on a time and material basis is recognised when services are rendered. Revenue
from fixed price contracts is recognised as performance obligation satisfied over a period of time based on the
stage of completion of the contract the stage of completion determined as the proportion of the total time expected
to install that has elapsed at the end of the reporting period is an appropriate measure of progress towards
complete satisfaction of these performance obligations.

The Company has entered into a service agreement with the Parent Company for reimbursement of costs incurred
plus a mark-up (“cost plus method”) which forms part of the revenue.

The Company has pass through billing agreement with Parent Company where the Company bills the third-party
customers on behalf of Parent company and revenue is recognised on net basis.

Contracts assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract
assets are classified as unbilled revenue when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of
time is required, as per contractual terms.

Contract liability (“Unearned revenue”) arises when there are billing in excess of revenue.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances and short-term deposits with original contractual maturity
period of three months or less. These are carried at amortised cost.

Financial instruments
(i) Recognition and initial measurement

The financial instruments of the Company consist primarily of trade and other receivables, balance with a bank,
trade and other payables, due from and to parent company. The Company recognises financial instruments
initially on the trade date, which is the date when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) — debt security; FVOCI — equity security; or FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified
on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model. A financial asset is
measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
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(iif)

(iv)

v)

. it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

» its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. Financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Any gain or loss on de-
recognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

De-recognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in
which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value.

On de-recognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or
loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position,
when and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and intends
either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for
bank balances for which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Measurement of ECLs- Trade receivables

The Company measures expected credit loss for receivables that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the asset. This include receivables that have objective evidence of impairment at the
reporting date. Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

Measurement of ECLs- Cash and bank balances (General approach)

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects
the short maturities of the exposures. The Company considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low
credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets.

d) Trade and other receivables

e)

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,

less provision for impairment.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables expenses are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised

cost.
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Foreign Currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognised in the functional currency at the rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates of
exchange ruling at the reporting dates. All differences are taken to profit or loss.

Employee benefits

Provisions are made for end-of-service benefits to all expatriate employees. The entitlement to these benefits is
based upon the employee’s final salary and length of service. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued
over the period of the employment.

For Bahraini employees, contributions are made to the Social Insurance Organisation based on a percentage of
the employees’ salaries. The Company’s obligations are limited to these contributions, which are expensed when
due.

Provision

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle such
obligation.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with Commercial Companies Law, a minimum of 10% of the net profit is appropriated to a statutory
reserve, until it reaches 50% of the paid-up share capital (excluding share premium). This reserve is not normally
distributable except in certain circumstances.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are
recognized as a deduction from equity.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A contract is or
contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in IFRS 16.

As a Lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone prices. However, for
the leases of property the Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease
and non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset (ROU) and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located. less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date
to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Co by the end of
the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In
that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined
on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
i. fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

ii. lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option. and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate
early.
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The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or
if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right-of-use assets in property, plant and equipment’ and liability related to leases in
Lease liabilities.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

4 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

194

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Gross trade receivables 66,810 15,299
Less: Provision for impairment (i) (15,289) (3,078)
51,521 12,221

Advance to supplier 2,068 -
Unbilled revenue 137,087 8,169
Prepaid expenses - 1,449
VAT receivable 1,642 -
Other receivables 844 946
193,162 22,785

(i) The movements of the provision for impairment of trade receivables were as follows:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

At 1 April 3,078 3,078
Charge for the year 12,211 -
At 31 March 15,289 3,078

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A significant portion of the Company’s transactions in the normal course of business are with the Parent Company.
All transactions are subject to controls embedded in respective processes in line with the Parent Company policies
and procedures. These financial statements may not necessarily be indicative of the financial position that would have
existed or of the Company’s results of operations, if the Company had been operated as an unaffiliated Company.

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Due to Parent Company

Tech Mahindra Limited, India 172,925 6,777
172,925 6,777
The transactions with Parent Company is as follow:
Revenue from services — billed (note 11) (i) 136,108 149,905
Payable for pass through billings (ii) (177,985) (69,616)
Payment made for pass through billings 177,985 -
Liability recognised during the year (180,564) -
Payments received — net (121,692) (41,070)

(i)

The Company bills its revenue to its Parent company on the basis of its operating costs with a mark-up of 6%.



10

11

12

TECH MAHINDRA BAHRAIN LTD. W.L.L

(i) The Company bills third party customers on behalf of its Parent Company. The credit risk pertaining to these

counterparts’ rests with the Parent Company.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash at bank (i)
Short term deposits with bank (i)

(i) Company earns no interest on cash at bank balance in current account.

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

73,092 99,776
323,893 297,284
396,985 397,060

(ii) Short term deposits with bank outstanding at year end, earns interest at a rate of 0.01% to 0.3% (2020: 0.05% to

2.5%) per annum with original maturity of less than 3 months.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company’s issued share capital consists of 500 ordinary shares at BD 100 each, issued and fully paid.

STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with the Commercial Companies Law and the Company’s Articles of Association 10% of the profit has
been transferred to a statutory reserve. The Company resolved to discontinue such annual transfer when the reserve
reached 50% of the issued share capital. The reserve is not available for distribution, except in the circumstances

stipulated in the Commercial Companies Law.

PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS

At 1 April

Charge for the year
Paid during the year
At 31 March

TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Trade payables
Accrued expenses
Accrued employees’ benefits

REVENUE FROM SERVICES (NET)

Pass through billings to customers (note 5)
Less: Payable to Parent company on pass through billings (note 5)
Service revenue to Parent Company (note 5)

COST OF REVENUE

Staff costs
Travel expenses

31 March 2021
10,733
1,339

12,072

31 March 2021

31 March 2020
7,441

5,279

(1,987)

10,733

31 March 2020

373 -
5,709 8,182
945 4,588
7,027 12,770
2021 2020
177,985 69,616
(177,985) (69,616)
136,108 149,905
136,108 149,905
2021 2020
74,938 84,746
15,767 38,292
90,705 123,038
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GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2021 2020

Professional fees 15,006 7,747
Rent expenses relating to short-term leases 4,180 4,560
Telephone and mobile charges 3,042 1,173
Foreign exchange gain 794 1,608
Miscellaneous expenses 3,122 3,303
26,144 18,391

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial instruments include financial assets and financial liabilities. Financial assets of the Company include trade
and other receivables and cash and bank balances.

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
»  credit risk

* liquidity risk

*  market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the

Company’s management of capital. The note also presents certain quantitative disclosures in addition to the disclosures
throughout the financial statements.

The Board of Directors of the Parent have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s
risk management framework.

The Parent’s risk management framework ensures the Company’s risk management. The Board of the Parent, which
includes the Parent and its subsidiaries, oversees how the management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
management framework and reviews its adequacy in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

a) Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligation. The Company is principally exposed to credit risk on trade and other receivables
and bank balances. The maximum credit risk is the carrying value of the assets.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date was:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Trade and other receivables (i) 189,452 21,336
Bank balances (ii) 396,985 397,060
586,437 418,396

(i) The Company gives a credit period of 30 days to its customers after which the receivables are classified as
past due. Credit risk for trade receivables outstanding pertaining passthrough billing and credit risk rests with
the Parent Company. The Company does not hold any collateral against the above receivables.

(i) The Company limits its exposure to credit risk on bank balances by maintaining balances with banks having
high credit ratings. Given these high credit ratings, the company does not expect any bank to fail to meet its
obligations. Accordingly, there is no significant expected credit loss on bank and deposit balances as on 31
March 2020 (2019: Nil).
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The ageing of the trade receivables at the reporting date was:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Gross Loss rate Impairment Gross Loss rate Impairment
receivables receivables

Past due:
91-180 days 51,521 - - - - -
181-365 days - - - 12,221 - -
More than 1 year 15,289 100% 15,289 3,078 100% 3,078

66,810 22.88% 15,289 15,299 20.12% 3,078

The Company has specifically assessed the exposure of trade receivables and does not expect the customer
to fail to meet its obligations. Accordingly, there is no expected credit loss on trade receivables as on 31 March
2021 (2020: Nil) on past due less than 1 year.

The Company has policy to make full provision on past due more than 1 year and accordingly all past due
more than one has been fully provided as on 31 March 2021.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its /liabilities when
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
company’s reputation. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair
value. All financial liabilities are payable within 6 months.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices
will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the
return on risk. The Company is not exposed to any significant market risk on its financial instruments. Company’s
transactions primary denominated in Bahrain Dinar and the Company does not hold significant interest bearing
financial assets or liabilities.

Capital Management

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base to sustain the future development of the business. The
Company is not exposed to externally imposed capital requirements. There were no significant changes in the
Company'’s approach to capital management during the year.

Fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in its absence, the most advantageous
market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

Underlying the definition of fair value is a presumption that an enterprise is a going concern without any intention
or need to liquidate, curtail materially the scale of its operations or undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

As on the reporting date, the fair value of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying
values.

Categorisation of financial instruments

All financial assets and liabilities are classified “at amortised cost” as on 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

COMPARATIVES

The corresponding figures have been regrouped where necessary to conform to the current year’s presentation. The
regrouping has not affected previously reported profit for the year or equity.
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DIRECTORS ' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Your directors present their report together with the audited accounts of your company for the year ended December 31,
2020.

Financial Results(Local Currency RMB)

For the years ended December 31 2020 2019
RMB RMB
Income 166,520,371.42 172,875,217
Profit/(Loss) before tax -10,493,245.34 (13,379,263)
Profit/(Loss) after tax -10,493,245.34 (13,379,263)

Review of Operations:

During the year under review, your company recorded an income of RMB 166,520,371.42, a decrease of 3.68% over
the previous year. Profit after tax was RMB -10,493,245.34 an increase of 21.57%over the previous year. The Company
continues to invest in strengthening its marketing infrastructure in China

Outlook for the Current Year:
Business has been encouraging in China and the Company is optimistic of the future.
Acknowledgments:

Your Directors gratefully acknowledge the contributions made by the employees towards the success of the Company. Your
Directors also thank the customers, suppliers, bankers, State and Federal Government Authorities and the shareholder/s
for the co-operation and assistance received from them.

For Tech Mahindra (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Amitava Ghosh Mukesh Sharma
Director Director

Place: Shanghai, China
Date : April 26, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TECH MAHINDRA (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.

1.
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Tech Mahindra (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (the Company), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Company as at December 31, 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and the China “Accounting System for Business
Enterprises”.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and the China “Accounting System for Business Enterprises”,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
China Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

During the process of our audit in accordance with China Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism. We also:

(1) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control, the risk of not finding a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error.

(2) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control.

(3) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

(4) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, we shall not express unqualified opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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(5) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the those Charged with Governance about planned scope and timing of the audit, as well as
significant findings from the audit, including notable internal control weaknesses identified from the audit..

Chen Jie, China Certified Public Accountant

Su Yalan, China Certified Public Accountant

Shanghai Linfang Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd.
15F, Hechuang Building,

No. 450 Caoyang Road,

Shanghai China

April 26, 2021
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TECH MAHINDRA (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
BALANCE SHEET DECEMBER 31 2020

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Advance to suppliers

Other receivables

Inventories

Other current assets

Total current assets
Non-current assets:

Fixed assets

Long-term deferred expenses

Total non-current assets
Total assets
Liabilities and owner's equity (or shareholder's equity)
Current liabilities:

Short-term loans

Accounts payable

Advances from customers

Employee benefits payable

Taxes and dues payable

Other payables

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities:

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities
Owner's equity (or shareholder's equity):

Paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Total owner's equity contributable to parent company
Total liabilities and owner's equity (or shareholder's equity)
The Notes are the following parts of the statements.

Legal Representative:
XIA MEI
XIA MEI

Person in charge of accounting function:
Person in charge of accounting department:
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11
12
13
14
15
16

17
18

Ending balance

5,057,840.59
87,560,435.79
1,539,656.26
1,955,608.55
333,428.12
70,930.49

Beginning
balance

7,374,318.38
103,239,009.72
1,075,683.73
2,781,734.72

96,517,899.80

114,470,746.55

1,596,378.73 2,199,199.09
5,578,612.03 9,169,215.95
7,174,990.76  11,368,415.04

103,692,890.56

125,839,161.59

4,500,000.00  41,600,000.00
22,320,451.83  25,346,725.93
6,582,371.18 1,463,079.71
1,649,108.45 1,736,383.62
692,414.86 1,801,154.26
9,471,557.31 6,066,485.80
45,215,903.63  78,013,829.32

45,215,903.63

78,013,829.32

123,963,336.17
(65,486,349.24)

102,818,436.17
(54,993,103.90)

58,476,986.93

47,825,332.27

103,692,890.56

125,839,161.59




(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

. Total operating income
Less: Operating cost
Taxes and its additions
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Financial expenses
Il. Operating profit
add: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses
lll. Total profit
Less: income tax expenses
IV. Net profit
Incl.: Net profit from on-going operations
Net profit from discontinued operations
V. Other net comprehensive income after tax
VI. Total comprehensive income

The Notes are the following parts of the statements.

AMITAVA GHOSH
XIA MEI
XIA MEI

Legal Representative:
Person in charge of accounting function:
Person in charge of accounting department:

TECH MAHINDRA (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2020

Notes
19
19
20

21

22
23

Current period Prior period
166,520,371.42 172,875,217.21
155,629,156.68 156,447,008.75
785,426.32 549,342.67
5,652,539.34 9,295,472.50
13,101,106.93 20,912,027.00
1,740,442.20 795,778.51
(10,388,300.05) (15,124,412.22)
1,410,719.10 1,765,229.51
1,515,664.39 20,080.02
(10,493,245.34) (13,379,262.73)
(10,493,245.34) (13,379,262.73)
(10,493,245.34) (13,379,262.73)

(10,493,245.34)

(13,379,262.73)
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TECH MAHINDRA (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2020

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

Item
|

v
\

Add:
Vi

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from sale of goods and rendering of services
Tax refund

Other cash received relating to operating activities
Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities
Cash paid for goods and services

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees

Payments of taxes and levies

Cash paid relating to other operating activities
Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities
Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets, and other
long-term assets

Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities

Cash paid to acquire fixed assets, intangible assets, and other long-term
assets

Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities
Net cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Cash received from capital contribution

Cash received from borrowings

Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities
Cash repayments of borrowings

Cash payments for dividends, profits, or interest expenses
Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities
Net cash flows from financing activities

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Beginning balance of cash and cash equivalents
Ending balance of cash and cash equivalents

The Notes are the following parts of the statements.

Legal Representative:
Person in charge of accounting function:
Person in charge of accounting department:
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XIA MEI
XIA MEI

Current period

207,502,718.43

680,896.97

Prior period

147,683,801.93
1,167,273.66
1,875,938.97

208,183,615.40

150,727,014.56

32,560,446.78
143,333,810.23
8,101,979.93
7,279,326.56

20,435,442.64
158,562,658.33
7,542,068.26
10,224,429.52

191,275,563.50

196,764,598.75

16,908,051.90

(46,037,584.19)

12,790.00 -
12,790.00 -
1,684,631.84 10,271,063.05
1,684,631.84 10,271,063.05

(1,671,841.84)

(10,271,063.05)

21,144,829.52
17,500,000.00
38,644,829.52
54,600,000.00
1,555,311.07
56,155,311.07
(17,510,481.55)

(42,206.30)

41,600,000.00
41,600,000.00
430,623.41
430,623.41
41,169,376.59

(206,600.90)

(2,316,477.79)

(15,345,871.55)

7,374,318.38

22,720,189.93

5,057,840.59

7,374,318.38




STATEMENT OF CHANGES

DECEMBER 31 2020

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

Closing Balance at 31
December 2018

Beginning Balance at 1
January 2019

Net profit

Other comprehensive
income

Capital contributions or
decreases by owners

Profit appropriation

Transfer between equity
components

Movements in 2019

Closing Balance at 31
December 2019

Closing Balance at 31
December 2019

Beginning Balance at 1
January 2020

Net profit

Other comprehensive
income

Capital contributions or
decreases by owners

Capital contributions by
owners

Profit appropriation

Transfer between equity
components

Movements in 2020

Closing Balance at 31
December 2019

The Notes are the following parts of the statements.

Legal Representative:

Paid-in capital

102,818,436.17

102,818,436.17

Capital
reserve

TECH MAHINDRA (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED

Surplus
reserve

Undistributed
profit

(41,613,841.17)

(41,613,841.17)

Total owner's
equity

61,204,595.00

61,204,595.00

(13,379,262.73)

(13,379,262.73)

(13,379,262.73)

(13,379,262.73)

102,818,436.17

(54,993,103.90)

47,825,332.27

Paid-in capital

102,818,436.17

102,818,436.17

Capital
reserve

Surplus
reserve

Undistributed
profit

(54,993,103.90)

(54,993,103.90)

Total owner's
equity

47,825,332.27

47,825,332.27

21,144,900.00

21,144,900.00

21,144,900.00

(10,493,245.34)

(10,493,245.34)

(10,493,245.34)

21,144,900.00

21,144,900.00

10,651,654.66

123,963,336.17

(65,486,349.24)

58,476,986.93

Person in charge of accounting function:

Person in charge of accounting department:

AMITAVA GHOSH
XIA MEI
XIA MEI
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TECH MAHINDRA (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 2020

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

1

206

GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY.

Tech Mahindra (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (“the Company”) is a limited liability company (wholly-owned foreign corporation)
invested by Tech Mahindra Limited. Registered at China (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone Market Supervision
Administration, the Company was established on December 23, 2002 and obtained the business license with Uniform
Social Credit Code No. 91310115744229270H. Residential address of the Company is Room 23102, 23104, 23202,
23204, Pudong Software Park, No.498 Guoshoujing Road, China (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone and the registered
capital is USD 16,900,000. The Company has an approved operating period of 20 years.

The approved business scope is: software designing, developing, production, testing and maintenance (including
embedded system software, computer aid design, manufactory and engineering service softwares, enterprise resource
solution softwares, enterprise integrating softwares, custom relationship management softwares etc.); sales of the self-
produced products and related technical consulting services; providing outsourcing design, research and development
services in the fields of machinery and electronics; providing comprehensive logistics solution design; wholesale,
import & export and agency business(except auction) of electronic equipment, machinery and parts, steel products,
computer hardwares and softwares, and providing related technical and auxiliary services. [1Goods under state trade
control are not included, and activities related to administrative permission should be operated with approvall(]

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
and “Accounting System for Business enterprises” as promulgated by the State of the People’s Republic of China.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Accounting period
The Company’s accounting year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.
(b) Recording currency
The recording currency of the Company is the Renminbi (RMB).
(c) Basis of accounting and measurement bases

The Company follows the accrual basis of accounting. Assets are initially recorded at actual costs on acquisition
and subsequently adjusted for impairment, if any.

(d) Foreign currency translation

Except for the accounting treatment of paid-in capital, foreign currency transactions are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates stipulated by the People’s Bank of China (“the stipulated exchange rates”) on the transaction
date of the month in which the transactions took place. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are translated into RMB at the stipulated exchange rates at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising from these translations are expensed, except for those attributable to foreign
currency borrowings that have been made specifically for the construction of fixed assets, which are capitalized
as part of the fixed asset costs and those arising in the pre-operating period, which are recorded as long-term
deferred expenses.

Contributions to paid-in capital made in foreign currencies are translated into the RMB denominated paid-in capital
account at the stipulated exchange rates at the contribution dates. Exchange differences arising from foreign
currency capital contribution should be recognized as capital surplus.

(e) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash refers to all cash in hand and all deposits. Cash equivalents
refer to short-term and highly-liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(f) Receivables and provision for bad debts

Receivables comprise accounts receivable and other receivables. The provision method is used to account for
potential bad debts identified by management. Receivables are presented at actual amounts net of provision for
bad debts.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable comprises related party receivables and receivables from non-related parties.
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(h)
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The Company makes specific bad debts provision on an individual basis for accounts receivable that are
distinctively different from any other receivable in recoverability. If there are indications that the balances cannot
be recovered, the specific provision will be adjusted accordingly.

Other receivables
Specific provisions are made for other receivables on an individual basis.
Recognition criteria of bad debts loss

Where evidence exists that balances cannot be recovered due to the debtor’s de-registration, bankruptcy,
insolvent and death, etc., bad debts are recognized and corresponding provision for bad debts is written off after
the approval of the Company’s general manager or the board pursuant to the authorization policies established in
the Company.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are used in production, including sales of goods, rendering of services and
leases, or held for management purposes, which have useful lives of more than one year and have relatively high
unit price.

Fixed assets purchased or constructed by the Company are recorded at cost.

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the assets to their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives. For the fixed assets being provided for impairment loss, the
related depreciation charge is prospectively determined based upon the adjusted carrying amounts over their
remaining useful lives.

The estimated useful lives, estimated residual values expressed as a percentage of cost and annual depreciation
rates are as follows:

Estimated Estimated Annual Depreciation
Useful Lives Residual Value Rate
Computer 3yrs 0% 33.33%
Network equipment 5yrs 0% 20.00%
Offince equipment 3/5yrs 0% 33.33% /20.00%
Furniture 3yrs 0% 33.33%

When fixed assets are sold, transferred, disposed of or damaged, gains and losses on disposal are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of the assets, adjusted by related taxes and expenses, and are
included in non-operating income or expenses.

The repair and maintenance expenses of fixed assets should be expensed directly for the current period.
Subsequent expenditures for major reconstruction, expansion, improvement and renovation are capitalized when
it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the original assessment of performance will flow to the
Company; the other subsequent expenditures should be recognized as costs or expenses for the current period.
Capitalized expenditures arising from major reconstruction, expansion and improvement are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the remaining useful lives of the fixed assets. The renovation expenses are depreciated
using the straight-line method over the shorter of the interval of renovation and the estimated useful lives.

Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses are expenses paid by an enterprise, for which the amortization period is more
than one year (excluding one year), including land royalty and maintenance, etc. long-term deferred expenses
should be amortized evenly over the respective beneficial periods and presented at an amount net of accumulated
amortization.

Leasehold improvements

Leasehold improvements should be amortized evenly over the shorter of the lease term and the useful lives, and
presented at an amount net of accumulated amortization.

(i) Impairment of assets

In addition to the recognition of provisions for impairment loss on receivables and inventories which have
been described in their respective accounting policies, individual assets for which there are indications that
the carrying values are higher than their recoverable amounts, arising from the occurrence of events or
changes in circumstances, are reviewed for impairment. If the carrying value of such assets is higher than the
recoverable amount, the excess is recognized as an impairment loss.
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The recoverable amount of an individual asset is the higher of its net selling price and its value in use. The
net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable and will parties, after deducting any incremental direct disposal costs. Value in use is the
present value of estimated future cash flows expected being derived from continuing use of the asset and
from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

When there is an indication that the need for an impairment provision recorded in a prior period no longer
exists or has decreased, the provision for impairment loss is reversed. The increased carrying amount of the
assets should not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years.

(j) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs, including interests and ancillary costs, incurred in connection with specific borrowings obtained
for the acquisition or construction of fixed assets are capitalized as costs of the fixed assets when capital
expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred and the activities have commenced to enable the assets to be
ready for their intended use. The capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when the assets are ready for their
intended use. Borrowing costs incurred thereafter are expensed.

(k) Revenue recognition

Revenue from the rendering of services shall be recognized at the time of service provided and consideration
received or receivable.

Interest income should be measured based on the period between the acquisition date and the maturity date and
the applicable interest rate.

Subsidy income shall be recognized at the time of receipt.
() Employee benefits

The full-time employees of the Company are entitled to staff welfare benefits under existing PRC legislation,
including pension benefits, medical care, unemployment insurance, housing fund and other benefits.

The Company is required to accrue for these benefits based on certain percentages of the employees’ salaries,
subject to certain ceilings, in accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, these benefits are levied by the
human resource and social security bodies. The contributions are expensed as incurred.

(m) Accounting for income taxes

The Company accounts for enterprise income taxes using the tax payable method. Under the tax payable method,
tax expense is recognized based on current period taxable income and tax rates.
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4 TAXATION

TECH MAHINDRA (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.

Major applicable taxes and tax rate for the Company:

Tax Tax rate (%) Tax base
General VAT taxpayer 13.6 Taxable sales
Enterprise income taxes 25 Payable turnover tax
City maintenance tax 71 Payable turnover tax
Education surtax 3 Payable turnover tax
Local education surtax Payable turnover tax
5 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Ending Beginning
balance balance
Cash in bank 5,057,840.59 7,374,318.38
Total 5,057,840.59 7,374,318.38
6 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Ending Beginning
balance balance
Accounts receivable 91,852,253.08 113,644,027.28
Provision for Bad debt allowance 4,291,817.29 10,405,017.56
Book balance 87,560,435.79  103,239,009.72
Aging analysis of receivables
Ending balance Beginning balance
Amount Rate% aBllic\’N(a’Elc)::: Amount Rate% aEmv:ﬁi
within 1 year 88,516,776.64 96.37  956,340.85 103,520,484.31 91.09 281,474.59
1-2 years - - 575,721.58 0.51 575,721.58
2-3 years 498,236.18 0.54  498,236.18 931,741.25 0.82 931,741.25
over 3 years 2,837,240.26 3.09 2,837,240.26 8,616,080.14 7.58 8,616,080.14
Total 91,852,253.08 100.00 4,291,817.29 113,644,027.28 100.00 10,405,017.56

Debtors with large amounts:

Name of debtors
Customer A
Customer B

7 ADVANCE TO SUPPLIERS

within 1 year
Total

Debtors with large amounts:
Customer A

Amount

Nature Aging

48,155,494.11 Service fee Within 1 year
8,754,694.88 Service fee Within 1 year

Ending balance

Beginning balance

Amount % Amount %
1,539,656.26 100.00 1,075,683.73 100.00
1,539,656.26 100.00 1,075,683.73 100.00

Amount Nature Aging
600,172.00 Project within 1 year
advance
payment

209



TECH MAHINDRA (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.

8 OTHER RECEIVABLES
Ending Beginning
balance balance
1,955,608.55 2,781,734.72
Ending balance Beginning balance
Amount % Amount %
Within 1 yr 524,500.67 26.82 1,680,602.00 60.42
1-2ys 1,005,210.81 51.40 450,000.00 16.18
2-3ys - - 250,170.00 8.99
Over 3 ys 425,897.07 21.78 400,962.72 14.41
Total 1,955,608.55 100.00 2,781,734.72 100.00
9 FIXED ASSETS
Item Ending Beginning
balance balance
Fixed assets 2,199,199.09 1,089,136.51
Total 2,199,199.09 1,089,136.51
Debtors with large amounts:
Name of debtors Ending Balance Descriptions Aging
Customer A 922,587.00 Deposit 1-2ys
9 FIXED ASSETS
Item Ending Beginning
balance balance
Fixed assets 1,596,378.73 2,199,199.09
Total 1,596,378.73 2,199,199.09
9.1 FIXED ASSETS — COST
Beginning Increase Decrease Ending
balance balance
Network equipment 2,693,723.89 3,922.12 - 2,697,646.01
Computer 4,043,866.22 266,372.00 - 4,310,238.22
Offince equipment 2,343,911.46 149,600.38 34,956.92 2,458,554.92
Furniture 338,141.74 2,920.35 - 341,062.09
Total 9,419,643.31 422,814.85 34,956.92 9,807,501.24
9.2 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Beginning Increase Decrease Ending
balance balance
Network equipment 2,157,502.81 160,672.41 - 2,318,175.22
Computer 2,493,590.29 795,937.40 - 3,289,527.69
Offince equipment 2,234,560.84 66,478.58 34,956.22 2,266,083.20
Furniture 334,790.28 2,546.12 - 337,336.40
Total 7,220,444.22 1,025,634.51 34,956.22 8,211,122.51
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9.3 FIXED ASSETS - NET

10

11

12

13

14

Item

Network equipment
Computer

Offince equipment
Furniture

Total

LONG-TERM DEFERRED EXPENSES

Leasehold improvements
Software and maintenance
Total

SHORT-TERM LOAN

Bank

HSBC
Total

TECH MAHINDRA (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.

Ending Beginning
balance balance

379,470.79 536,221.08
1,020,710.53 1,550,275.93
192,471.72 109,350.62
3,725.69 3,351.46
1,596,378.73 2,199,199.09
Beginning Increase Decrease Ending
balance balance
9,169,214.95 -96,775.03 3,493,828.89 5,578,611.03
1.00 - - 1.00
9,169,215.95 -96,775.03 3,493,828.89 5,578,612.03
Type of loan Interest rate Ending Beginning
balance balance
Credit 4.785% 4,500,000.00 41,600,000.00
4,500,000.00 41,600,000.00

Detailed guarantee information is listed as follows:

The Company signed loan contract with HSBC of maximun credit amount of RMB 80 million, among which maximum
amount of liquidity loan was RMB 60 million. By end of December 31 2020, the Company has issued guarantee of RMB

20.6 million to Huawei Technology Co.,Ltd.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Creditors with large amounts:

Tech Mahindra Limited
Creditors with large amounts:
Name of debtors

Customer A

ADVANCES

Creditors with large amounts:

Name of debtors
Customer A
Customer B
Angola Water

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PAYABLE

Wages payable
Total

Ending
balance

22,320,451.83

Ending Balance

21,588,513.39

Ending
balance

6,582,371.18

Ending Balance

Description

25,346,725.93

Descriptions
Service fee

Beginning
balance

1,463,079.71

Descriptions

2,599,462.00 Service fee
1,791,247.36 Service fee
1,600,837.30 Service fee
Ending Beginning
balance balance
1,649,108.45 1,736,383.62
1,649,108.45 1,736,383.62

211



TECH MAHINDRA (SHANGHAI) CO.,
15 TAXES PAYABLE

Taxes

Value added tax
Individual income tax
Enterprise income tax
Subtotal

Others

Total

16 OTHER PAYABLE

Item

Other payments
Total

16.10THER PAYABLES

Creditor with large amount

Tech Mahindra Limited
17 PAID-IN CAPITAL

Name of Investor

Tech Mahindra Limited
Total

LTD.
Ending Beginning
balance balance
- 854,127.80
617,760.45 842,341.15
-0.07 -0.07
617,760.38 1,696,468.88
74,654.48 104,685.38
692,414.86 1,801,154.26
Ending Beginning
balance balance
9,471,557.31 6,066,485.80
9,471,557.31 6,066,485.80
Ending Description
balance
1,995,035.77 Current account
Ending balance Beginning balance
Registered Registered Registered Registered
Capital (USD) Capital (RMB) Capital (USD) Capital(RMB)
16,900,000.00 123,963,336.17  13,900,000.00 102,818,436.17

16,900,000.00 123,963,336.17

13,900,000.00 102,818,436.17

The paid-in capital has been verified by Shanghai Linfang CPA Co., Ltd with the Capital Verification Report(2011)
No.BY0116.The newly invested capital of this period has not been verified.

18 UNDISTRIBUTED PROFITS

Creditor with large amount

Ending
balance

Undistributed profits at beginning of year

Current year net profit
Distributable profit
Undistributed profits at the end of year

19 REVENUES FROM MAIN OPERATION

Item

Operation income

Incl. Main operation income
Operation cost

Incl. Main operation cost
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(54,993,103.90)
(10,493,245.34)
(65,486,349.24)
(65,486,349.24)

Current period
166,520,371.42
166,520,371.42
155,629,156.68
155,629,156.68

Beginning
balance

(41,613,841.17)
(13,379,262.73)
(54,993,103.90)
(54,993,103.90)

Prior period
172,875,217.21
172,875,217.21
156,447,008.75
156,447,008.75



19.1REVENUES FROM MAIN OPERATION

Item

Software designing, developing and maintenance (Domestic)
Software designing, developing and maintenance (Overseas)

TECH MAHINDRA (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.

Current period
143,071,335.93
20,615,478.94

Prior period
152,238,578.48
19,131,306.81

Sales of goods (Domestic) 2,318,569.59 1,172,147.12
Sales of goods (Overseas) - 29,115.04
Leasing 514,986.96 304,069.76
Total 166,520,371.42 172,875,217.21

20 TAXAND ITS ADDITIONS

Item Current period Prior period
City maintenance tax 352,743.08 194,969.80
Education surcharges 346,403.95 296,265.07
Stamp dutys 86,279.29 58,107.80
Total 785,426.32 549,342.67
21 FINANCE EXPENSES
Item Current period Prior period
Interest expenses 1,208,292.24 430,623.41
Less:Interest income 37,678.25 110,709.46
Exchange losses/gains-net 538,124.78 206,600.90
Other finance expenses 31,703.43 269,263.66
Total 1,740,442.20 795,778.51
22 NON-OPERATING INCOMES
Item Current period Prior period
Subsidy 455,890.00 1,215,245.66
Additional VAT deduction 732,986.34 549,983.82
IIT refund 187,328.72 -
Salary payables written off 34,234.04 -
VAT exemption 280.00 -
Rounding off - 0.03
Total 1,410,719.10 1,765,229.51
23 NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
Item Current period Prior period
Disposal of fixed assets and long-term deferred expenses 1,515,664.24 -
Rounding off 0.15 -
Invoices lost - 6,226.31
Receivables unable to collect - 13,853.71
Total 1,515,664.39 20,080.02

25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
Related party relationships

Name of Entity Relationship with the Company

Customer A Investor
Customer B Controlled by the same party
Customer C Controlled by the same party
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25

26

27

28

214

Related party transactions

Name of Entity

Customer A
Customer B

Customer C

Ending Balance of related party transaction

Name of Entity
Customer A
Customer A

Customer A
Customer B

CONTINGENCIES

No disclosure is required.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
No disclosure is required.

COMPARISON INFORMATION

Account Name

Accounts
receivable

Accounts
payable

Other payables

Accounts
receivable

Description

Rendering
services

Receiving
services

Rendering
services

Description

Rendering
services

Receiving
services
Paid on behalf

Rendering
services

Transactions
in 2019

11,682,142.22

4,368,012.33

1,893,255.90

Ending
balance

595,263.85

21,588,513.39

1,995,035.77
1,008,097.75

The comparison information has been reclassified so as to be in line with the information reported for the year 2020.

OTHERS

No disclosure is required.



TECH MAHINDRA (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE MANAGEMENT

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

ADJUSTMENTS TO INCOME BEFORE TAX

Account or subaccount Description Adjusted amount Remarks
name (Reference included) for taxable
income
Increases to the taxable amounts
Accrued expense Accrued but unpaid expenses 1,649,111.93 Leave encashment
accrue
Administrative expenses Bad debt provisions 4,291,817.29 Bad-debt provision
Accrued expense Accrued but unpaid expenses 9,288,233.22
Administrative expenses | Property losses 2,500.00
Administrative expenses Entertainment expenses exceed deductible 38,765.46
limit
Total increases to the taxable amount 15,270,427.90
Decreases to the taxable amounts
Accrued expense Accrued but unpaid expenses 1,736,387.10 Leave encashment

accrue

Administrative expenses

Bad debt provisions

10,405,017.56

Bad-debt provision

Accrued expense

Accrued but unpaid expenses

529,952.12

Administrative expenses

Additional deduction

122,997.33

Total decreases to the taxable amount

12,794,354.11

Adjustments - net

2,476,073.79

Audited income before tax

(10,493,245.34)

Taxable income after adjustment

(8,017,171.55)

Note: The taxable income shall be finally settled by tax authorities
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TECH MAHINDRA (NANJING) COMPANY LTD
DIRECTORS ’' REPORT

Your directors present their report together with the audited accounts of your company for the year ended December 31,
2020.

Financial Results

For the years ended December 31 2020 2019
RMB RMB
Income 1,290,220.45 1,840,488
Profit/(Loss) before tax 239,847.29 359,920
Profit/(Loss) after tax 229,021.67 342,255

Review of Operations:

During the year under review, your company recorded an income of RMB —1290220.45-, a decrease of -30%-- over the
previous year. Profit after tax was RMB -229021.67- an decrease of -33%-- over the previous year. The Company continues
to invest in strengthening its marketing infrastructure in China

Outlook for the Current Year:

The liquidation process initiated earlier was withdrawn due to business reasons.
The future is cautiously optimistic.

Acknowledgments:

Your Directors gratefully acknowledge the contributions made by the employees towards the success of the Company. Your
Directors also thank the customers, suppliers, bankers, State and Federal Government Authorities and the shareholder/s
for the co-operation and assistance received from them.

For Tech Mahindra (Nanjing) Company Ltd

Amitava Ghosh
Director

Place: Nanjing, China
Date : April 13, 2021
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TECH MAHINDRA (NANJING) COMPANY LTD
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO TECH MAHINDRA (NANJING) CO., LTD.

1.
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Tech Mahindra (Nanjing) CO., LTD. (the Company), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Company as at December 31, 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and the China “Accounting System for Business
Enterprises”.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and the China “Accounting System for Business Enterprises”,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
China Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

During the process of our audit in accordance with China Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism. We also:

(1) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control, the risk of not finding a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error.

(2) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control.

(3) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

(4) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, we shall not express unqualified opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.



TECH MAHINDRA (NANJING) COMPANY LTD

(5) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the those Charged with Governance about planned scope and timing of the audit, as well as
significant findings from the audit, including notable internal control weaknesses identified from the audit.

Chen Jie, China Certified Public Accountant

Su yalan, China Certified Public Accountant

Shanghai Linfang Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd.
15F, Hechuang Building,
No. 450 Caoyang Road,

Shanghai China
April 13, 2021
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TECH MAHINDRA (NANJING) COMPANY LTD
BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31 2020

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

Assets Notes Ending Beginning
balance balance
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 9,511,111.89 5,764,558.08
Accounts receivable 6 53,080.02 125,345.80
Advance to suppliers 7 8,416.00 8,416.00
Other receivables 8 15,559.45 3,440,386.00
Other current assets 9 685.53 4,774.67
Total current assets 9,588,852.89 9,343,480.55
Non-current assets:
Fixed assets 10 29,539.18 64,030.03
Long-term deferred expenses 1 85.33 1,365.88
Total non-current assets 29,624.51 65,395.91
Total assets 9,618,477.40 9,408,876.46
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 12 8,568.60 -
Employee benefits payable 13 27,096.90 50,431.72
Taxes and dues payable 14 1,412.59 6,390.18
Other payables 15 16,353.68 16,030.60
Total liabilities 53,431.77 72,852.50
Non-current liabilities:
Total non-current liabilities - -
Total liabilities 53,431.77 72,852.50
Owner's equity (or shareholder's equity):
Paid-in capital 16 52,646,896.26 52,646,896.26
Retained earnings 17 (43,081,850.63) (43,310,872.30)
Total owner's equity 9,565,045.63 9,336,023.96
Total liabilities and owner's equity 9,618,477.40 9,408,876.46

The Notes are the following parts of the statements.

Legal Representative:
XIA MEI
TAO WANZHU

Person in charge of accounting function:
Person in charge of accounting department:
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TECH MAHINDRA (NANJING) COMPANY LTD
INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2020

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

Notes Current period Prior period
. Total operating income 18 1,290,220.45 1,840,488.09
Less: Operating cost 18 752,303.27 789,494.61
Taxes and additions 19 - 593.60
Administrative expenses 371,612.96 749,824.77
Financial expenses 20 (73,406.73) (36,261.43)
Il. Operating profit 239,710.95 336,836.54
add: Non-operating income 21 136.34 23,083.70
lll. Total profit 239,847.29 359,920.24
Less: income tax expenses 10,825.62 17,665.71
IV. Net profit 229,021.67 342,254.53
Incl.: Net profit from on-going operations 229,021.67 342,254 .53
Net profit from discontinued operations - -
V. Other net comprehensive income after tax - -
VI. Total comprehensive income 229,021.67 342,254.53
The Notes are the following parts of the statements.
Legal Representative: SREENIVASA MURTY ACHUTUNI
Person in charge of accounting function: XIA MEI
Person in charge of accounting department: TAO WANZHU
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TECH MAHINDRA (NANJING) COMPANY LTD
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2020

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

Item Current period Prior period
| Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from sale of goods and rendering of services 1,366,855.37 2,157,478.16
Tax refund - 4,934.21
Other cash received relating to operating activities 3,516,953.38 67,022.91
Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 4,883,808.75 2,229,435.28
Cash paid for goods and services 247,188.12 11,800.00
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 755,633.05 1,227,262.84
Payments of taxes and levies 15,157.66 26,566.43
Cash paid relating to other operating activities 102,706.78 3,844,126.43
Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 1,120,685.61 5,109,755.70
Net cash flows from operating activities 3,763,123.14 (2,880,320.42)
| Cash flows from investing activities:
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets, and other - 31,751.26
long-term assets
Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities - 31,751.26
Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities - -
Net cash flows from investing activities - 31,751.26
L  Cash flows from financing activities:
Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities - -
Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities - -
Net cash flows from financing activities - -
IV  Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (16,569.33) (5,550.50)
\" Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,746,553.81 (2,854,119.66)
Add: Beginning balance of cash and cash equivalents 5,764,558.08 8,618,677.74
VI Ending balance of cash and cash equivalents 9,511,111.89 5,764,558.08

The Notes are the following parts of the statements.

Legal Representative:
Person in charge of accounting function:
Person in charge of accounting department:
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES

DECEMBER 31 2020

Closing Balance at 31 December
2018

Beginning Balance at 1 January 2019
Net profit
Other comprehensive income

Capital contributions or decreases by
owners

Profit appropriation
Movements in 2019

Closing Balance at 31 December
2019

Closing Balance at 31 December
2019

Beginning Balance at 1 January
2020

Net profit
Other comprehensive income

Capital contributions or decreases by
owners

Profit appropriation
Transfer between equity components
Movements in 2020

Closing Balance at 31 December
2020

TECH MAHINDRA (NANJING) COMPANY LTD

IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED
(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)
Paid-in Capital Surplus Undistributed Total owner's
capital reserve reserve profit equity
52,646,896.26 - - (43,653,126.83) 8,993,769.43
52,646,896.26 - - (43,653,126.83) 8,993,769.43
— — — 342,254.53 342,254.53
- - - 342,254.53 342,254.53
- - 9,336,023.96

52,646,896.26 (43,310,872.30)
52,646,896.26 - - (43,310,872.30) 9,336,023.96
52,646,896.26 - - (43,310,872.30) 9,336,023.96
— — — 229,021.67 229,021.67
- - - 229,021.67 229,021.67
- - 9,565,045.63

52,646,896.26

(43,081,850.63)

The Notes are the following parts of the statements.

Legal Representative:

Person in charge of accounting function:

Person in charge of accounting department:

SREENIVASA MURTY ACHUTUNI
XIA MEI
TAO WANZHU
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TECH MAHINDRA (NANJING) COMPANY LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 2020

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated)

1

224

GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Tech Mahindra (Nanjing) Co., Ltd.(Formerly Satyam Computer Services (Nanjing) Co., Ltd.) ("the Company”) is a
wholly owned foreign enterprise invested by Tech Mahindra Limited. Registered at Nanjing Administration of Industry
and Commerce, the Company was established on June 29,2007 and obtained the business license with Uniform Social
Credit Code N0.913201006606980458. Residential address of the Company is Suite 413-246, Business Building,
Nanjing High-tech Industry Developing Zone and the registered capital is USD 7.65 million. The Company has an
approved operating period of 50 years.

The approved business scope is: software designing, developing, writing, testing, maintenance (including embedded
system software, computer aid design, manufacturing and engineering service software, enterprise resource planning
software, enterprise integrating software, customer relationship management software etc.); sales of the self-produced
products and related technical consulting. (Activities related to administrative permission should be operated with
approval).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
and “Accounting System for Business enterprises” as promulgated by the State of the People’s Republic of China.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Accounting period
The company’s accounting year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.
(b) Recording currency
The recording currency of the Company is the Renminbi (RMB).
(c) Basis of accounting and measurement bases

The Company follows the accrual basis of accounting. Assets are initially recorded at actual costs on acquisition
and subsequently adjusted for impairment, if any.

(d) Foreign currency translation

Except for the accounting treatment of paid-in capital, foreign currency transactions are translated into RMB
at the exchang